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DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION
FINANCIAL CONTROL DIVISION
407 GALISTEO STREET
BATAAN MEMORIAL BUILDING, ROOM 166
SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87501
(505) 827-4985 FAX (505) 827-3692

Michelle Lujan-Grisham Olivia Padilla-Jackson

Governor Cabinet Secretary

Donna Montoya-Trujillo
State Controller

To the Governor, the State Legislature and the Citizens of New Mexico:

In accordance with Chapter 6-5-4.1 of the New Mexico Statutes Annotated 1978 (NMSA 1978), the Financial Control Division
of the Department of Finance and Administration transmits the State of New Mexico’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.

The CAFR presents the financial position and operating results of the State, compliant with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) applicable to state and local governments, as established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB). The purpose of this report is to provide complete and reliable information as a basis for making management
decisions, assessing adherence to and compliance with legal requirements, and evaluating stewardship of the state’s assets. The
basic financial statements and required supplemental information include a required narrative introduction, referred to as
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This transmittal letter complements the MD&A, which is located
immediately following the independent auditors’ report, and should be read in conjunction with this letter.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (CLA), an independent accounting firm and the New Mexico Office of the State Auditor, have audited
the basic financial statements contained in this report. Their audit was conducted in accordance with the generally accepted
government auditing standards and their auditor’s report precedes the basic financial statements. The goal of an independent
audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the State of New Mexico’s basic financial statements for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2019 are free of material misstatement. Independent audit procedures include examining, on a test basis, supporting
amounts and disclosures, assessing the accounting principles used, review of any significant estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall basic financial statement presentation. An audit also includes consideration of internal controls over
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate under the circumstances, but not for expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the State’s internal controls over financial reporting. Accordingly, the independent auditor
expressed no opinion on the internal controls over financial reporting.

Under statute (12.6.3 NMSA 1978), every state agency must be audited annually. To avoid duplication of effort, the CAFR
audit relies and builds upon agency audits. The existing group audit process affects timeliness, as CAFR development may
only commence after completion of the underlying agency audits, some that were not complete until late December. Legislation
to perform a single statewide financial audit was introduced during the 2018 legislative session and while it did not make it
completely through the process, it did initiate needed dialog to affect a positive change in the future. Ongoing discussions are
taking place within the Department of Finance and Administration (DFA) and the State Auditor’s Office (SAO) to look for
ways to streamline and shorten the overall process. In addition, the State Auditor’s Office is jointly auditing the CAFR to learn
more about the process and make recommendations for changes to state law, rules, and regulations.

Improvements in controls and processes over the last six years now allow for the production of a reliable and auditable CAFR
and the benefits of these enhancements are continuing.
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PROFILE OF STATE OF NEW MEXICO

New Mexico, became the forty-seventh state of the United States of America when it entered the union on January 6, 1912. Its
borders encompass 121,589 square miles of the Great Plains, Rocky Mountains, and the Rio Grande River with elevations
ranging from 2,842 to 13,161 feet above sea level. Nicknamed the Land of Enchantment, the state’s landscape ranges from
wide, rose-colored deserts to broken mesas and high, snow-capped peaks. The Sangre de Cristo Mountains, the southernmost
part of the Rocky Mountains, run north to south along the east side of the Rio Grande. The state is home to the White Sands
National Monument, which contains the largest gypsum dune field in the world. The State’s major economic sectors include
agriculture, mining, energy production, federal technology laboratories and tourism. The estimated population of the state was
2,093,346 as of July 2018.

Structure — The State Constitution divides the powers of government among three equal and independent branches: Legislative,
Executive, and Judicial, shown in the organizational chart on page xiii. The powers and duties of each branch of government
are outlined in the Constitution of the State of New Mexico, which can be amended only by a majority vote of the State’s
citizens. The State of New Mexico CAFR includes the primary government (i.e., legislative agencies, departments and agencies,
commissions, the Governor and Cabinet, boards of the executive branch, various offices relating to the judicial branch, the
education institutions created by the Constitution of the State of New Mexico, Article XII, Section 11, and discrete component
units of the State of New Mexico. Internal Controls — In accordance with the provisions of Chapter 6-5-2.C, NMSA 1978, the
Financial Control Division of the Department of Finance and Administration is responsible for ensuring government agencies
fulfill their responsibility for implementing and sustaining effective internal controls. Internal accounting controls are designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or
disposition, and reliability of financial records used for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability for assets.
The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived
from its use, and the evaluation of costs and benefits requires managerial estimates and judgments. All internal control
evaluations occur within this framework. Consideration as to the adequacy of internal controls is paramount in developing and
maintaining the State’s accounting system, and the effectiveness and adequacy of internal controls are evaluated during internal
reviews performed by the Department of Finance and Administration and annual external audits.

Types and levels of services provided — The State of New Mexico provides its citizens with the following governmental types
of services: educational, environmental, health and human services, highway and transportation services, public safety,
legislative, judicial, as well as cultural, recreational and natural resource services. The State of New Mexico also administers
two cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement systems and three single-employer public employee retirement
systems.

Brief summary of budget process — The Governor is required to submit a balanced budget by agency, program, activity and
category to the Legislature annually. The Legislature authorizes expenditures in the annual General Appropriations Act by
source, which is then signed into law by the Governor. Unless otherwise indicated, annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-
end. In the event actual revenues are insufficient to cover budgeted expenditures, the Governor must order budget reductions
or call a special session of the Legislature to address any budget shortfalls. Adjustments to the budget may also be made
throughout the year for changes in departmental or fund revenues so that departments and funds will not end the fiscal year in
a deficit position. Expenditures are controlled at the program appropriation level. The budget is administered using the
modified accrual basis of accounting; however, the budgetary basis is not consistent with GAAP.

PENSION AND OPEB OBLIGATIONS

The State implemented GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, in Fiscal Year 2015. The
State implemented GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)
in Fiscal Year 2018. The purpose of the new statement was to improve the accounting and financial reporting of public
employee pensions and other post-employment benefits by state and local governments and enhance the usefulness of pension
and OPEB information. This change was limited to financial reporting and does not require any changes to the way actual
employer plan contributions are determined. Employer contributions to the pension plans continue to be calculated per the
requirements of the governing State statutes. GASB Statement No. 68 requires participating employers to recognize their
proportionate share of the collective net pension liability. GASB Statement No. 75 requires participating employers to recognize
their proportionate share of the collective net OPEB liability. The State’s share of the net pension liability, net of deferred items
and based on a measurement date of June 30, 2019, which is required to be recorded on the financial statements, is $6.8 billion
for the primary government, an increase of $0.71 billion. The State’s share of the net OPEB liability, net of deferred items and
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based on a measurement date of June 30, 2019, which is required to be recorded on the financial statements, is $1.5 billion for
the primary government.

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

Economic Factors Affecting New Mexico’s Fiscal Year 2019 Budget - New Mexico utilizes a consensus revenue estimating
group (CREG) comprised of legislative and executive economists to forecast General Fund revenue so that the Executive and
Legislature work with the same revenue forecast in preparing their respective General Fund operating budget recommendations.

New Mexico state revenues are highly sensitive to boom and bust cycles in the energy industry; the CREG conducts a Stress-
Test on state revenues during the process. The establishment and use of Stress-Testing hedges against an economic downturn
or an unforeseen downswing in the energy sector by targeting appropriate levels of general fund reserves to offset the impact
of a major downturn.

The New Mexico economy grew moderately in fiscal year 2019 and the energy sector continued to provide significant
contributions. Reflective of New Mexico economic growth, state wages and salaries grew by 4.9 percent and total personal
income in the state grew by 4.6 percent. During fiscal year 2019, New Mexico employment growth averaged 1.9 percent,
adding 15,800 jobs. Oil prices in fiscal year 2019 remained lower than oil prices in fiscal year 2018. New Mexico continued
to be the third largest producing state for oil and the ninth largest for natural gas.

New Mexico’s economy affected by the upturn in the extractives industry and employment gains in mining and energy-related
sectors, experienced Real GDP growth of 1.4 percent in fiscal year 2018.

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a coronavirus (COVID-19) a pandemic. As a
result, economic uncertainties have arisen which are likely to negatively impact net income. Other financial impact could occur
though such potential impact is unknown at this time.

LONG-TERM FINANCING

The State of New Mexico’s Constitution and laws authorize the State to issue general obligation bonds, severance tax bonds
and revenue bonds to finance or refinance the cost of State capital projects. General obligation bonds are secured by the full
faith and credit of the State and are repaid from a dedicated statewide property tax. Article 9, Section 8 of the New Mexico
Constitution limits General Obligation indebtedness to no more than one percent of the assessed valuation of all the property
subject to taxation in the State. Severance Tax Bonds are used to finance statewide capital projects that have been authorized
by the Legislature and approved by the Governor. Severance and Supplemental Severance Tax Bonds are repaid from revenues
deposited into the Severance Tax Bonding Fund, which primarily include taxes on mineral production in the State. The State
continues to maintain a strong creditworthiness rating from Moody’s Investors Services and Standard and Poor’s Corporation.
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Honorable Michelle Lujan-Grisham, Governor of the State of New Mexico
Ms. Olivia Padilla-Jackson, Secretary of the New Mexico Department of
Finance and Administration,
Ms. Donna M. Truijillo, State Controller of the New Mexico Department
of Finance and Administration, and
Mr. Brian Colén, New Mexico State Auditor

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the State of New Mexico (State), as of and for the year ended June 30,
2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the State’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of certain agencies and component units of the State, which represent the
indicated percent of total assets and total revenues as presented in the table below. Those financial
statements were audited by other auditors, whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for those agencies and component units, is based
solely on the reports of the other auditors.

A member of

Q) Nexia )
International



The Honorable Michelle Lujan-Grisham, Governor of the State of New Mexico
Ms. Olivia Padilla-Jackson, Secretary of the New Mexico Department of
Finance and Administration,
Ms. Donna M. Truijillo, State Controller of the New Mexico Department
of Finance and Administration, and
Mr. Brian Colén, New Mexico State Auditor

Percentage Audited by Other Auditors

Total Total
Government-Wide Assets Revenues
Governmental activities 87% 90%
Business-type activities 99% 92%
Aggregate discretely presented component units 67% 32%
Fund Statements
Major governmental fund - General Fund 42% 54%
Major governmental fund - Debt Service Fund 100% 100%
Major governmental fund - Capital Projects Fund 36% 24%
Major governmental fund - Severance Tax Permanent Fund 100% 100%
Major governmental fund - Land Grant Permanent Fund 100% 100%
Major enterprise fund - Educational Institutions Fund 100% 100%
Aggregate remaining fund information 50% 87%

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our unmodified and qualified audit opinions.



The Honorable Michelle Lujan-Grisham, Governor of the State of New Mexico
Ms. Olivia Padilla-Jackson, Secretary of the New Mexico Department of
Finance and Administration,
Ms. Donna M. Truijillo, State Controller of the New Mexico Department
of Finance and Administration, and
Mr. Brian Colén, New Mexico State Auditor

Summary of Opinions

Opinion Unit Type of Opinion
Governmental activities Qualified
Business-type activities Unmodified
Major governmental fund — General Fund Unmodified
Major governmental fund — Debt Service Fund Unmodified
Major governmental fund — Capital Projects Fund Unmodified
Major governmental fund — Severance Tax Fund Unmodified
Major governmental fund — Land Grant Fund Unmodified
Major enterprise fund - Educational Institutions Fund Unmodified
Aggregate remaining fund information Unmodified
Aggregate discretely presented component units Unmodified

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Governmental Activities

The component auditor of the General Services Department, a significant component of the State, was
unable to obtain sufficient audit evidence to support the completeness, existence, accuracy, and
valuation of the reported land and construction in process balances on the General Services
Department’s separately issued financial statements. As a result the component auditor issued a

qualified opinion as reported in their separate opinion of the General Services Department financial
statements.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, except for the matters described
in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion on Governmental Activities” paragraphs above, the financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of
the governmental activities as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position for the

year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.



The Honorable Michelle Lujan-Grisham, Governor of the State of New Mexico
Ms. Olivia Padilla-Jackson, Secretary of the New Mexico Department of
Finance and Administration,
Ms. Donna M. Truijillo, State Controller of the New Mexico Department
of Finance and Administration, and
Mr. Brian Colén, New Mexico State Auditor

Unmodified Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the opinion units
identified as “Unmodified” in the schedule “Summary of Opinions” of the State, as of June 30, 2019, and
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matters

Correction of Errors

As described in Note 9 to the financial statements, the State restated beginning balances resulting from
the correction of accounting errors that occurred in the prior period. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (pages 7-25), Budgetary Comparison Schedule — General Fund and Notes to
Budgetary Reporting (pages 207-214), Schedules of Changes in Net Pension Liability (pages 215-219),
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability (page 220);Schedules of Net Pension Liability (pages 221-
225), Schedules of Net OPEB Liability (page 226-229), Schedules of Employer Contributions - Pension
(pages 230-239), Schedules of Employer Contributions — OPEB (pages 240-242), Schedules of
Investment Returns - Pension (pages 243-244), Schedule of Investment Returns — OPEB (pages 245-
247), Schedule of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — All Retirement Systems (page 248), Schedule
of Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — New Mexico Retiree Health Care Authority (page 249),
Schedule of the State of New Mexico’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (pages 251-256),
Schedule of the State of New Mexico’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability (pages 257-258),
and Schedule of the State’s Contributions (pages 260-267) be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We and the other auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.




The Honorable Michelle Lujan-Grisham, Governor of the State of New Mexico
Ms. Olivia Padilla-Jackson, Secretary of the New Mexico Department of
Finance and Administration,
Ms. Donna M. Truijillo, State Controller of the New Mexico Department
of Finance and Administration, and
Mr. Brian Colén, New Mexico State Auditor

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the State’s basic financial statements. The combining statements and individual fund financial
statements and schedules, introductory and statistical sections are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining statements and individual fund financial statements and schedules presented as other
supplementary information as listed in the table of contents are the responsibility of management and
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America by
us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as described above,
and the report of the other auditors, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 31,
2020 on our consideration of the State’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to solely describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the State’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
State’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

f%clm% L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Albuquerque, New Mexico
March 31, 2020



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

INTRODUCTION

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is required supplementary information to
the State of New Mexico’s financial statements. It describes and analyzes the financial performance and
position of the state, and also provides an overview of the State’s activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2019. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter in the Introductory Section of this report and
with the State’s financial statements that follow this section. The subsequent information is highly
summarized, and in order to gain a comprehensive understanding of the State’s financial condition it should
be reviewed in its entirety. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of dollars.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Government-wide

Net Position of the Primary Government

+

The primary government (governmental activities and business-type activities) ended fiscal year
2019 with a net position of $31.4 billion, an increase of $3 billion, or 10.5 percent, from the
previous year.

The net position is comprised of $7.6 billion in capital assets, net of related debt, $29 billion in
restricted, and a deficit $5.1 billion in unrestricted, excluding component units.

As a result of operating activities, the primary government’s total net position increased by $3
billion, or 10.5 percent, in fiscal year 2019 when compared to the previous year’s ending net
position. The net position of governmental activities increased $3.3 billion, or 12.16 percent, from
previous year’s ending net position.

Program revenues for the primary government increased around 5.35 percent on a year to year
basis. Taxes and other general revenues increased by 7.61 percent from previous year. Expenses
of $19.2 billion, increased by $351 million, with the majority of the increase being in the Education
and Education Institutional functions.

The net position of the business-type activities decreased by $283 million or 18.48 percent, from
the previous year’s ending net position. The business-type activities from the prior fiscal year saw
an increase in total revenue by $32 million and an increase in expenses by $192 million. Program
revenue increased by $44 million while transfers increased by $116 million.

Long-term Debt
4 The State’s long-term bonded debt decreased a net of $340 million for both governmental and business-

type activities, combined, due to the payment on the prior year bonds was higher than the issuance of
new bonds. New bond issuance was $65 million for governmental activities; composed of $65 million

for revenue bonds. New bond issuance for business type activities was $18 million in revenue bonds.

See Note 8 for more detailed information on long-term liabilities. More detailed information regarding
the government-wide, fund level, and long-term debt activities can be found in the capital asset and
debt administration section of this management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A).
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Fund Level

Governmental Funds

#+ As of June 30, 2019, the State’s combined governmental funds reported a ending fund balance of
$29.8 billion, an increase of $3 billion, or 11.34 percent, from fiscal year 2018 year’s ending net
position, (see the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances).

4+ Year to Year there was an increase in revenue of $1.1 billion, primarily the result of higher
investment and rental and royalty income and strengthened General and Selective Tax Revenues.
Year to Year, expenditures increased by $570 million. Operationally, expenditure increase in the
areas of Education and Highway and Transportation being the primary drivers.

4+ The unassigned fund balance as of the end of fiscal year 2019 was $1.6 billion.

Proprietary Funds
+ The proprietary funds reported net position of $1.3 billion as of June 30, 2019, a decrease of $283

million, or 18.48 percent, from fiscal year 2018 ending net position.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The focus of this annual report is on reporting for the state as a whole and on the major individual funds.
The report presents a more comprehensive view of the state’s financial activities. The Financial Section of
this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) presents the State’s financial position and activities
in four parts:

@ Management’s Discussion and Analysis (this part)
@ Basic Financial Statements
Government-wide Financial Statements
Fund Financial Statements
Notes to the Financial Statements
@ Required Supplementary Information other than MD&A
@ Other Supplementary Information presenting combining statements and schedules

This report also includes statistical data.
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Reporting on the State as a Whole

Government-wide Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to present an overall picture of the financial
position of the state. These statements consist of the statement of net position and the statement of activities,
which are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
This means that all revenues earned and expenses incurred during the year are included, regardless of when
cash is received or disbursed, producing a view of financial position similar to that presented by most
private sector companies.

The statement of net position combines and consolidates the government’s current financial resources with
capital assets and long-term obligations. This statement includes all of the government’s assets, deferred
outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows. Net position represents one measure of the state’s financial
health. Other indicators of the state’s financial health include the condition of its facilities, roads and
highways (infrastructure) and economic trends affecting the state’s future tax revenues.

The statement of activities focuses on both the gross and net cost of various activities (governmental,
business-type and component units). These costs are paid by the state’s tax revenues, charges for services
and other revenues. This statement summarizes the cost of providing (or the subsidy provided by) specific
government services and includes all current year revenues and expenses.

The government-wide statement of net position and the statement of activities divide the state’s activities
into the following three types:

Governmental Activities

The state’s basic services are reported here, including general government, education, transportation, health
and human services, public safety and corrections, judicial, natural resources and recreation, legislative,
and regulatory services. Taxes, fees and federal grants finance most of these activities.

Business-type Activities

Activities for which the state charges a fee to customers to pay most or all of the costs of certain services it
provides are reported as business-type activities. The state’s institutions of higher education are included
as business-type activities, as well as unemployment insurance, public schools insurance, medical centers,
magazine publication, state fair, state infrastructure bank, environment department, corrections industries,
and industries for the blind.

Component Units
Component units are legally separate organizations for which the state is either financially accountable or

the nature and significance of their relationship with the state is such that exclusion would cause the state’s
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The state has approximately eighty-six (86) discretely
presented component units. Financial information for these entities is presented separately in the
supplemental statements and in the notes.
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Reporting on the State’s Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements provide additional detail about the state’s financial position and activities. Some
information presented in the fund financial statements differs from the government-wide financial
statements due to the perspective and basis of accounting used. Funds are presented in the fund-level
statements based on criteria set by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). A fund is a
separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The state uses funds to keep track of
sources of funding and spending related to specific activities. Some funds are required by law to exist, while
others are established internally to maintain control over a particular activity.

All of the State’s funds are divided into the following categories, each of which uses a different accounting
approach:

Governmental Funds

A majority of the state’s activity is reported in the governmental funds. Reporting of these funds focuses
on the flow of money into and out of the funds and amounts remaining at fiscal year-end for future spending.
Governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which measures cash
and other assets that can be readily converted to cash. The governmental fund financial statements provide
a detailed short-term view of the state’s general governmental operations and the basic services it provides.
This information helps determine the level of resources available for the state’s programs. The
reconciliations following the fund financial statements explain the differences between the governmental
activities column reported on the government-wide statement of net position and the government-wide
statement of activities, and the governmental funds reported on the fund financial statements. The general
fund, debt service fund, appropriated bond proceeds capital outlay fund, severance tax fund and land grant
fund are reported as major governmental funds.

Proprietary Funds
When the state charges customers for services it provides, these activities are generally reported in

proprietary funds. Services provided to outside (non-governmental) customers are reported in enterprise
funds, a type of proprietary funds, and are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. These are the same business-type activities reported in the government-
wide financial statements, but are reported here to provide information at the fund level. Activities whose
customers are primarily other state agencies (e.g., motor pool) are accounted for in internal service funds.
The internal service fund activities are consolidated with the governmental activities in the government-
wide statements because those services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type
activities.

Fiduciary Funds
Fiduciary funds account for assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others. All state fiduciary

activities are reported in separate statements of fiduciary net position and changes in fiduciary net position.
The activities are reported separately from other financial activities because the state cannot use the assets
to finance its operations. The state’s fiduciary responsibilities include ensuring that the assets reported in
these funds are used for their intended purpose. Fiduciary funds are accounted for using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis accounting.

10
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Reconciliation between Government-wide and Fund Statements

The financial statements include schedules that reconcile and explain the differences between the amounts
reported for governmental activities on the government-wide statements (accrual accounting, long-term
focus) with amounts reported on the governmental fund statements (modified accrual accounting, short-
term focus).

The following are some of the major differences between the two statements:

@ Capital assets and long-term debt are included on the government-wide statements, but are not
reported on the governmental fund statements.

@ Capital outlay spending results in capital assets on the government-wide statements, but are
reported as expenditures on the governmental fund statements.

@ Bond proceeds result in liabilities on the government-wide statements, but are other financing
sources on the governmental fund statements.

@ Certain tax revenues that are earned but not yet available are reported as revenue on the
government-wide statements, but are deferred inflow of resources on the governmental fund
statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional schedules and information that are essential to a complete understanding of
the financial statements. The notes apply to both the government-wide financial statements and the fund
financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information (RSI)

Following the Basic Financial Statements are budgetary comparison schedules for major funds with legally
adopted budgets. In addition, the RSI includes schedules on the funded status and employer contributions
for the State’s Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Other Postemployment Benefits Plan. RSI further
supports the information in the basic financial statements.

Other Supplementary Information

Supplementary Information includes combining statements for the State’s nonmajor proprietary and
fiduciary funds. This section also includes schedules which compare budgeted expenditures to actual results
at the legal level of control, which is generally the program level of the General Appropriation Acts.

ADJUSTMENTS TO BEGINNING NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES

While adjustments were made to the opening balances of a number of entities that are part of the primary
government none individually or collectively were significant to merit discussion.

11
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE AS A WHOLE

Net Position
#+ Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of the State as of June 30, 2019, were $47.2 billion, an increase

of $3.1 billion or 7 percent from prior fiscal year. The majority of the increase is due to investment

value gains and increased receivables.
For governmental activities, total assets and deferred outflows were $40.3 billion, an
increase of $3.1 billion, or 8.45 percent.
For business-type activities, total assets and deferred outflows were $6.9 billion, a decrease
of $40 million or .6 percent.

+ Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows as of June 30, 2019 were $15.8 billion, a decrease of $102
million or .65 percent from prior fiscal year.
Total liabilities and deferred inflows for governmental activities were $10.1 billion, down
$135 million, or 1.32 percent.
For business-type activities, total liabilities and deferred inflows were $5.7 billion, an
increase of $237 million or 4.36 percent.

+ The State’s total net position of $31.4 billion was $3 billion or 10.5 percent higher in fiscal year
2019 compared to the prior year. Of the State’s net position, $7.6 billion was invested in capital
assets, net of related debt, while $29 billion was restricted by state statute or other legal
requirements and was not available to finance day-to-day operations of the state. Unrestricted net
position was a $5.1 billion deficit.

12
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Current and Other Assets
Capital Assets
Total Assets

Deferred Outflow of
Resources

Current Liabilities
Long-term Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of
Resources

Net Position:
Net Investment in
Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Percentage change in total
net position from prior year

State of New Mexico
Net Position as of June 30, 2019
(Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities

Total Primary Governme nt

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
§ 32358724 $ 29312433 $ 3436924 § 3291377 $ 35795647  $ 32,603,810
7,113,854 7,170,922 2,587,985 2,554,238 9,701,839 9,725,161
$ 39,472,578 36,483,355 6,024,909 $ 5,845,615 45,497,487 42,328,969
817,683 668,585 897,930 1,117,334 1,715,613 1,785,919
2,798,521 2,954,532 608,947 561,044 3,407,468 3,515,576
6,863,127 6,764,206 4,911,326 4,740,571 11,774453 11,504,777
9,661,648 9,718,738 5,520,273 5,301,615 15,181,921 15,020,353
438,655 516.465 151,785 133,637 590.440 650,102
5,826,283 5,866,806 1,770,690 1,755,991 7,596,973 7,622,797
27,579,789 25,740,851 1,386,077 1,319,357 28,965,866 27,060,208
(3.216,115) (4,690,920 (1,905,986) (1,547,651) (5.122,101) (6,238,571)
$  30,189958 $ 26,916,737 $ 1,250,781 $ 1,527,697 $ 31,440,739 S 28,444,434

122 % (18.1) % 10.5 %

13
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Changes in Net Position

The State’s net position as of June 30, 2019, was $31.4 billion which was $3 billion greater than the 2018
net position restated. The State earned program revenues of $12.6 billion, collected tax revenue of $7.4
billion, and received $2.2 billion of general revenues. Total revenues for 2019 were $22.2 billion, an
increase of $1.2 billion, or 5.9 percent, from fiscal year 2018. Increased revenue was primarily attributable
to the $986 million increase in taxes and $687 million in charges for services account for the remainder
while other general revenues decreased by $304 million. The expenses of the State were $19.1 billion, an
increase of $262 million or 1.39 percent, from fiscal year 2018. Further analysis of results of changes in
the State’s financial condition follows in the analysis of the State’s funds. Net program revenues exceeded
net program expenses by $3.1 billion, whereas in fiscal year 2018 this amount was $2.1 billion. The tax
collections of the State provided additional funding, which when added to program revenues, supported
payment for governmental services.

The following schedule and charts summarize the State’s total revenues, expenses, and changes in net
position for fiscal year 2019:

State of New Mexico
Changes in Net Position

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total
Percentage
Activitie: Business-type Activities Total Primary Government Change
2018 to
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019
Revenues
General Revenues:
Taxes $ 7,317,368 $ 6,289,836 S 126,103 $ 167,975 $ 7,443,471 $ 6,457,811 153 %
Other General
Revenues 1.849.466 2184419 332515 302.202 2.181.980 2486621 a23)%
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services 3,013,662 2392591 2159341 2,093,262 5,173,003 4485852 153 %
Operating Grants and
“ontributions 6,363,981 6,850,440 663.285 697,032 7,027,265 7547473 ©69)%
Capital Grants and
Contributions 376591 - 23.997 12437 400588 12437 31209 %
Total Revenues 18,921,067 17,717,286 3,305,241 3272908 22,226,307 20,990,194 59 %
Expenses
General Control 949,925 1,244,170 - - 949,925 1,244,170 (23.6) %
Culture, Recreation, and
Natural Resources 263383 247368 - - 263.383 247.368 65 %
Highway and
Transporiation 876,159 805736 - - 876.159 805.736 87 %
Judicial 341818 306,806 - - 341818 306,806 14 %
Legishtive 28,024 24,068 - - 28,024 24,068 164 %
Public Safety 548,909 534,228 - - 548,909 534228 27 %
Regulation and Licensing 194956 175,084 - - 194,956 175,084 114 %
Health and Hunan
Services 7.864.173 7.982.533 - - 7.864.173 7.982.533 5%
Education 3483071 3,167,364 3483071 3.167.364 10.0 %
Indirect Interest on
Long-term Debt 130,183 123.439 - - 130,183 123439 55 %
Special ltems - - - - - - - %
Educational Instiutions - - 3844397 3,645,245 3844397 3,645,245 55 %
Public Schools Insurance - - 370389 354,996 370389 354,996 43 %
Environmental Loans - - 2726 1526 2726 1526 100.0 %
Miners' Colfax Medical Center - - 37506 34,807 37,506 34,807 78 %
Unemployment Insurance - - 137,995 166,040 137,995 166,040 (16.9) %
State Fair - - 15919 16,357 15919 16357 @n%
Other Business-type Activities - - 22845 20536 20845 20536 n: %
Total Expenses 14,680,602 14,610,796 4431777 4239507 19,112,380 18,850,302 14 %
Excess Before Transfers 4,240,465 3,106,490 (1,126,536) (966,599) 3.113.929 2.139.892
Transfers (843,055) (727.311) 843,055 727311 ©) -
Change inNet Position 3397410 2379179 (283,481) (239.288) 3,113,930 2,139,892 455 %
Net Position -
Begiming, as Restated 26.792.548 24,537,558 1534262 1766984 28.326.810 26,304,542
Net Position - Ending s 30,189,958 S 26916737 S 1250781 S 1,527,697 S 31440739 S 28,444,435 105 %
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State of New Mexico Total Revenues - FY 2019

Individual Income and Corporate Tax
8%

 Capital Grants and Contributions
2% Gross Receipts
Taxes

OperatingGrants and Contributions 13%
32%

Other Taxes
12%

Charges for Services
23%

M Individual Income and Corporate Tax @ Gross Receipts Taxes M Other Taxes W Investment Income
& Miscellaneous W Charges for Services = o
"] - - H Operating Grants and Contributions

W Capital Grants and Contributions
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State of New Mexico Total Expenditures- FY 2019

ecreation, and Natural Resources M Highway and Transportation wudicial
M Regulati W Health and Human Services
HEducation ®Indirect Interest on Long-term Debt HEducational Instit HOther BusinessType Activities
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Governmental Activities

Governmental activities program revenue was $9.8 billion, consisting of operating grants and contributions
of $6.4 billion, capital grants and contributions of $377 million, and $3 billion in service charges. Program
revenues increased $511 million from the prior fiscal year the result of a $486 million decrease in operating
grants and contributions, a $376 million increase in capital grants and contributions, along with a $621
million increase in charges for services. Governmental activities expenses increased by $70 million year
to year bring the total to $14.7 billion. All governmental activities in the government-wide statement of
activities had expenses which exceeded program revenues. The health and human services function and
education function account for three-quarters of governmental activities expenses and net cost. The charges
for services increased due to additional rent royalty for the general control function.

The following table shows to what extent the State’s governmental activities relied on taxes and other
general revenues to cover all of their costs. For fiscal year 2019, state taxes and other general revenues
covered 62.06 percent of expenses. The remaining 37.94 percent of the total expenses, was covered by
charges for services and grants and contributions.

State of New Mexico
Net Program Costs as of June 30, 2019
(Expressed in Thousands)

Less Program Revenues

Program Program as a Percentage of

Expenses Revenues Net Program Costs Program Expenses

2019 2019 2019 2018 2019 2018
General Control $ 949,926 S (2,580,283) $  (1,630.357) $ (946,368) 271.6 % 176.1 %

Culture, Recreation, and

Natural Resources 263,383 (107,868) 155,515 125,457 41.0 % 493 %
Highway and Transportation 876,159 (521,240) 354,919 280,025 59.5 % 65.2 %
Judicial 341,818 (21,009) 320,809 286,677 6.1 % 6.6 %
Legislative 28,024 0 28,024 24,068 - % - %
Public Safety 548,909 (104,309) 444,600 462,696 19.0 % 13.4 %
Regulation and Licensing 194,956 (44,078) 150,878 130,796 22.6 % 253 %
Health and Human Services 7,864,173 (5,894,219) 1,969,954 1,958,446 75.0 % 75.5 %
Education 3,483,071 (481,228) 3,001,843 2,922,529 13.8 % 7.7 %
Indirect Interest on Long-term Debt 130,183 - 130,183 123,439 - % - %
$ 14,680,602  §$ (9,754,234) $ 4,926,368  $ 5,367,765 66.4 % 63.3 %
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
EXPENSES AND PROGRAM REVENUES: GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

(In Millions)
7864
5891
3,483
876
521 549
) 431
263 108 k 341 ;) 8 . 104 195 44 130 §
General Coatrol Culture, Highway and Judical Legslatuve Public Sarety Regulation and ‘Health ang Education Ingdirect Interest
Recrvation, and  Transportation Licensing Human Services on Long-term
Natural Debt
Resources
mExpenses @ Program Revenue

Business-type Activities

Business-type activities generated program revenues of $2.8 billion, including charges for services of $2.2
billion, operating grants and contributions of $663 million and $24 million in capital grants and
contributions. This was $44 million more than the prior year, attributable to the education function. The
total expenses for business-type activities were $4.4 billion, an increase of $192 million from the prior year.
The largest change occurred in the education institution function, where expenses increase by $199 million
versus prior year and a $15 million increase in public schools insurance and, offsetting this by $28 million
was a decrease in unemployment insurance. Net expenses exceeded program revenues from the primary
government’s business—type activities by $1.1 billion, an increase of $160 million from the prior year.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE’S GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Fund Balances

At June 30, 2019, the State’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $29.8 billion.
The State reported $28.1 billion, or 94.2 percent, as restricted, including $19 billion related to the Land
Grant Fund, $5.5 billion associated with the Severance Tax Fund and $1.6 billion attributable to the Capital
Projects Fund, all established by state laws. Note 1.G.14 contains more details about the fund balance
classifications at June 30, 2019. Committed, assigned, nonspendable and unassigned totaled $1.7 billion,
or 5.6 percent.

State of New Mexico
Fund Balances as of June 30, 2019
(Bxpressed in Thousands)

Debt Capital Totals
General Service Projects Severance Land Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Tax Grant Funds
Nonspendable 5 47309 5 - S - 5 - S - 5 47,309
Restricted 1,389,540 535,184 1,578,346 5,528,038 19047 479 28,078,586
Committed 33352 - - - - 33352
Assigned 13472 - 130 - - 13,622
Unassigned 1,607,072 - - - - 1,607,072
Total 5 3,094,745 8 535,184 5 1,578,495 8§ 5,528,038 5 19,047,479 5 29,783,941

Percent Change from Prior Year 113 %

Note: Due to prasentation change in the financials statements, individual fund percent change from prior year cannot be calevlated.

Governmental Funds

General Fund

General Fund balance at June 30, 2019 totaled $3.1 billion. Net change in General Fund balance, was an
increase $952 million. The General Fund ended the fiscal year 2019 with unassigned fund balance of $1.6
billion.
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Budgetary Highlights — General Fund

The initial fiscal year 2019 budget was adopted by the Legislature during the 2018 Regular Session. The
General Fund original budgeted revenues for fiscal year 2019 were 5 percent higher than the fiscal year
2018 final budget basis revenues. During the year, federal revenue was $839 million less than the final
approved budget. After budget amendments, the actual expenditures in the General Fund were $1.3 million
below the final budgeted amounts. This was mainly the result of agency-mandated measures to reduce
expenditures. Refer to the budgetary comparison schedule for the General Fund in the Other Required
Supplementary Information section of the CAFR.

Severance Tax Fund
Fund balance at June 30, 2019, totaled $5.5 billion, an increase of $247 million, or 4.7 percent, related
increase in investment earnings.

Land Grant Fund

Fund balance at June 30, 2019, totaled $19 billion, an increase $1.1 billion, or 6.40 percent, reflective of
increased investment earnings compared to the portfolio in the prior year.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE’S PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Exclusive of Internal Service Funds, the State’s proprietary funds reported Net Position of $1.3 billion, a
decrease of $277 million from the prior year net position.

Educational Institutions

Net Position at June 30, 2019, totaled $329 million. Current period activity decreased the Net Position of
the State’s educational institutions by $314 million, or 48.89 percent. For the fiscal year 2019 the State
transferred $871 million to the State’s educational institutions, an increase of $109 million, or 14.26 percent
from fiscal year 2018.

DISCRETE COMPONENT UNITS

These are operations for which the State has financial accountability or the nature and significance of their
relationship with the State is such that exclusion would cause the State’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. For the most part, these entities operate similar to private-sector businesses and
the business-type activities described above. All of the State’s discrete component units are presented in
the financial statements.

The State’s discretely presented major component units are:

4+ New Mexico Finance Authority
4+ New Mexico Mortgage Finance Authority
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+ New Mexico Lottery Authority
4+ University of New Mexico Foundation, Inc.
4+ New Mexico State University Foundation, Inc.

Complete financial statements of the individual component units can be obtained from their respective

administrative offices. Addresses and other additional information about the State’s component units are
presented in the notes to the financial statements.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Asset Activity

As of June 30, 2019, the State’s investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for
governmental activities totaled $5.8 billion and $2.3 billion for its business-type activities. The state’s
capital assets include land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, mineral rights, roads,
highways and bridges. The change in the State’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was
a modest decrease of .34 percent in total, for governmental activities decrease of .69 percent and increase
of .84 percent for business-type activities.

The State has elected to use the depreciation method to account for infrastructure assets (roads and bridges).
Under this method, the State allocates the cost of infrastructure assets over their estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense. Expenditures to refurbish infrastructure are capitalized and cost depreciated. Under
the allowable methodology, termed the modified approach, infrastructure is capitalized and all expenditures
except those adding to capacity are expensed. The state did not elect to use the modified approach for
infrastructure assets.

Refer to Note 6 of the financial statements for additional information on capital assets.

Long-term Debt Activity

The State Constitution and Law authorizes the State to issue general obligation bonds, severance tax bonds,
and revenue bonds to finance or refinance the cost of State capital outlay projects authorized by law. General
obligation bonds are secured by the full faith and credit of the State and payable from legally restricted
revenues. During the past year, the State continued to maintain a quality bond rating from Moody’s
Investors Services (Moody’s) and Standard & Poor’s Corporation (S&P) on all State bonds.

21



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

The State had the following bond ratings at June 30, 2019:

State of New Mexico
Bond Ratings at June 30, 2019

Standard

Bonds Moody's & Poor's

General Obligation Bonds AaliStable A A Stable
Severance Tax Bonds Aa?/Stable AA_/Stable
Supplemental Serverance Tax Bonds Aai/Stable A+/Stable
State Transportation Revenue Bonds Senior Lien Aal/Stable AA+/Stable
State Transportation Revenue Bonds Subordinate Lien AaliStable A A Stable

Revenue Bonds issuances during the year totaled $83 million.

Refer to Note 8 to the financial statements for additional information on the State’s long-term debt and

other liabilities.

State of New Mexico
Net Outstanding Bonded Debt as of June 30, 2019
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total
Percentage
Gover Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government Change

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2018 to 2019

General Obligation Bonds, Net $ 350,925 $ 411,525  $ -8 - 8 350,925  § 411,525 (14.7) %
Severance Tax Bonds, Net 814,370 943,670 - - 814,370 943,670 (13.7) %
Revenue Bonds, Net 1,221,323 1,276,703 865,272 909,046 2,086,595 2,185,749 “4.5) %
Bond Premium, Discount, Net 257,988 304,222 41,791 46,147 299,781 350,369 (14.4) %
Total Bonds Payable $ 2,644,607 S 2,936,121 § 907,063 $ 955,194 $ 3,551,671 $ 3,891,315 8.7 %
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ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

Economic Factors Affecting New Mexico’s Fiscal Year 2019 Budget

New Mexico utilizes a consensus revenue estimating group (CREG) comprised of legislative and classified
executive economists to forecast General Fund revenue so that the Executive and Legislature work with the
same revenue forecast in preparing their respective General Fund operating budget recommendations. The
CREQG bases its State General revenue forecast on forecasts of the U.S. economy from IHS Global Insight
and Moody’s Analytics in combination with forecasts of the New Mexico economy prepared by the
University of New Mexico’s Bureau of Business and Economic Research and Moody’s Analytics.
Economic inputs are supplemented with information provided by state agencies, the Congressional Budget
Office, and other national data sources. Historical information on the value and volume of crude oil and
natural gas produced in the state is derived from the state’s GenTax Database reporting system, and product
price forecasts are derived from the national economic forecasting services and other sources.

Trends in the U.S. Economy

The U.S. economy continued to grow in State fiscal year 2019. The national economy, as measured by real
gross domestic, grew by 2.6 percent in fiscal year 2019. Total employment levels averaged 2.4 million, or
1.5 percent, above fiscal year 2018. U.S. average hourly wages grew by 3.2 percent, exceeding inflation of
2.1 percent.

U.S. economic growth grew at a moderate pace in fiscal year 2019, with GDP growth of 2.6 percent. In
fiscal year 2019 the international trade war created economic uncertainty and national analytics firms have
warned of a potential recession on the horizon. The Federal Reserve is expected to lower short-term interest
rates headed into fiscal year 2020, in an effort to bolster US economic strength.

In 2020 the economic outlook for the national economy has changed drastically. In calendar 2020Q1 the
national economy is either in a recession or headed into one by 2020Q2. This is due to unprecedented policy
actions around the world designed to contain the Covid-19 outbreak. Causing additional uncertainty has
been the Saudi Arabia-Russia price war which has flooded the international market with an oversupply of
oil. Coupled with the collapse in economic activity due to Covid-19 the national economy faces a
recessionary event in 2020.

The economic outlook does not incorporate the changes in oil prices in 2020 as a result of the Covid-19
outbreak and the Saudi Arabia-Russia price war.

New Mexico Economy

The New Mexico economy grew moderately in fiscal year 2019 and the energy sector continued to provide
significant contributions. Reflective of New Mexico economic growth, state wages and salaries grew by
4.9 percent and total personal income in the state grew by 4.6 percent. During fiscal year 2019, New Mexico
employment growth averaged 1.9 percent, adding 15,800 jobs. During fiscal year 2019 the Mining Sector
has continued to grow setting new record levels for rig count, oil production, and taxable gross receipts.
The Mining sector added 2,000 jobs during fiscal year 2019. Other sectors driving growth in fiscal year
2019 were the Construction Sector, the Professional and Business Services Sector, and the Leisure and
Hospitality sector increasing employment by 3,100 jobs, 2,000 jobs, and 1,800 jobs respectively.
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Natural gas prices remained low in fiscal year 2019. Oil prices in fiscal year 2019 have remained lower
than oil prices in fiscal year 2018. However, this has been offset by record levels of oil production in fiscal
year 2019. Average New Mexico prices in fiscal year 2019 for crude oil and natural gas were $51.80 per
barrel and $3.05 per mcf, respectively. New Mexico continued to be the third largest producing state for oil
and the ninth largest for natural gas.

General Fund Revenue and Reserve Outlook

According to the December 2019 consensus revenue estimate, fiscal year 2019 recurring revenue is
expected to have grown by 17.5 percent to over $8 billion, while year-end financial reserves are estimated
to be 28.9 percent of recurring appropriations. The growth in the revenue estimate is due to the increased
oil and natural gas productions and the related revenues (both direct severance and direct gross receipts tax
receipts from the industry) in fiscal year 2019 added to growth in personal and corporate income taxes and
earnings on state balances.

Fiscal year 2020 recurring revenues are estimated to decline slightly by 2.9 percent when compared to fiscal
year 2019. Total revenues for fiscal year 2020 are estimated to be around $7.7 billion. The decline is due
to an above average mineral rents and royalties payment received in fiscal year 2019. Mineral rent and
royalties revenues are expected to return to trend in fiscal year 2020.

Oil and natural gas- related revenues are projected to be even higher than fiscal year 2019 levels as oil
volumes continue to grow in fiscal year 2020. New Mexico oil prices are projected to average $52.00 per
barrel in fiscal year 2020. Natural gas prices have remained low and flat during the time period considered.
New Mexico has vast amounts of natural gas in proved reserves. Natural gas production has increased as
the energy industry increases its oil production. New Mexico is currently experiencing an oversupply of
natural gas production. Putting downward on natural gas prices. New Mexico natural gas prices are
expected to average $2.10 per mefin fiscal year 2020. Oil volumes are projected to increase by 16.5 percent
and natural gas volumes are estimated to increase by 3.1 percent.

Oil and natural gas related growth, including severance, federal mineral leasing bonus and royalty payments
and gross receipts tax revenue growth associated with oil exploration, is expected to be the largest driver
of General Fund revenue growth in fiscal year 2020. Non-energy related growth in gross receipts tax is
also expected as the Rio Grande corridor is expected to continue to see moderate growth, and food and
medical hold harmless distributions to local governments continue to be phased out. Distributions from the
Permanent Funds are also expected to contribute to growth, increasing general fund revenue by an estimated
$35 million in fiscal year 2020 due to a higher average 5-year market value driven by fund growth. Fiscal
year 2020 ending reserves are projected to be $2,406.7 million or 34 percent of recurring appropriations if
no additional FY 2020 supplemental or special appropriations are made mid-year during the 2020
legislative session.

New Mexico is an energy state with a high degree of sensitivity to changes in the oil and natural gas markets.
Energy-related revenues contribute significantly to the general fund. The economic outlook does not
incorporate the changes oil prices in 2020 as a result of the Covid-19 outbreak and the Saudi Arabia-Russia
price war. As this data are not available yet. These economic uncertainties are likely to negatively impact
net income. Other financial impacts could occur though such potential impacts are unknown at this time.
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CONTACT THE STATE’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

The Department of Finance and Administration prepared this report. Questions concerning the information
provided or requests for additional financial information may be addressed to:

State of New Mexico

Department of Finance and Administration
Financial Control Division

407 Galisteo Street

Bataan Memorial Building, Room 166
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2019
(In Thousands)

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted

Investment in State General Fund Investment Pool
Investment in Local Government Investment Pool

Internal Balances
Due From Component Units
Due From Primary Government
Due from Higher Educational Institutions
Receivables, Net
Loans Receivable, Net
Investments
Due from Broker
Prepaid Expenses
Inventories
Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Unrestricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Investments
Loans Receivable, Net
Receivables, Net
Due From Component Units
Investments
Derivative Instruments - Interest Rate Swaps
Net Pension Assets
Other Noncurrent Assets
Nondepreciable Capital Assets
Other Capital Assets, Net

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Interest Rate Swaps

Deferred Charge on Refunding
Deferred Outflows - OPEB
Deferred Outflows - Pension

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

1442562 $ 1,049,744 $ 2,492,306 177,883
15,613 34,050 49,663 275,333
5,503,539 188,258 5,691,797 -
- 98,080 98,080 18,156
153 (153) - -
6,396 11,470 17,866 -
- - - 7,349
204 - 204 -
2,045,935 479,577 2,525,512 36,014
20,402 10,745 31,147 164,936
5 506,702 506,707 34,195
337,302 - 337,302 -
9,041 5,194 14,235 635
31,851 28,749 60,600 425
7,089 18,135 25,224 3,605
9,420,092 2,430,551 11,850,643 718,531
- 52,446 52,446 -
725 82,744 83,469 47,829
- 58,293 58,293 1,654,296
6,976 210,899 217,875 1,730,762
11,229 - 11,229 -
- 4,053 4,053 -
22,901,217 575,306 23,476,523 282,995
- 854 854 -
18,485 - 18,485 -
- 21,778 21,778 88,854
1,291,387 269,850 1,561,237 22,363
5,822,467 2,318,135 8,140,602 83,574
30,052,486 3,594,358 33,646,844 3,910,673
39,472,578 6,024,909 45,497.487 4,629,204
- 7,186 7,186 -
70,901 4,792 75,693 1,120
21,469 19,594 41,063 4,255
725,313 866,358 1,591,671 81,356
817,683 897,930 1,715,613 86,731

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2019
(In Thousands)

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Accrued Interest
Unearned Revenue
Due to Primary Government
Due to Component Units
Due To Higher Educational Institutions
Due To Broker
Intergovernmental Payables
Other Obligations
Funds Held for Others
Bonds Payable - Current Portion:
Other Liabilities - Current Portion

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bonds Payable, Net of Current Portion:
Due to Primary Government
Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB Liability
Other Liabilities, Net of Current Portion
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflow - Pension
Deferred Inflow - OPEB
Deferred Inflow - other

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Nonexpendable:
Financial Aid
Endowment
Other Purposes
Expendable:
Highway Construction and Maintenance
Education
Debt Service
Capital Projects
Scholarships
Unemployment and Insurance
Loan Programs
Other Purposes
Unrestricted Net Position

Total Net Position

Primary Government
Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
524,408 §$ 212,390 § 736,798  $ 16,259
66,336 92,960 159,296 24,229
24,672 19 24,691 -
14,682 89,949 104,631 2,268
- - - 14,613
17,483 53 17,536 -
14,476 53 14,529 -
368,102 - 368,102 -
163,368 89 163,457 -
223,042 1,439 224,481 -
408,870 8,681 417,551 10,835
339,899 50,108 390,007 138,157
633,183 153,206 786,389 427,336
2,798,521 608,947 3,407,468 633,697
2,304,708 856,956 3,161,664 2,324,487
- - - 4,053
3,341,570 3,485,718 6,827,288 263,215
1,035,068 432,301 1,467,369 63,324
181,781 136,351 318,132 131,500
6,863,127 4,911,326 11,774,453 2,786,579
9,661,648 5,520,273 15,181,921 3,420,276
161,025 94,489 255,514 9,513
267,443 56,483 323,926 40,476
10,187 813 11,000 4,969
438,655 151,785 590,440 54,958
5,826,283 1,770,690 7,596,973 40,125
- 153,112 153,112 -
- 95,520 95,520 -
- 13,071 13,071 466,298
647,943 - 647,943 -
143,817 667 144,484 -
21,091 69,010 90,101 82,223
1,580,293 86,523 1,666,816 -
- 23,781 23,781 -
- 482,104 482,104 -
- 375,074 375,074 -
25,186,646 87,215 25,273,861 621,297
(3,216,115) (1,905,986) (5,122,101) 30,758
30,189,958 § 1,250,781  § 31,440,739 § 1,240,701

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
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Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General Control
Culture, Recreation, and Natural Resources
Highway and Transportation
Judicial
Legishtive
Public Safety
Regulation and Licensing
Health and Human Services
Education
Interest on Long-term Debt
Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities:
Educational Institutions
Public Schools Insurance
Environmental Loans
Miners' Colfax Medical Center
‘Unemployment Insurance
State Fair - EXPO
Other Business-type Activities
Total Business-type Activities

Total Primary Government

Discretely Presented Component Units
New Mexico Finance Authority
New Mexico Mortgage Finance Authority
Other Major Component Units
Nonmajor Component Units
Total Component Unit Activities

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Operating Capital Primary Government
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Component
Expenses Services C i C ibuti Activities Total Units
949926 $ 2,563,050 $ 17,233 8 - 8 1,630,357 § - S 1,630,357 $ -
263,383 57,330 50,538 - (155,515) - (155,515) -
876,159 115,639 29,010 376,591 (354,919) - (354,919) -
341,818 17,873 3,136 - (320,809) - (320,809) -
28,024 - - - (28,024) - (28.024) -
548,909 44,304 60,005 - (444,600) - (444,600) -
194,956 41915 2,163 - (150,878) - (150,878) -
7,864,173 167,077 5,727,142 - (1,969,954) - (1,969,954) -
3,483,071 6474 474,754 - (3,001,843) - (3.001,843) -
130,183 - - - (130,183) - (130,183) -
14,680,602 3,013,662 6,363,981 376,591 (4,926,368) - (4,926,368) -
3,844,396 1,732,441 642,171 23,997 - (1,445,787) (1,445,787) -
370,389 375,555 - - - 5,166 5,166 -
2,726 - 7.859 - - 5,133 5,133 -
37,506 16,875 8.809 - - (11.822) (11,822) -
137,995 189 4,446 - - (133,360) (133,360) -
15,919 12,182 - - - (3.737) (3.737) -
22,846 22,099 - - - (747) (747) -
4,431,777 2,159,341 663,285 23,997 - (1,585,154) (1,585,154) -
19,112,379 § 5,173,003 § 7,027,266 $ 400,588 (4,926,368) (1,585,154) (6,511,522) -
104,622 $ 57,981 § 11,588 § - - - - (35,053)
51,108 14,049 78,249 - - - - 41,190
128,113 145,429 43,081 - - - - 60,397
219,466 2,330 45,350 - - - - (171,786)
503,309 $ 219789 § 178,268  $ - - - - (105,252)
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Individual Income 1,713,643 - 1,713,643 -
Corporate Income 179,781 - 179,781 -
Gross Receipts Taxes 2,869,466 - 2,869,466 -
Business Privilege 2,531,119 - 2,531,119 -
Unemployment Insurance 18,510 126,103 144,613 -
Other Taxes 4,849 - 4,849 -
Payment to the State of New Mexico - - - (75.080)
Payment From State of New Mexico - - - 197,697
Operating Investment Income 1,407,042 23,776 1,430,818 -
Capital Gain 7,792 - 7,792 -
Non Operating Investment Income and Other - 50,207 50,207 34,278
Miscellaneous 434,631 258,532 693,163 20,704
Transfers, Net (843,055) 843,055 - -
Total Net General Revenues and Transfers 8,323,778 1,301,673 9,625,451 177,599
Change in Net Position 3,397,410 (283,481) 3,113,929 72,347
Net Position - Beginning, as Restated -
See Note 9.C. 26,792,548 1,534,262 28,326,810 1,168,354
Net Position - Ending $ 30,189.958  $ 1,250,781 S 31,440,739 $ 1,240,701

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General Fund
This fund is the principal operating fund of the State. It accounts for financial resources of the general
government except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Debt Service Fund
This fund accumulates resources in order to pay the debt service on the State’s long-term debt.

Capital Projects Fund
This fund accounts for all resources used to fund the capital improvement projects in the State.

Severance Tax Fund
This fund accounts for the annual portion of severance taxes generated from the production of minerals and

other natural resources and distributes the monies to the State General Fund.

Land Grant Fund
This fund accounts for all of the resources of the Land Grant Fund.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30,2019

(In Thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investment in the State General Fund Investment Pool
Prepaid Expenses
Due From Other Funds
Due From Higher Educational
Due from Other Parties
Feceivables, Net
Investments
Inventories
Other Assets

Total Assets

LIARILITIES

Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Due To Other Funds
Due to Brokers
Intergovernmental Payables
Funds Held For Others
Other Obligations
Uneamed Revenue

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unawvailable Revenues

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned (Deficit)

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Fund Balances

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

General
Fund

Capital
Projects
Fund

41634
2928344
903
29.027
204
6.132
2013313
243.280
31.851

6

1,648,769

5204719

450451
63430
309.930
3515
171,592
407.335
§72.103
14,447

2,094 803

103,169

154

103.169

154

47309
1,389,540
35352
15472
L607.072

1,378,343

3.004.745

5204719

1,662,109




STATE OF NEW MEXICO

BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30,2019

(In Thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investment in the State General Fund Investment Pool
Prepaid Expenses
Due From Other Funds
Due From Higher Educational
Due from Other Parties
Receivables, MNet
Investments
Inventones
Other Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Due To Other Funds
Due to Brokers
Interzovernmental Payables
Funds Held For Others
Other Oblizations
Unearmned Revenue

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFL.OWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenues

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned (Deficit)

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Fund Balances

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Severance Tax

Fund

Land Grant
Fund

Total
Governmental
Funds

5

274,526
240,675

91,088
5.006.486

5 1.128.828
181521

153.740

1.438.900
5,303,688
908
313,102
204

6.387
2.414.008
22.801223
31.851

279,843

508,912

63452
312,949
368,103
188244
407,333
677,582

14,447

279,843

2343024

16.047.479

19,047,479
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET -

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30,2019

(In Thousands)

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Amounts reportad for governmental activitizs in the Statement of Net Position are
differsnt because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therafore ars not reportad as assets in governmental funds: (Ss2 Notz 6)

Land and Other Nondepreciable Assets (less 5826 ISF) 5 1,290,561
Buildings, Equipment, Infrastructure and Other Depreciable Assets

(not including § 143 293 in Internal Service Fund balances) 16,470,667
Accumulated Depreciation (less 587,830 ISF) (10,703,648

Assets (receivables) not available to provide current resources are offset with
deferred inflows of resources in the fund statements. The reduction of the deferred
inflows and recognition of ravenue increases net position in the Statement of Net Position.

Prepaid warranty expenses recorded as expenditurss in the governmental funds and
recorded as an azzet, nat of amortization, in the Statement of Net Position

The deferred lozz on bond refunding issues is not recognized in the governmental
funds, but is recognized in the government-wids statements.

The net pension asset for the pension fund which has a positive
net position is not reported in the funds statements

The pension and OPEE related deferred outflows of resources are not recopnized in the
government-wids statements, and neither are the deferrad inflows of resources. 735325

(less $11,457 and (36,348) for ISF (421,920

The deferred gain on refunding is not recognized in the governmental funds, but
is recopnized the government-wide statements

Internal service funds (ISF) are used by management to chargs for certain activities,
such as insurance, information technology, fleet operations, printing, and
telecommunications. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are
included in governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position.

Accrued intersst payabls is not recognized in the governmental funds statements

Long-term liabilities, are not due and payable in the current period and therefors
are not reperted in the fund financial statements:

Net pension liability (less 530,887 for ISF) S (3,290,683

Net OPEB liability (Less 516,331 for ISF) (1,018,537

Bonds payable, including bond premiuvm and loans payable to component unit (2.644.607)

Compensated absences, notes payable, contingent liabilities, and other habilities (192.702)
Other

Total Net Pozition - Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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103,323

8,123

70,901

18,483

313,403

(10,187)

15,023

(24.672)

(7.146.529)

(1,439)

30,189,958
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(In Thousands)

REVENUES
Taxes:
General and Selective Taxes
Income Taxes
Total Taxes
Other Revenues:
Federal Revenue
Investment Income (Loss)
Rentals and Royalties
Charges for Services
Licenses, Fees, and Permits
Assessments
Miscellaneous and Other
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Culture, Recreation, and Natural Resources

Education

General Control

Health and Human Services

Highway and Transportation

Judicial

Legislative

Public Safety

Regulation and Licensing
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:

Principal

Interest and Other Charges

Total Expenditures
Excess Revenues Over (Under)

Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Bonds Issued

Bond Premium

Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets
Transfers In

Transfers to Higher Ed

Transfers Out

Payment to Refunding Bond Escrow Agent

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning, as Restated -
Due to Change in Inventory
See Note 9.C.

Fund Balances - Ending

Capital
General Debt Service Projects
Fund Fund Fund
4,622,354  $ 772,015 6,975
1,694,822 - -
6,317,176 772,015 6,975
6,714,376 - 20,097
122,313 30,777 369
1,331,343 - 3,389
164,815 3,461 116
316,276 2,180 -
14,976 - 7
376,812 708 11,134
15,358,087 809,141 42,087
221,378 167 22,393
3,439,729 - 41,201
418,910 1,500 46,220
7,829,540 1,940 24,175
464,368 - 39,563
324,502 23 1,119
27,331 - -
539,302 - 1,263
162,600 - 25,674
356,868 308 130,327
94,031 473,613 -
52,634 67,790 -
13,931,193 545,341 331,935
1,426,894 263,800 (289,848)
53,755 - 256,363
7,170 - -
1,577 - -
1,082,250 9,351 835,619
(761,232) - (44,955)
(858,314) (246,097) (95,350)
(474,794) (236,746) 951,677
952,100 27,054 661,829
130 - -
2,142,515 508,130 916,666
3,094,745  § 535,184 1,578,495

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(In Thousands)

REVENUES
Taxes:
General and Selective Taxes
Income Taxes
Total Taxes
Other Revenues:
Federal Revenue
Investment Income (Loss)
Rentals and Royalties
Charges for Services
Licenses, Fees, and Permits
Assessments
Miscellaneous and Other
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Culture, Recreation, and Natural Resources

Education

General Control

Health and Human Services

Highway and Transportation

Judicial

Legislative

Public Safety

Regulation and Licensing
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:

Principal

Interest and Other Charges

Total Expenditures
Excess Revenues Over (Under)

Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Bonds Issued

Bond Premium

Proceeds from the Sale of Capital Assets
Transfers In

Transfers to Higher Ed

Transfers Out

Payment to Refunding Bond Escrow Agent

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning, as Restated -

Due to Change in Inventory
See Note 9.C.
Fund Balances - Ending

Severance Tax Land Grant
Fund Fund

Total
Governmental
Funds

5,401,344
1,694,822

233,141 1,015,673

- 912,111

7,096,166

6,734,473
1,402,273
2,246,843
168,392
318,456
14,983
388,654

233,141 1,927,784

18,370,240

243,938
3,480,930
467,422
7,855,655
503,931
325,644
27,331
540,565
188,274
487,503

567,644
120,424

14,809,261

233,141 1,926,992

3,560,979

245,455 -

- (64,474)

(231,157) (717,611)

310,118
7,170
1,577

2,172,675
(870,661)
(2,148,529)

14,298 (782,085)

(527,650)

247,439 1,144,907

5,280,599 17,902,572

3,033,329

130
26,750,482

$ 5,528,038 $ 19,047,479

29,783,941

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(In Thousands)

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 5 3,033,329

The change in Net Position reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Activities is different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures; however, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives as depreciation expense. In the current period, these amounts are:
Capital outlay 5 487,503
Depreciation expense (less § 9,578 ISF) (513.464) (25,961)
Excess of capital outlay over depreciation expense

Net effect of revenues reperted on the acerual basis in the Statement of Activities
that do not provide current financial resources and thus are not reported as
revenues in the funds until available 105,323

Internal service funds are used by management to charge for certain activities,

such as fleet operations, risk management. printing and records, communications

services, and information processing. The net revenue (expense) of the internal

service funds is reported with governmental activities 47,128
The governmental funds statements report warranty costs as expenditures, but

the government-wide statements report these as prepaid expenses, net of amortization. 8.123

Net capital gain on the disposal of a building is not recognized in the funds financial statements,
but is recognized in the govnernment-wide statements. 5,940

The change in estimate of a long-term receivable used for settlement of the Indian Water
Rights liability is recognized only in the government-wide financial statements. 6,000

Eond proceeds, notes, and capital leases provide current financial resources to
governmental activities by issuing debt, which increases long-term liabilities in the
Statement of Met Position. Repayments of the bond, notes, and capital lease principal
are expenditures in the governmental funds, but reduce liabilities in the Statement of
Net Position:

Payment of Bond and Capital Lease Principal 5

Bond and Note Proceeds, Net 246,026

Governmental funds report the effect of bond premium and discount
items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the 5 (9.316)
statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences. 53,164 43,848

The deferred loss (less deferred gain) on refunding bond issues is capitalized and the
amortization is reported in the Statement of Activities. (20,876)
Pension expense and OPEB expense (revenue) of governmental funds is recognized in the

Statement of Activities but not in the funds statements S

(204,329)

Expenditures are recognized in the governmental funds when paid or due for items normally

paid with available financial resources; however, the Statement of Activities is presented

on the accrual basis and expenses and labilities are reported when incurred, regardless of when

financial resources are available or expenditures are paid or due. This adjustment combines

the net change of the following balances:
Compensated Absences Expense 5 (1227
Note Payable (1.250)
Mative American Water Rights Liability 6,974
Accrued Interest on BEonds Payable (925)
Pollution Remediation Obligation 23
Contingent Liability 133,600 157,195

Other (4.433)
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 5 3.397.410

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

PROPRIETARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Educational Institutions Fund

This fund accounts for the resources used to operate the seven institutions of higher education and three
other schools, which were created by the Constitution of the State of New Mexico. These institutions are the
University Of New Mexico, New Mexico State University, New Mexico Highlands University, New
Mexico Institute of Mining and Technology, Western New Mexico University, Eastern New Mexico
University, Northern New Mexico College, New Mexico Military Institute, New Mexico School for the
Visually Handicapped, and the New Mexico School for the Deaf.

Non-major Enterprise Funds
Non-major enterprise funds are presented in the Financial Section - Required and Supplemental
Information.

Internal Service Fund

Combining financial statements for the internal service funds are presented in the Financial Section -
Required and Supplemental Information.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2019
(In Thousands)
Business-type Activitizs - Enterprize Funds Govarnmental
Nonmajor Aptivities -
Eduveational Enterprize Internal
Institutions Funds Total Service Funds
ASSETS
Corrent Azssts:
Cazh 2nd Cash Equivalents 5 534000 ¢ 514754 % 1,048744 % -
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Rastricted 34,030 - 34,030 -
Investment in the State General Fund Investment Pool - 138,238 183,238 157,352
Investment in the Local Government Investment Pool 33,524 64,156 53,030 -
Dz From Other Funds - - - 16,279
Dz From Component Unit 11470 - 11,470 -
Facaivables, Nat 421,639 68,683 480,322 7,747
Invastments 306,702 - 306,702 -
Invanterizs 27,122 1,627 28,748 -
Othear Current Assats 23,011 318 23329 11
Total Current Aszets 1,592 508 337,796 2430704 221,339
Noncurrent Assets:
Unsastricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 32446 - 32446 -
Bestrictad Cash and Cash Equivalents 82,7 - 82,744 -
Loans Racaivable 13,227 192,672 210,899 -
Inwvastments 345431 29,873 575,306 -
Restrictzd Invastments 38,203 - 58,203 -
Dz From Component Units 4033 - 4.033 -
Derivative Instroments - Intarast Fate Swaps 334 - 334 -
Other Noncvrrent Assats 21,778 - 21,778 -
Nondepracizble Capital Assats 263,078 1,772 269,350 326
Capital Assets, Nat 2,256 460 61,675 2,318,135 35442
Total Noncurrent Assets 3,308,384 283,994 3,394,358 36,268
Total Aszets 4,801,272 1,123,790 6,025,062 278,157
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Interest Rate Swaps 7,186 - 7,186 -
Daferrad Charge on Refunding 4,782 - 4,782 -
Deferrad Qutflows - OPEB 16,245 285 18,584 342
Dafzrrad Cutflows - Pension 356,795 9,563 366,338 11,115
Total Daferrad Outflows of Resources 383,072 9,338 397,930 11 457

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019

(In Thousands)
Business-tyvpe Activitis - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Nonmajor Aetivities -
Educational Enterprize Intarnal
Institutions Funds Total Servics Funds
LIABILITIES
Current Lizbilitizs:
Accornts Payable 5 210217 § 2173 % 2123%0 S 15,500
Deficiency in SGFIF - - -
Accrued Lizbilities 37,172 5,807 92,579 383
Unezarnzd Revanue 63,360 21,080 30,0440 235
Dz to Other Funds - 153 153 16,278
Due to Component Unit 33 - 33 -
Due To Higher Educational Insitutions - 33 53 -
Funds Held for Others 1.967 714 3,681 6
Bonds Payable, Current Portion 48078 1,030 50,108 -
Other Liabilitias, Currant Portion 121387 33,347 154734 91,745
Total Current Liabilities 344,743 64,357 609,100 124,647
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bonds Payable, Mat of Current Portions 843,951 7,993 836,956 -
Nzt Pension Lizbility 3441938 43,780 3485718 50,887
Nzt OPEB Liability 413,077 1422 432,301 16,531
Other Liabilitizs, Nat of Current Portion 60,810 75,5 136,351 75,978
Total Noncurrent Liabilitiez 4,765,786 141,540 4,511,326 143,386
Total Liabilities 5,314,529 205,397 5,520,426 268,043
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflow - Pension 92,531 1,553 04 459 2,276
Dafarred Inflow - OPEB 52,807 3,676 36483 42172
Dafarred Inflow - Other 313 - 813 -
Total Daferrad Inflows of Resovress 146,151 5,634 151,783 6,543
NET POSITION
Mat Invastment in Capital Assats 1,716,268 54422 1,770,690 56,268
Rastricted:
Nonexpendabla:
Scholarships and $tudent Loans 153,112 - 153,112 -
Endowment 95,32 - 95,52 -
Othar Purposes 13,738 - 13,738 -
Expendabls:
Dizbt Sarvics 68,010 - 65,010 -
Capital Projects 36,32 - 36,32 -
Scholarships 23,781 - 23,781 -
Unemployment and Insvrancs - 432,104 432,104 -
Loans 15,613 359,461 375,074 -
Other Purposas 17,682 66,333 37215
Unrastrictad (Deficit) (1,862,333) (43.403) (1,905,936)
Total Net Pozition 5 328664 % 922,117 1250781 § 15,023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

(In Thousands)
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Nonmajor Activities -
Educational Enterprise Internal
Institutions Funds Total Service Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services $ 170,868  $ 426,900 $ 597,768 § 498,001
Unemployment Insurance - 126,103 126,103 -
Federal Revenue 371,603 21,115 392,718 -
State, Local, and Private Grants and Contracts 121,872 81 121,953 -
Loans and Other Income - 8,336 8,336 -
Student Tuition and Fees, Net 268,011 - 268,011 -
Patient Services/Clinical Operations 1,293,562 - 1,293,562 -
Other Operating Revenues 116,738 4,097 120,835 2,238
Total Operating Revenues 2,342,654 586,632 2,929,286 500,239
OPERATING EXPENSES
Benefits, Claims, and Premiums - 144,077 144,077 -
Education and General Administration 3,030,830 - 3,030,830 -
General and Administrative - 424,448 424,448 466,962
Insurance Losses - - - -
Depreciation and Amortization 173,869 4,991 178,860 9,578
Other Operating Expenses 610,057 13,863 623,920 457
Total Operating Expenses 3,814,756 587,379 4,402,135 476,997
Operating Income (Loss) (1,472,102) (747) (1,472,849) 23242
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Private Grants and Gifts 40,760 - 40,760 -
State Permanent Fund Income - - - -
Government Grants and Contracts 229,808 - 229,808 -
Interest and Investment Income 50,206 15,440 65,646 4,806
Interest and Other Expenses on Capital
Interest-related Debt (29,643) - (29,643) -
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets v 569 7 (41) 58 275
Other Revenue (Expense) 11,962 3,255 15,217 9,315
Total Nonoperating Revenues
(Expenses) 7 303,662 7 18,654 322316 7 14396
Income (Loss) Before Transfers and Other
Revenues (Expenses) (1,168,440) 17,907 (1,150,533) 37,638
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND ENDOWMENTS
Capital Grants and Gifts 11,003 - 11,003 -
Permanent Fund/Endowment Contributions 12,994 - 12,994 -
Total Capital Contributions and Endowments 23,997 - 23,997 -
TRANSFERS
Transfers In 870,661 13,973 884,634 36,406
Transfers Out (40,600) (979) (41,579) (26,916)
Total Transfers 830,061 12,994 843,055 9,490
Change in Net Position (314,382) 30,901 (283,481) 47,128
Net Position - Beginning, as Restated -
See Note 9.C. 643,046 891,216 1,534,262 (32,105)
Net Position - Ending $ 328,664 $ 922,117 § 1,250,781  § 15,023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

(In Thousands)

CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from:

Faes for Sarvice

f Products

fts, Grants, and Contracts
Loan 2nd Note Repayments
Unemplovment Insurance
Other Sovress

Cash Payments to or for:
Svppliers
Employees
Unemployment Bensfits
Student Loans and Loan Losses
Other Payments

Net Cash Provided {(Uszed) by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING

fts for Other Than Capital Purposss

Interzovernmental Recsipts

Other

Net Cash Provided (Uzed) by
Noneapital Finaneing Activities

CASHFLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Capital Assats
Capital Gifts, Grants, and Contracts
Capital Diebt Service Payments - Principal
Capital Debt Szrvice Payments - Intarast
Capital Contributions and Diebt Procesds
Procesds from Sale of Capital Assats
Other
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental

Nonmajor Activities -

Educational Enterprize Internal
Institutions Funds Total Service Funds
$ 266,132 3 408907 S $ 495 037
1,421,613 20,168 -
301,038 12,287 -
27443 10,866 -
- 142434 -
41267 11,516 %
(1,068,285) (91,281) (447.317)
(1,891,323) (28,441} (20.851)
- (138,875) -

(49427 )
26,860

697,204 21,681 718,975 36,405
(40,600) (8,636) (49.286) (26,917)
95,343 - 93,343 -
236,911 1,501 238412 -
4476 1,179 5,653 13 341
993424 15,675 1,009,099 22,828
(198,056) (189,333) (3,960)
(42,053) (12 -
(33,253) - -
120,383 - -
1452 - 236
(760) - (4,695)
(151 (3121} (154,308) (10,419)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

(In Thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Rzcsipts of Interast and Dividends of Investments
Purchase of Invastments
Rzesipts of Rant
Proceeds from Sale and Maturity of Invastments
Net Cazh Provided (Uszed) by Investing Activities

Net Increasze (Decreaze) in Cazh
Cazh and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cazh and Cazh Equivalents at End of Year

Cazh and Cazh Equivalents
Unrestrictzd
Restricted
Investment in the Local Government Investment Pool
Investment in the State General Fund Investment Pool
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
(LOS5) TO NET CASH FROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITES
Oparating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)
te Mat Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activitizs:
Depraciation and Ameortization
Bad Debt Expense
Realized (Gain) Loss on Disposal of Assats
Unrealized (Gain) Loss on Invastments
Change in Nat Pension Liahility
Change in Nt OPEB Liability
Change in Deferred Outflow of Resourees
Change in Deferred Inflow of Resources
Nat Changes in Assets and Liabilities Related to
Oparating Activities:
Short-term Investments
Receivables Due From Other Funds
NotesLoans
Inventories
Prapaid Items/Other Assats
Insurance Claims Payable
Accounts Payable/Acerved Liabilities Due
To Other Funds
Loss Adjustments
Unsarnad Revenee
Net Caszh Provided (Uzed) by Operating Activities

Business-type Activitizs - Enterprise Funds Govarnmental
Nenmajor Aptivities -
Edueational Entarprize Internal

Institutions Funds Total Szrvics Funds

5 26,399 8 13,396 5 40495 % 4,807

(260,394) - (260,394) -

16,349 - 16,349 -

261,197 4 261,193 -

43251 13,892 37,143 4,807

7,831 34,133 41,962 44077

730,323 733,030 1463353 153,776

3 738154 % 767168 5 13505322 § 197 353

5 387435 % 514754 5 1,102,189 % -
116,795 - 116,795

33,925 64,156 93,081 -

- 138,253 138,238 197,352

3 738134 § 767168 5 1305323 § 197,352

3 (1472,102) 3 (747) 5 (1472,348) 3§ 23,242

173,877 4,881 178,368 8.577

123,362 2,101 125,963 -

22 374 458 -

(976) - (976) -

306,616 4,168 310,734 711

(54200 342 (3.078) (1,831}

145,233 - 145,233 -

14,622 - 14,622 -

(194,862) 234 (184,728) 8,818

117 (15,436) (15,369) -

1,536 22 1,757 -

2,598 &0 2,638 2

- - - (5,911

29927 4,853 34,780 (7.748)

- 6,083 6,083 -

(2,127 493 (1,629) -

5 (877057) § 7692 5 (369365 S 26,360

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

FIDUCIARY FUNDS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pension and Other Employee Benefits Trust Funds

These funds account for the resources accumulated and held for the payment of retirement and other benefits
under plans operated by the Public Employees Retirement Association, the Educational Retirement Board,
and the Retiree Health Care Authority. Pension trust funds are presented in the Financial Section - Required
and Supplemental Information.

External Investment Trust Funds

These funds account for assets held by the State in a trustee capacity. The funds are held in custody for
external participants in the New Mexico State Treasurer’s Investment Trust Funds and the State Investment
Council External Investment Trust Funds. External trust funds are presented in the Financial Section -
Required and Supplemental Information.

Private Purpose Trust Funds

These funds account for resources held under trust arrangements and which benefit individuals,
organizations, and other governmental units. These funds include the Scholarship Fund, the Education Trust
Fund, the Water Trust Fund, and the Bartlett Trust Fund. Private purpose trust funds are presented in the
Financial Section - Required and Supplemental Information.

Agency Funds

These funds are used to report resources held by various State agencies in a purely custodial capacity for
distribution to external parties. Agency funds are presented in the Financial Section - Required and
Supplemental Information.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2019
(In Thousands)
Pension and External Private
Other Empl. Investment Purpose
Benefit Trust Trust Agency
Trust Funds Funds Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,175,515  $ 2,857 8 7,966 $ 22,385
Investment in State General Fund Investment Pool 70,742 - 69,682 62,985
Investment in Local Government Investment Pool 105 - - 1,905
Investments:
U.S. Government and Agency Securities 1,110,697 - - -
International Securities 2,671,892 - - -
Corporate Equity Securities 7,423,090 - - -
Corporate and Municipal Bonds 3,258,637 - - -
Partnerships and Other Investments 14,657,210 - - -
Securities Lending Collateral Investments 341,651 - - -
Deferred Comp. Plan Invest. 630,988 - - -
Long Term Investments - 753,689 3,116,060 -
Receivables:
Brokers 1,488,485 2,850 1,217 -
Accrued Interest and Other 16,160 - 2,543 -
Participant Loans 12,813 - - 94
Due from Component Units 283 - - -
Other Receivables 137,824 1,366 3,949 354,573
Capital Assets, Net 14,139 - - -
Total Assets 33,010,231 760,762 3,201,417 $ 441,942
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows of Resources - - 532
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources - - 532
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 14,687 - 2,440 610
Accrued Liabilities 585 - 6,031 94
Due to Brokers 1,976,328 3,272 521 -
Intergovernmental Payables - - - 396,143
Unearned Revenue 421 - - -
Deposits Held in Trust 2,195 - - 26,350
Due to Component Units - - - 13,685
Due to Higher Educational Inst - - - -
Other Liabilities 366,587 20 490 5,060
Other Obligations 33 - 119,000 -
Total Liabilities 2,360,836 3,292 128,482 § 441,942
NET POSITION
Restricted for:
Pension Benefits 29,247,630 - -
Other Postemployment Benefits 756,748 - -
Defined Contribution 645,017 - -
External Investment Pool Participants - 757,470 -
Other Purposes - - 3,073,467
Net Position $ 30,649,395 $ 757,470 $ 3,073,467
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(In Thousands)
Pension and External Private
Other Empl. Investment Purpose
Benefit Trust Trust
Trust Funds Funds Funds
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employes Contributions 5 802,844 - -
Employer Contributions 882,095 - -
Member Contributions - - 942,184
Other 8 - 141,966
Total Contributions 1,685,847 - 1,084,150
Pool Participant Deposits - 764,246 -
Investment Income (Loss):
Wet Increaze (Decreaze) in
Fair Value of Investments 1,786,310 - 25,898
Interest and Dividends 457312 19472 110,190
2243822 19.472 136,088
Less Investment Expense 179,306 - 4270
Net Investment Income 2,064,516 19,472 131,818
Other Additions
General Fund Appropriation - - 20,000
Other Operating Revenues 58,316 - 43,151
Total Other Additions 38,316 - 63,131
Total Additions 3,808,679 783,718 1,279,119
DEDUCTIONS
Benesfits and Claims 2375231 - -
Distributions - 688,332 1,053,876
Refunds 47,827 - 146,162
General and Administrative Expenses 323.004 40,284 36,501
Other Operating Expenses 1231 - 18,036
Total Deductions 2,797.333 728,616 1,254,593
Change in Net Position 1,011,346 33,102 24,524
Net Position - Beginning, as Restated 20638049 702,368 3048943
Net Position - Ending 5 30,649,395 7157470 3,073,467
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

COMPONENT UNIT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

New Mexico Finance Authority

The New Mexico Finance Authority coordinates the planning and financing of state and local public
projects, provides for long-term planning and assessment of state and local capital needs, and improves
cooperation among the executive and legislative branches of state government and local governments in
financing public projects.

New Mexico Mortgage Finance Authority
The New Mexico Mortgage Finance Authority assists in the financing of housing for persons of low and
moderate income in the State.

New Mexico Lottery Authority
The Lottery Authority was created and organized for establishing and conducting the lottery to provide
revenues for the public purposes designated in the Lottery Act, which benefits the educational institutions
created by the State Constitution.

University of New Mexico Foundation
The foundation is a nonprofit corporation organized to solicit, receive, hold, invest, and transfer funds for
the benefit of the University of New Mexico.

New Mexico State University Foundation
The foundation is a nonprofit corporation organized to solicit, receive, hold, invest, and transfer funds for
the benefit of the New Mexico State University.

Non-major Component Units

There were seventeen non-major component units at June 30, 2019. Their financial information is presented
in total. They are as follows: UNM Alumni Association; UNM Lobo Club; UNM Anderson School of
Management Foundation; New Mexico Institute of Mining and Technology Research Foundation; New
Mexico Highlands University (NMHU) Foundation; NMHU Stable Isotopes Corporation; Western New
Mexico University Foundation; Eastern New Mexico University (ENMU) Foundation, ENMU Roswell
Foundation; ENMU Ruidoso Foundation; Northern New Mexico College Foundation, New Mexico
Military Institute Foundation; New Mexico School for the Visually Impaired Foundation; Cumbres &
Toltec Scenic Railroad Commission; New Mexico Renewable Transmission Authority; the New Mexico
Small Business Investment Corporation and New Mexico State-chartered Charter Schools.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

COMPONENT UNITS
June 30, 2019
(In Thousands)

ASSETS
Curent Assats:
Cash and Caszh Equivalents
Investment in Local Government
Investment Pool
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Due From Primary Government
Drue From Other Components
Feceivables, Net
Loans Feceivable, Current
Prepaid Expenszes
Other Assets
Inventory
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Investments
Loans Feceivable, Met
Due From Primary Government
Investments
Other Noneurrent Assets
Mondepraciable Capital Assats
Other Capital Assats, Net
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Charge on Refunding

Deferred Outflows -OPEB

Deferred Outflows - Penzion
Total Deferred Outflows

New Mexico

New Mexico

New Mexico Miortgage New Mexico University of State Nonmajor
Finance Finance Lottery Mew Mexico Uniwversity Component
Authority Authority Auntherity Foundation Foundation Units Total
28058 5 36,344 5 6,027 6.87¢ § 16.994 63,581 177,883
6,096 - - - 12,060 18.156
263,310 - 3,383 - - 6.238 273,333
- - - - 363 33,832 34,193
- - - - - 7,349 7,349
10,709 4183 1,167 1.016 13,289 5,650 36,014
164,921 - - - - 15 164,936
162 - 137 - - 336 633
- 3,200 - 396 - - 3,603
- - 133 - - 272 425
469,360 69,832 11,069 8291 30,646 129,333 718,531
- 47,308 - - - 521 47,829
408,804 067,233 - 229,872 - 48,387 1.654.296
1.477.564 231,937 - 1.381 - 20,080 1,730,762
- 57,501 - 6,638 141.988 76.848 282,995
- 10,983 - 23,356 49,367 2,946 88,854
319 312 744 - 20,288 22,363
233 672 83 - 77 80,105 83,574
1,887,222 1,316,148 229 263,267 191,632 248,175 3,910,673
2,336,582 1,385,980 14,298 271,558 222278 378,508 4,629.204
744 376 - - - - 1,120
- - - - - 4255 4233
- - - - - 81,356 81,336
744 376 - - - 83,611 86,731
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COMPONENT UNITS
June 30, 2019
(In Thousands)
New Mexico New Mexico
New Mexico Mhiortgage New Mexico University of State Nonmajor
Finance Finance Lottery New Mexico University Component
Authority Authority Authority Foundation Foundation Units Total
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 407 5439 2,028 158 189 4,038 16259
Accrued Liabilities 210 5.880 - 1,047 2,358 13,834 24220
Unearned Revenue - - - - - 2268 2268
Due to Primary Government - - 3.144 4.466 2,131 4.852 14613
Funds Held for Others - 10,575 - - - 260 10.833
Bonds Payable 117.215 20,942 - - - - 138,157
Other Liabilities 393,813 25477 4,507 1,583 503 1.453 427,336
Total Current Liabilities 311,645 72313 2.679 8.154 201 26,703 633,697
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Boends Payable 1,300,085 1,024,402 - - - - 2,324,487
Due to Primary Government - - - 4,053 - - 4053
Met Penszion Liability - - - - - 263215 263215
MNet OPEE Liability - - - - - 63,324 63,324
Other Liabilities - 13,368 - 2,061 47,718 68,333 131,500
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1,300,085 1,037,770 - 6.114 47,718 394,892 2,786,579
Total Liabilities 1,811,730 1,110,083 0.679 14,268 52919 421,597 3420276
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows of Resources 4280 - - - - 6380 4969
Deferred Inflows - OPEB Liability - - - 21312 - 19,164 40,476
Deferred Inflows - Pension Liability - - - - - 9.513 9513
Total Deferred Inflows 4.280 - - 21.312 - 29366 34,938
NET POSITION
MNet Investment in Capital Assets 1,054 1,134 2.971 - 77 34,839 40,125
Restricted:
Nonexpendable - - - 211,794 163,570 90,934 466,298
Expendable:
Debt Service - 61.715 - 20.508 - - 827223
Other Purposes 515,633 30.351 - - - 75,313 621297
Unrestricted Net Position (Deficit) 24,629 183,023 1,648 3.676 5.712 (1879300 30,758
Total Net Position (Deficit) 5 341316 5 276273 5§ 4.619 235978 3§ 169,359 13,156 S 1240701




STATE OF NEW MEXICO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

COMPONENT UNITS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
(In Thousands)
New Mexico New Mexico
New Mexico Mortzage New Mexico University of State Nonmajor
Finance Finance Lottery New Mexico University Component
Authority Authority Authority Foundation Foundation Units Total
Expenses $ 104622 § 51,108 § 98885 § 13436 5§ 15,792 219466 5 503,309
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services 57,981 14,049 143,631 - 1.778 2330 219,789
Operating Grants and Contributions 11,388 18,249 - 27313 13,368 43,330 178,268
Total Program Revenues 69,569 92,298 143,631 27.513 17.346 47,680 398.057
Noneperating Revenues:
Grant Revenue - - - - - - -
Net (Expenses) Revenues (35,033) 41,190 44,766 14,077 1,354 (171,786) (105232
Other Revenues & Expenses:
Payment from State of New Mexico 62,819 - - - - 134,878 197 697
Payment to State of New Mexico (4.398) - (43.110) (27.372) - - (75.080)
Other - - (2) 9.606 - 11,100 20,704
Investment Income 7020 (32 26 10,307 6,540 9517 34278
Total General Revenues 66,341 (32) (43,086) (7.639) 6,340 135,493 177,599
Change in Net Position 31,288 41,158 1,680 6418 5,004 (16,201) 12347
Net Position - Beginning, as Restated 510,028 235,115 2039 229560 161,263 20447 1,168,354
Net Position - Ending (Deficit) § 541316 5 276273 § 4619 § 235078 § 169,359 13,136 § 1.240.701
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - NOTE 1

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying basic financial statements of the State of New Mexico (the State) and its component units have
been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The State’s significant accounting policies are described below.
All dollar amounts are in thousands, except when stated.

A. Description of Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) report
information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. All fiduciary
activities are reported only in the fund financial statements. Primary government activities are distinguished between
governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities are generally financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues. The governmental activities column incorporates data
from the internal service funds as well as the governmental funds. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in
part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services. The primary government is reported separately from
certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

B. Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, the State’s financial reporting entity includes the primary government (i.e., legislative
agencies, departments and agencies, commissions, the Governor and Cabinet, boards of the Executive Branch, various
offices relating to the Judicial Branch, and the ten educational institutions created by the Constitution of the State of
New Mexico, Article XII, Section 11). The annual financial report does not include the financial statements of the
community colleges or public schools.

The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability as defined in GASB Statement
No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity (as amended). These criteria include appointing a voting majority of an
organization’s governing body and 1) the ability of the State to impose its will on that organization or 2) the potential
for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the State. Where
a State does not appoint a voting majority of an organization’s governing body, GASB standards require inclusion in
the reporting entity if an organization is fiscally dependent on the State, its resources are held for the direct benefit of
the State or can be accessed by the State, or the relationship is such that it would be misleading to exclude it.

Blended Component Units

The following blended component units are considered to be component units of the State Institutions of Higher
Education, and are thus component units of the State. Each is financially accountable to the respective institution, and
the Board of Regents (governing board) of each institution controls the finances and has appointment power over the
unit’s governing authority. Except for the University of New Mexico Retiree Welfare Benefit Trust, a fiduciary fund
of the University of New Mexico, separately issued financial statements for each of these blended component units
can be obtained by the New Mexico State Auditor’s Office.
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= STC.UNM

STC.UNM (formerly known as Science & Technology Corporation @ UNM) is a nonprofit corporation formed under
the auspices of the 1989 New Mexico University Research Park Act and the New Mexico Nonprofit Corporation Act.
The business of the corporation is to manage the commercialization of technologies developed by the University’s
faculty and manage the real estate development of the Science & Technology Park at the University of New Mexico
on the South Campus. STC.UNM, 101 Broadway Blvd. NE, Suite 1100, Albuquerque, NM 87102.

= Lobo Development Corporation

Lobo Development Corporation (LDC) was established in October 2007, under the State of New Mexico’s University
Research Park and Economic Development Act. LDC was established to benefit UNM’s Regents in the management
and development of University-Owned real estate. The activities of LDC include the acquisition, development,
disposition, and rental of University real estate. Lobo Development Corporation, 801 University Blvd. SE, Suite 207,
Albuquerque, NM 87106.

®= Lobo Energy, Inc.

Lobo Energy, Inc. (LEI) was formed by the UNM Regents in June 1998, under the University Research Park Act to
be a separate 501(c)(3) corporation wholly owned by UNM. Its responsibilities include the procurement of natural gas
and electricity, operations and maintenance of all production facilities, and energy measurement and management
systems. Lobo Energy, Inc., 800 Bradbury Dr. SE, Suite 216, Albuquerque, NM 87106.

= University of New Mexico Medical Group (UNMMG)

The UNM Medical Group, Inc., was organized in 2007. The Laws of 1989, Chapter 264, as amended created
University Research Park and Economic Development Act (the Act). UNMMG is a nonprofit corporation that was
organized under the Act. UNMMG’s purpose is to promote, advance and support the clinical, scientific, educational,
research and charitable purposes of the School of Medicine and the University of New Mexico Health Sciences Center.
UNMMG is responsible for the delivery of patient clinical services, practice oversight, and management of the
professional medical practice of UNM. The UNMMG operates 20 clinics in addition to attending at the 76 clinics of
the UNM Hospital. University of New Mexico Medical Group, 933 Bradbury Street, Suite 2222, Albuquerque, NM
87106.

= UNM - Sandoval Regional Medical Center (SRMC)

In 2009, the UNM Regents approved formation of the Medical Center. The Laws of 1989, Chapter 264, as amended
created University Research Park and Economic Development Act (the Act). SRMC is a not-for-profit corporation
that was organized under the Act. The creation of SRMC resulted from collaborations between the University of New
Mexico Medical Group and University of New Mexico Hospital and hold representation on the SRMC board of
directors. SRMC purpose is to serve as a community based academic healthcare facility. The administrative offices
are located at 3001 Broadmoor Blvd. NE, Rio Rancho, NM 87144.

= Innovate ABQ, Inc.

Innovate ABQ, Inc. is a nonprofit corporation established under the provisions of the New Mexico Nonprofit
Corporation Act and the State of New Mexico University Research Park and Economic Development Act which is
operated exclusively for charitable, scientific, and educational purposes under Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC. Innovate
ABQ, Inc., a public/private partnership, is a research and high technology business district located between the main
University campus and downtown Albuquerque, New Mexico that serves as a catalyst for a new innovation economy
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in New Mexico and other educational initiatives for the University. Innovate ABQ, Inc., 801 University Blvd. SE,
Suite 207, Albuquerque, NM 87106.

=  Arrowhead Center, Inc.

Arrowhead Center, Inc. was organized pursuant to the provisions of the State of New Mexico University Research
Park Act of 1989. It provides a financial benefit to New Mexico State University (NMSU) and was established to
foster economic development within the State through the development of research parks and University real property
as well as to protect, license and market intellectual property developed by faculty, staff and students of NMSU, as
well as members of the community. Arrowhead Center, Inc., MSC 3CR, P.O. Box 30001, Las Cruces, NM 88003.

= New Mexico Institute of Mining & Technology Employee Benefit Trust

This trust is a single-employer benefit plan organized as a legally formed trust that is tax exempt under section
501(c)(9) of the Internal Revenue Code. The trust was established to provide a funding vehicle to which participants
and the Institute contribute to prefund, in part, the cost of other postemployment benefits for eligible retirees of the
Institute.

= New Mexico Institute of Mining & Technology Research Park Corporation

This is a New Mexico not-for-profit corporation organized to assist the Institute by making available funds to pursue
technology research and other programs carried out by the Institute. The Institute is the sole member of the
Corporation and appoints the Board of the Corporation.

Discretely-presented Component Units

In the government-wide financial statements, discrete presentation entails reporting component unit financial data in
a column separate from the financial data of the State. These component units are entities that are legally separate
from the State, but are financially accountable to the State. Complete financial statements are available at the address
given.

Major Component Units

= New Mexico Finance Authority (NMFA)

The Laws of 1992, Chapter 61, as amended, created the NMFA. The purpose of the New Mexico Authority Act is to
create a governmental instrumentality to coordinate the planning and financing of state and local public projects, to
provide for long-term planning and assessment of state and local capital needs and to improve cooperation among the
executive and legislative branches of state government and local governments in financing public projects. The NMFA
is considered a component unit of the State as the Governor appoints a majority of its Board. The NMFA is composed
of eleven members, at which a majority of those members serve at the pleasure of the Governor. New Mexico Finance
Authority, 207 Shelby Street, Santa Fe, NM 87501.

=  New Mexico Mortgage Finance Authority (NMMFA)

The Laws of 1975, Chapter 303, as amended, created the NMMFA. The purpose of the NMMFA act is to create a
separate public body apart from the State to facilitate programs to assist in the financing of housing for persons of low
and moderate income within the State. The NMMFA is considered a component unit of the State because the Governor
appoints a majority of its Board. The NMMFA is composed of seven members, at which a majority of those members
serve at the pleasure of the Governor. NMMFA fiscal year-end is September 30. This year-end differs for all other
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state entities, which have a June 30 fiscal year-end. New Mexico Mortgage Finance Authority, 344 Fourth Street SW,
Albuquerque, NM 87102.

=  New Mexico Lottery Authority (Lottery Authority)

The Laws of 1995, Chapter 155, as amended, created the Lottery Authority Act. The purpose of the Lottery Authority
Act is to create a separate public body apart from the State, to conduct the New Mexico state lottery and provide
revenues for public purposes designated by the Act. The State’s higher education institutions receive financial benefit.
The Lottery Authority is considered a component unit of the State because the Governor appoints members of its
Board. The Board is composed of seven members, at which those members serve at the pleasure of the Governor.
New Mexico Lottery Authority, 4511 Osuna Rd NE, Albuquerque, NM 87109.

The following two component units are considered to be component units of the State Institutions of Higher Education,
and are thus component units of the State. Each is financially accountable to the respective institution, and the Board
of Regents (governing board) of each institution controls the finances and has appointment power over the unit’s
governing authority.

=  University of New Mexico Foundation, Inc. (UNM Foundation)

UNM Foundation is a nonprofit corporation, organized in 1979 to solicit, receive, distribute, invest, and manage funds
for the benefit of the University of New Mexico. The majority of the Foundation’s investments are managed by the
University. The University of New Mexico Foundation, Inc., Two Woodward Center, 700 Lomas NE, Bldg. 2-203,
Albuquerque, NM 87102.

= New Mexico State University Foundation, Inc. (NMS Foundation)

NMS Foundation is a nonprofit corporation formed for the purpose of acquiring and managing charitable gifts,
including endowed funds, to be used for the sole benefit of New Mexico State University. The Foundation reports on
the FASB basis of accounting. New Mexico State University Foundation, Inc., P.O. Box 3590, Las Cruces, NM 88003-
3590.

Non-major Component Units

The State’s non-major component units have been determined to be financially accountable to the State. Non-major
component units are: University of New Mexico Alumni Association, University of New Mexico Lobo Club,
University of New Mexico - Anderson Schools of Management Foundation, Inc., New Mexico Tech Research
Foundation, New Mexico Highlands University Foundation, Inc., New Mexico Highlands University — Highlands
Stable Isotopes Corporation, Western New Mexico University Foundation, Inc., Eastern New Mexico University
Foundation, Eastern New Mexico University Roswell Foundation, Eastern New Mexico University Ruidoso
Foundation, Northern New Mexico College Foundation, New Mexico Military Institute (NMMI) Foundation, Inc.,
New Mexico School for the Blind and Visually Impaired Foundation, Cumbres & Toltec Scenic Railroad Commission,
New Mexico Renewable Transmission Authority, New Mexico Small Business Investment Corporation, and New
Mexico State-chartered Charter Schools.
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C. Basis of Presentation - Government-wide Financial Statements

While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are interrelated. The governmental
activities column incorporates data from governmental funds and internal service funds, while business-type activities
incorporates data from the State’s Enterprise funds. Separate financial statements are provided for governmental
funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements.

As discussed earlier, the State has five discretely presented component units and twenty-one non-major component
units. Component units are shown in total in the government-wide financial statements with a combining statement
to show the details. As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements.

D. Basis of Presentation — Fund Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements The fund financial statements provide information about the State’s funds, including its
fiduciary funds. Separate statements are presented for each fund category — governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary.
The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate
column. All remaining enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds. The internal service fund is
reported in a separate column on the proprietary funds financial statements. The accounts of the State are organized
based on funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted
for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, net position, revenues, and
expenditures.

The State reports the following governmental funds:
Major funds:

= General Fund — This fund accounts for the financial resources of the State, except those required to be accounted
for in another fund. This is the State’s primary operating fund.

= Debt Service Fund — Debt Service Fund accounts are used to account for the accumulation of resources for and
the payment of principal and interest on general long-term obligations and other contractual obligations.

= Capital Projects Fund — The Capital Projects Fund accounts for funds appropriated by the State Legislature for
capital outlay, including severance tax and general obligation bond proceeds and State General Appropriation
capital outlay funds.

* Severance Tax Fund — The Severance Tax Fund accounts for the proceeds of severance taxes, which are levied
by the State on certain natural resources extracted from State lands. Severance tax revenues are first applied to
pay the required debt service on Severance Tax Bonds issued by the State. Remaining severance tax revenues
are then transferred to the Severance Tax Fund, administered by the State Investment Council. Distributions from
this fund are stipulated by the State Constitution.
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* Land Grant Fund — The Land Grant Fund receives royalties and income from trust lands distributed to various
entities assigned by the Ferguson Act of 1898.

The State reports the following enterprise funds:
Major fund:

= Educational Institutions Fund — The Educational Institutions Fund accounts for the activities of the State’s ten
educational institutions created by the Constitution of the State of New Mexico in Article XII, Section 11:
University of New Mexico, New Mexico State University, Eastern New Mexico University, New Mexico Institute
of Mining and Technology, Western New Mexico University, New Mexico Highlands University, Northern New
Mexico College, New Mexico Military Institute, New Mexico School for the Blind and Visually Impaired, and
New Mexico School for the Deaf.

Non-major funds:

The State’s non-major enterprise funds include the following: Unemployment Insurance, Public Schools Insurance
Authority, Miners’ Colfax Medical Center, New Mexico Magazine, State Fair, Environment Department Clean Water,
Corrections Industries, Industries for the Blind, State Infrastructure Bank, Department of Cultural Affairs Museums
Program, and Education Trust Board.

The State reports the following internal service fund:

= Internal Service Fund — The State reports the internal service fund type in the proprietary funds statements. The
activities accounted for in the internal service fund include fleet operations, risk management, printing and
records, communications services, and information processing. In the government-wide financial statements, the
Internal Service Fund is included with governmental activities.

Additionally, the State reports the following fiduciary fund types:

= Pension and Other Employee Benefits Trust Funds — These funds are used to report resources that are required
to be held in trust for the members and beneficiaries of pension plans and other employee benefit plans. These
funds account for the activities of the Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA), Educational Retirement
Board (ERB), the Retiree Health Care Authority (RHCA), and the Deferred Compensation Plan.

=  External Investment Trust Funds — These funds account for assets held by the government in a trustee capacity.
These funds are used to account for cash, securities, and other investments held in custody for external participants
in the New Mexico State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool and the State Investment Council’s
Investment Pools.

=  Private Purpose Trust Funds — These funds are used to report trust arrangements under which principal and
income benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments. These funds include the Scholarship
Fund, Water Trust Fund, Higher Education Savings Plan, Bartlett Trust, Children’s Trust, Children’s Next
Generation Trust, and Office of State Insurance Trust.
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= Agency Funds — These funds are used to report resources held by the State in a purely custodial capacity for
external parties. Agency funds account for receipt of various taxes, refundable deposits, and other monies
collected or recovered to be held until the State has the right or obligation to distribute them to various entities or
individuals.

E. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and basis of
accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured and basis of accounting. Measurement
focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current financial resources or economic resources. The
basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in the financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to
pay liabilities of the current period. The State generally considers revenues available if they are collected within 60
days of the end of the current fiscal period. All other revenues are recognized when they are received if they are not
susceptible to accrual. Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting;
however, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing
sources.

The fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the State in a trustee capacity or as an agent
for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds. Agency funds are custodial in nature
and do not involve measurement of results of operations.

Proprietary funds financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting, similar to the government-wide financial statements described previously. Proprietary funds
include both enterprise and internal service fund types. Enterprise funds report the activities for which fees are charged
to external users for goods and services. Internal service funds account for goods and services provided primarily to
other agencies or funds of the State, rather than to the general public. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues
and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services
and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the proprietary funds are student tuition and fees, net of scholarship discounts and
allowances, patient services, sales and services, interest on loans, and most federal, state, and local contracts and
grants. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses.
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The component units’ financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. The information is presented in order to be consistent with the government-wide
statements, and is less detailed than the presentation in each component unit’s separately issued financial statements.

F. Budgetary Information
1. Budgetary Basis of Accounting

The budget is adopted on the modified accrual basis of accounting, per statute, in accordance with procedures
prescribed by the Financial Control Division (FCD), Department of Finance and Administration. Per these procedures,
accounts payable which are not recorded in a timely manner (before the statutory fiscal year-end deadline) will not be
paid from the current year appropriation, and they are thus not recorded as a budgetary expenditure. Instead,
permission must be obtained from FCD to pay the obligation out of the next year’s budget. This budgetary basis is not
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Balances remaining at the end of the fiscal year
from appropriations made from the State General Fund shall revert to the appropriate fund, unless otherwise indicated
in the appropriations act or otherwise provided by law. Encumbrances do not carry over to the next year for operating
budgets.

Additionally, certain governmental activities are excluded from the budgetary schedules because they are not
appropriated. The General Fund presented herein includes the general funds of all state agencies. The largest of these
general funds are the component appropriation accounts. These appropriation accounts are part of the Department of
Finance and Administration. The State’s component appropriation accounts do not adopt an annual appropriated
budget; however, the expenditures of the component appropriations by law must equal the individual amounts
appropriated in the various appropriation acts. Other activities designated as non-appropriated (not budgeted) by the
Legislature are the Severance Tax Permanent Fund, the Land Grant Permanent Fund, and the following Enterprise
Funds: the Educational Institutions, State Fair Commission, Environment Department, State Infrastructure Bank, and
Unemployment Insurance Funds. The legal level of budgetary control is at the appropriation level.

2. Budget to GAAP Reconciliation

The budgetary comparison schedules of the various funds present comparisons of the original estimated budget and
legally adopted budget with actual data on a budgetary basis. Both the budget and actual amounts represent single
year activity based on the budget reference assigned to the particular transaction. Since accounting principles applied
for the purposes of developing data on a budgetary basis, differ significantly from those used to present financial
statements in conformity with GAAP, a budget to GAAP reconciliation is presented following the budgetary
comparison schedules.

3. Multiple Year Appropriation — Capital Projects Budgets and Special Appropriation Budgets

Budgets for multiple year monies are not made on an annual basis, but are adopted on a project length basis. Budgets
for the Capital Projects Fund may be established for periods from two to five years depending on the nature of the
project or appropriation. These non-operating budgets primarily serve as a management control tool, and because
related appropriations are continuing in nature, no comparison between budgeted and actual amounts for funds
budgeted on this basis is provided. Special appropriations budgets for one year are included in the Budgetary
Comparison Schedule.
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4. Excess of Expenses/Expenditures Over Budget

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the Gaming Control Board exceeded Pcode/program budget authority.
G. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Position/Fund Balance

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash on hand, cash on deposit with banks, investment in the State General Fund
Investment Pool, Local Government Investment Pool, and cash invested in short-term securities. Cash equivalents
include investments in short-term, highly liquid securities having an initial maturity of three months or less. Cash
balances not held by the New Mexico State Treasurer (State Treasurer) and controlled by various State officials are
generally deposited in interest-bearing accounts or other legally stipulated investments.

2. Investments

Investments are under the control of the State Treasurer, the State Investment Council, and other administrative bodies
as determined by law. In certain instances, investments are restricted by law or other legal instruments. Investments
are valued at fair value. The fair value of investments is based on published prices and quotations from major
investment brokers at current exchange rates as available. For investments where no readily ascertainable fair value
exists, management in consultation with their investment advisors, have determined the fair values for the individual
investments based on anticipated maturity dates and current interest rates commensurate with the investment’s degree
of risk. The change in fair value is recognized as a component of investment income in the current year.

The Education Trust Board calculates the net asset value of its units as of the close of The New York Stock Exchange
(the Exchange), normally 4:00 P.M. Eastern time, on each day the Exchange is open for business. The net asset values
of the investments are determined as of the close of the Exchange on each day the Exchange is open for trading. Short-
term money market-type debt securities with remaining maturities of sixty days or less are valued at amortized cost
(which approximates market value).

3. Investment Pools

State Treasurer - The State is required by statute to deposit any money received with the State Treasurer. Balances
maintained at the end of the day are pooled and invested by the State Treasurer in overnight repurchase agreements.
All repurchase agreements are collateralized by U.S Treasury Securities held by the State Treasurer’s custodian bank.
These pooled balances are collectively called the State General Fund Investment Pool (SGFIP), which also includes
the deposits in the Tax-Exempt Bonds Proceeds Investment Pool and Taxable Bond Proceeds Investment Pool. The
State General Fund is the State of New Mexico’s main operating account. All State revenues are credited to the General
Fund. Income taxes, sales taxes, rents and royalties, and other recurring revenues are deposited into the fund. The fund
also comprises numerous State agency accounts whose assets, by statute, must be held at the State Treasury.
Expenditures are disbursed only in accordance with appropriations authorized by the State Legislature. The Bond
Proceeds Pools consist of pooled assets received through the issuance of taxable and tax-exempt bonds. Because these
pooled funds are invested in short-term, highly liquid investments, the individual fund investments in the SGFIP are
reported as a cash equivalent.
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All interest revenue is allocated to the General Fund unless state statute or trust agreements require allocations of
interest to other funds. Interest is allocated based on the average daily balance and average monthly interest rates.

In addition to the SGFIP pooled cash account, the State Treasurer maintains the Local Government Investment Pool
(LGIP). The LGIP also includes the deposits in the Reserve Contingency Fund. Cities, counties, other non-state
agencies, and state agencies invest monies with the State Treasurer in the LGIP. Because these pooled funds are
invested in short-term, highly liquid investments, the individual fund investments in the LGIP are reported as a cash
equivalent.

The LGIP, an external investment pool, is not registered with the Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) as an
investment company. The investments are recorded at fair value based on quoted market price; however, individual
participant balances remain at their carrying cost. The LGIP does not have unit shares. Per Chapter 6-10-10.1F, New
Mexico Statutes Annotated (NMSA) 1978, at the end of each month all interest earned is distributed by the State
Treasurer to the contributing entities in the amounts directly proportionate to the respective amounts deposited in the
fund and the length of time the amounts were invested. At June 30, 2019, the LGIP carrying cost approximated the
fair value. Participation in the LGIP is voluntary. The external portion of LGIP is reported as a separate investment
trust fund. The internal portion, consisting of funds belonging to the State and its component units, has been included
in the various funds and component units.

A copy of the New Mexico State Treasurer’s audited financial statements can be obtained by writing the New Mexico
State Treasurer, P.O. Box 5135, Santa Fe, NM 87505 or online at http://www.saonm.org/audit_reports.

Public Employees Retirement Association - The Public Employees Retirement Association created a short-term
investment pool (Pool) to maximize the benefits of the investment diversification and investment earnings. The
Judicial, Magistrate, Volunteer Firefighters, and Public Employees Retirement Systems (Systems) participate in the
Pool. The fair value of the investments in the Pool is the same as the value of the pool shares. All investments in the
Pool are either SEC registered or are exempt from SEC registration under exemption 3(a)(3) or 4(2) of SEC
regulations. Each System’s equity percentage in the Pool is based on that System’s investment in the pool and will
only increase or decrease by additional deposits or withdrawals.

State Investment Council - The State Investment Council (Council) is responsible for the investment activities of
certain state trust funds. The Council’s investments are reported in the following categories: governmental activities,
business-type activities, private-purpose trust funds, and external investment trust funds. Each of the fund types are
participants in the Council’s pools. Each pool is composed of units of participation of unlimited quantity. Each unit
of participation represents an equal beneficial interest in the respective pool and no unit has priority over any other.
Each purchase or sale of units requires written authorization as defined in the joint powers agreements executed
between the Council and each participant. All units are purchased by cash payment. Each unit of participation is
recorded in book entry form by the Council.

The external portion of the Council’s investment pools is reported as a separate investment trust fund. The internal
portion, consisting of funds belonging to the State and its component units, has been included in the various funds and

component units.

A copy of the Council’s report can be obtained by writing the New Mexico State Investment Council, 41 Plaza la
Prensa, Santa Fe, NM 87507.
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4. Inventories

The governmental funds, except for the Department of Transportation are mandated to use the purchase method of
accounting for inventories. Under the purchase method, inventories are recorded as expenditures when purchased. For
the consumption method, costs are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Inventories of the proprietary funds are valued by using either the average cost, retail inventory, or first-in-first-out
(FIFO) methods.

5. Receivables and Loan Receivables

Receivables, net of allowance, in the governmental, business-type activities and fiduciary activities consist mainly of
amounts due from the federal government, local governments, customers, patients and applicable insurance
companies, taxpayers, students, and others.

Various reimbursement procedures are used for federal awards received by the State. Consequently, timing differences
between expenditures and program reimbursements can exist at any time during the fiscal year. Receivable balances
at fiscal year-end represent an excess of modified accrual basis expenditures over cash reimbursements received to
date. Determining the amount of expenditures reimbursable by the federal government, in some cases, requires
management to estimate allowable costs to be charged to the federal government. As a result of this and other issues,
management provides an allowance for potential contractual allowances for federal revenue. Any changes in these
estimates are recorded in the period that the estimate is changed. Loans are stated at their principal amount. Interest
on loans is accrued based on the daily principal balance outstanding, except when a loan has been past due for 90
days. Certain loans are to governmental entities and secured by certain pledged revenues. The loans are being repaid
in accordance with their loan agreements.

6. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include automobiles, buildings and improvements, furniture and fixtures, software, library
books, infrastructure (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), machinery and equipment, and portable
buildings are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements. The State defines capital assets as costing at least five thousand dollars or more when acquired
and having an estimated useful life greater than one year.

Capital assets purchased by governmental funds are recorded as expenditures in the governmental fund financial
statements. Interest expense for capital asset construction related to governmental activities is not capitalized. Interest
expense incurred during construction of capital facilities related to business-type activities and component units is
immaterial and is not capitalized in all cases. There is no depreciation recorded for land and infrastructure (right-of-
way land). Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimated acquisition value at the date of donation.

In accordance with the practices followed by many museums and libraries, museum and library collections are not

reported as assets in the accompanying financial statements. Purchases of the items are reported as expenditures.
Certain library books, however, are capitalized.
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There is no depreciation recorded for land, and construction in progress. Buildings, equipment, infrastructure and
other depreciable assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Asset Class Years
Infrastructure 10-40
Land Improvements 15-30
Furniture and Equipment 3-25
Vehicles 3-12
Buildings and Improvements 5-75

As provided by GASB standards, the State elected to use the depreciation method to account for infrastructure assets
(roads and bridges). This method requires the State to allocate the cost of infrastructure assets over their estimated
useful lives as depreciation expense.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend assets lives
are not capitalized.

7. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Deferred inflows of resources represent
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time.

8. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities include accrued current payroll and fringe benefits payable at year end. These benefits consist of
the employee and employer portions of taxes, insurance, retirement, and other compensation-related withholdings.

9. Compensated Absences

Qualified employees’ vacation leave is accrued at a graduated schedule of 80 to 160 hours per year, depending upon
the length of service and employees’ hire date. Employees are paid for the accumulated annual leave upon retirement
or other termination up to 240 hours. A maximum of thirty days of annual leave (240 hours) may be carried forward
into the beginning of the calendar year, with any excess forfeited. Qualified employees sick leave accrued at the rate
of 3.7 hours per bi-weekly pay period. There is no limit to the amount of sick leave, which an employee may
accumulate. Employees are paid for accumulated sick leave annually, or upon retirement or other termination, but
only for accumulated sick leave in excess of 600 hours. Annually, employees may be paid 50.0 percent of the excess
over 600 hours, up to a maximum of 120 hours. Upon retirement or other termination, employees are paid 50.0 percent
of the excess over 600 hours, up to maximum of 400 hours. The total liability of the governmental activities for
compensated absences is recorded in the government-wide Statement of Net Position as part of long-term liabilities.
However, in accordance with GAAP, the liability is not recorded in the Governmental funds financial statements. See
additional disclosure in the detailed notes.
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10. Unearned Revenue

In the government-wide statements, proprietary fund statements, and fiduciary fund statements, unearned revenue is
recorded when cash or other assets are received prior to being earned. GASB Statement No. 65 requires resources
received from another government under voluntary or government-mandated non-exchange transactions before time
restrictions are met, but after all other eligibility requirements are met, should be classified as deferred inflows of
resources.

11. Bonds Payable

Bond premiums and discounts and deferred amounts on refunding are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the bonds outstanding method or straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method. Bonds
payable are reported at face amount, with the applicable bond premium or discount and deferred amount on refunding
reported separately. In accordance with GASB Statement 65, bond issuance costs are expensed. In the governmental
fund financial statements, total bond premium or discount is recognized when the bonds are first issued. The face
amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as
other financing sources, while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether
or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

12. Insurance Losses and Loss Adjustment Expense

Public Schools Insurance Authority — The New Mexico Public Schools Insurance Authority (PSIA) insurance losses
and related adjustment expenses are charged to operations as incurred. The reserves for losses and loss adjustment
expenses are determined based upon case-basis evaluations and actuarial projections, and include a provision for
claims incurred but not reported. The actuarial projections of ultimate losses on reported claims and the estimate of
claims incurred but not reported are based on a composite of PSIA’s experience and benefits, property, casualty, and
workers’ compensation insurance industry data, which supplements PSIA’s historical experience and includes the
effects of inflation and other factors. Losses are reported net of estimated amounts recoverable from excess insurance,
salvage and subrogation, and the deductible portion of claims. Adjustments to the probable ultimate liability for losses
and loss adjustment expenses are made continually, based on subsequent developments and experience, and are
included in operations as made.

Retiree Health Care Authority - The amount shown for the Retiree Health Care Authority as reserve for losses and
loss adjustment expenses is an actuarially calculated estimate of the ultimate costs of settling all incurred but not
reported claims as of the fiscal year-end, while the amount shown on the accompanying fiduciary statement of changes
in fiduciary Net Position as losses and loss adjustment expenses represents the change in this estimate during the fiscal
year. These reserves represent, in management’s opinion, the best estimate of the ultimate cost of settling all reported
and unreported claims. There exists a range of variability around the best estimate of the ultimate cost of settling all
unpaid claims. Accordingly, the amount reflected in the accompanying financial statements may not ultimately be the
actual cost of settling all unpaid claims and the difference may be significant.

69



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - NOTE 1 (CONTINUED)

13. Interfund Transactions
Government-Wide Financial Statements

Interfund Activity — In general, eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activity,
including internal service fund type activity. However, interfund services, provided and used between different
functional categories, have not been eliminated in order to avoid distorting the direct costs and program revenues of
the applicable functions. Operating transfers between governmental and business-type activities are reported at the net
amount.

Interfund Balances — Interfund receivables and payables have been eliminated from the government-wide Statement
of Net Position, except for the residual amounts due between governmental and business-type activities.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Interfund Activity — Interfund transactions for goods sold or services rendered for a price approximating the external
exchange value and employee benefit contributions are accounted for as revenues and expenditures/expenses in the
funds involved.

Transfers are used to report flows of cash (or other assets) between funds without equivalent flows of assets in return
or a requirement for repayment. The State’s transfers are based on legislative appropriations or other legal authority.

14. Net Position and Fund Balance

Net Investment in Capital Assets consists of capital assets, including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, and reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other debt attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of such assets. Significant unspent related debt proceeds are not included
in the calculation of Net Investment in Capital Assets. The unspent portion of the debt is included in restricted for
capital projects. The State issues General Obligation bonds and Severance Tax bonds to finance projects for the State
and local governments. The Legislature appropriates the bond proceeds from each bond issue to projects throughout
the State. Only bonds issued for projects appropriated to State agencies and recognized as a State asset are included
in this calculation.

The State reports Net Position as restricted when constraints placed on Net Position are a) externally imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors or laws, or regulations of other governments or b) imposed by law through con-
stitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Enabling legislation authorizes the government to assess, levy, charge,
or otherwise mandate payment of resources (from external resource providers) and includes a legally enforceable
requirement that those resources be used only for the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation.

Restricted Net Position is designated as either expendable or nonexpendable. Expendable Restricted Net Position
includes those funds that may be expended either for a stated purpose or for a general purpose subject to externally
imposed stipulations. Nonexpendable Restricted Net Position includes those funds that are required to be retained in
perpetuity. Restricted Net Position includes the State’s permanent endowment funds subject to externally imposed
restrictions governing their use.
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Unrestricted Net Position consists of net position that does not meet the definition of Net Investment in Capital Assets
or Restricted Net Position.

When both restricted and unrestricted net position are available for use, it is the State’s policy to use restricted
resources first and then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified as non-spendable, restricted, committed,
assigned, or unassigned. Restricted represents those portions of fund balance where constraints placed on the resources
are either externally imposed by outside parties or internally imposed by law through constitutional provision or
enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance represents amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the Legislature, such as an appropriation or legislation. The State Legislature is the highest
level of decision-making authority that can, by passage of legislation, commit fund balance that is not already
restricted. Once adopted, the limitation remains in place until similar action takes place, usually in the form of a new
budget bill or other legislation.

Assigned fund balance is constrained by the Legislature’s intent to be used for specific purposes by directive of the
Legislative Finance Committee of the Legislature or in some cases by legislation. Legislative directives dictate that
all fund balances remaining at the end of the fiscal year shall be reverted back to the State General Fund unless the
fund is stipulated as non-reverting by the Legislature or by laws or regulations imposed by grantors. If the fund is non-
reverting, the agency governing board or department head has the authority to assign a fund balance for a specific use.
The State has not adopted a formal flow assumption policy and therefore uses the GASB recommendations; that is, it
is the State’s policy to use restricted fund balance before using components of unrestricted fund balance. Further,
when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is used
first, followed by assigned fund balance, and lastly, unassigned fund balance.

H. Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

In the government-wide Statement of Activities, revenues and expenses are segregated by activity (governmental or
business-type), then further by function for governmental activities (e.g. general control, education, health and human
services, etc.).

Additionally, revenues are classified between program and general revenues. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants for goods or services, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues, rather than as program revenue. General
revenues include all taxes. Certain indirect costs are included in the program expenses reported for individual
functions.

In the government-wide financial statements, revenues are reported by source and are further classified as either
“general purpose” or “restricted.” General purpose revenues are available to fund any activity accounted for in the
fund. Restricted revenues are, either by State law or by outside restriction (e.g. federal grants), available only for
specific purposes. Unused restricted revenues at year-end are recorded as restrictions of fund balance. When both
general purpose and restricted funds are available for use, it is the State’s policy to use restricted resources first.
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In the governmental fund financial statements, expenditures are reported by character: Current, Capital Outlay, or
Debt Service. Current expenditures are sub-classified by function and are for items such as salaries, grants, supplies,
and services.

Revenues and expenses of proprietary funds are classified as operating or non-operating and are sub-classified by
object (e.g. depreciation, benefits, claims and premiums, and game expense). Operating revenues consist of sales of
goods or services, interfund services provided/used, grant revenues for specific activities that are considered operating
activities of the grantor, receipts from other agencies for reimbursement of operating transactions, and other
miscellaneous revenue that should be classified as operating. For certain loan and investment programs, revenue that
would normally be classified as non-operating should be classified as operating. An example of this would include
interest income on loans. All other revenues that do not meet the above criteria should be classified as non-operating.

Grants

Federal grants and assistance awards made based on entitlement periods are recorded as revenues when entitlement
occurs. All federal reimbursement-type grants are recorded as revenues when the related allowable expenditures are
incurred and all applicable eligibility requirements are met.

Investment Income

Net investment income (loss) includes net appreciation (depreciation) in the fair value of investments, interest income,
dividend income, securities lending income, rental income, and investment expenses (which includes investment
management and custodial fees, securities lending expense, and all other significant investment related costs).
Negative investment income is reported where the decrease in fair value of investments due to market conditions
exceeded the other components of investment income.

Endowments

Net appreciation on the Educational Institutions’ investments of donor-restricted endowments are available for
authorization for expenditure by the governing boards of the universities with endowments, which are reported in Net
Position as restricted for purposes for which the endowments were established. Donor restricted endowment
disbursements of the net appreciation of investments are permitted in accordance with the Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act, Chapters 46-9A-1 to 46-9A-10, NMSA 1978, except where a donor has
specified otherwise. The universities use the total-return policy for authorizing and spending investment income. The
universities review the investment earnings designed to support distributions from the pool and to protect the
purchasing power of the endowment principal.

Retirement and Employee Benefit Costs

Most state employees participate in a defined benefit pension plan administered by the New Mexico Public
Employees’ Retirement Association and the New Mexico Educational Employees’ Retirement Board. Contributions
collected for the pension plans and the retirement benefits paid are accounted for in the Pension and Other Employee
Benefits Trust Funds. All costs for pension, health, and federal social security contributions are reported as
expenditures in the appropriate function in governmental fund types or as expenses in applicable proprietary fund
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types. Pension and other benefits costs are recognized in the fiscal year in which the underlying payroll costs are
incurred.

1. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

J. New Accounting Standards

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the State implemented the following new accounting standards issued by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB):

GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations

This statement addresses the accounting and financial reporting for legally enforceable liabilities resulting from the
retirement of certain tangible capital assets, mainly those which are large and/or not easily disposed, such as sewage
plant facilities or nuclear reactors.

GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosure Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements
The primary objective of this Statement is to improve the information that is disclosed in notes to government financial
statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements. It also clarifies which liabilities
governments should include when disclosing information related to debt.

K. Future Accounting Standards

The following pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) are due to be implemented
by the State in the year indicated. For all of these new standards, the State has not determined the effect on the financial
statements that implementation of the standards will entail. Note: as of March 26, 2020, the GASB is considering
postponing all Statement and Implementation Guide provisions with an effective date that begins on or after reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2018, due to the COVID-19 pandemic; however, a final decision on this has not been
made.

GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities

This statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments, and describes
those fiduciary funds which should be reported, if applicable. The statement is due to be adopted by the State for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2020.

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases

This statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease
assets and liabilities for leases. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible
right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources,
thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. This statement
is due to be adopted by the State for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.
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GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period

This statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense
in the period in which the cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement
focus. This statement is due to be adopted by the State for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.

GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61

The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency and comparability of reporting a government’s
majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement
information for certain component units. The statement is due to be adopted by the State for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2020.

GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations

The primary objectives of this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers
and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated
with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. The statement is due to be adopted by the State for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.

GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020

The objectives of this Statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve
the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during
implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. The statement is due to be adopted by the State for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.

L. State Auditor Rule Disclosure
The Office of the State Auditor Rule requires that audit reports contain a schedule of Joint Powers Agreements (JPA)
and Memoranda of Understanding (MOU) that are significant to the State as a whole. There are none that meet this

criterion.

Disclosure of these schedules may be found in the stand-alone audit reports which have been issued by the individual
State agencies. These are available from the Office of the State Auditor at www.saonm.org.
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NOTE 2. Cash
Primary Government
New Mexico State Treasurer

All monies, except with specific authority, must be deposited with the State Treasurer. These operating funds are
commingled in the State Investment Pool, managed by the Treasurer. Every State agency reports its operating cash
as “Investment in State General Fund Investment Pool”, and this pool is reported in Note 3, “Investments”. The issues
concerning the reconciliation of the State General Fund Investment Pool and the resolution are reported in Note 17,
“State General Fund Investment Pool.”

Cash on deposit represents the demand deposit account with the fiscal agent bank. Current year transactions reflect all
banking activity for the fiscal year as well as the activity of investments purchased and disposed of during the fiscal
year. The State Treasurer invests all public monies, with the exception of the New Mexico Lottery and the university
funds. The university funds are entirely under the control of the universities. These funds are held in excess of the
minimum compensating balance maintained with the fiscal agent bank in accordance with an investment policy
approved by the State Board of Finance (BOF). The State Treasurer invests excess cash balances on behalf of certain
earmarked funds of state agencies identified by State statute and local governments. Interest earnings are distributed
based on average outstanding cash balances for local governments and the state agencies where interest is allowed to
be earned. All other interest earnings are transferred to the State General Fund Appropriations Account.

All State agencies, unless otherwise exempted, must have specific approval from the State Treasurer in order to
maintain separate bank accounts. These accounts are mainly used for agency fund purposes, either as a collection
fund until final distribution, or when the funds are being held by the agency in a fiduciary capacity and the funds do
not belong to the State.

Custodial Credit Risk. The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. The State Treasurer’s Office collateral manager reviews and tracks all
state funds held in state depository institutions. Deposits and collateral are reviewed almost daily and a statutorily
required risk assessment is performed quarterly. Balances are collateralized in compliance with NMAC 2.60.4.

The State Treasurer invests all public monies held in excess of the minimum compensating balance maintained with
the fiscal agent bank in accordance with an investment policy approved by the State Board of Finance. The Treasurer
deposits public monies with New Mexico financial institutions in denominations which generally are in excess of the
$250 thousand in federal deposit insurance. Accordingly, the State Treasurer requires that depository financial
institutions provide additional collateral for such investments. The collateral generally is in the form of marketable
debt securities and is required in amounts ranging from 50.0 percent to 102.0 percent of the par value of the investment,
dependent on the institution’s operating results and capital. Collateral for the fiscal agent account is required in
amounts equal to 50.0 percent of the average investment balance.
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As of June 30, 2019, collateral pledged to public money deposits was as follows:

Office of the State Treasurer

Statutory Collateral Compliance

(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Agent Certificates
Account of Deposit

Cash in Bank * 5 52056 S 23,700
Less: FDIC Insurance Coverage - (1.300)
Total Unsecured Public Funds 5 52056 § 22200
Collateral Requirement (30.0% -

102.0% of Uninsured Public

Funds) 5 26028 § 11,100
Collateral Pledged:

U.S. Government Securities 5 17042 § 5429

Surety Bond - 3250
Collateral Pledged 117,042 13,679
Over Collateralized 5 91,014 § 2,579

* Fiscal agent bank is required to collateralize the monthly average balance.

76



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — NOTE 2 (CONTINUED)

While the balances of the Office of State Treasurer are fully collateralized per state statute, GASB Statement No. 40
requires that the State disclose balances which are not fully insured. As of June 30, 2019, the funds held by the State
Treasurer in the fiscal agency account were exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Office of the State Treazurer
Custodial Credit Rizk

(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance at
June 30,2019
Cash in Banks 5 783423
Less: Deposit of Institutions Which are
Fully Insured and Collateralized (135.425)
Deposits of Institutions Not Fully
Collateralized 638,000
Less: FDIC Insurance Coverage (3,000)
Uninsured Deposits 633,000
Collateral Pledged:
Surety Bond 215470
Securities 228,836
Total Collateral Pledged 444,326
Subject to Custodial Credit Risk 5 210,674

In the table above, FDIC insurance coverage and collateral pledged relate only to those institutions whose deposits
are not fully insured and/or collateralized.

The cash deposits which relate to investments of the State Investment Council, the Public Employees Retirement
Association, the Educational Retirement Board, the Retiree Health Care Authority, and the Education Trust Board are
monitored by their individual Boards in conjunction with contracted professional investment firms. The respective
Boards of these agencies have instituted policies and procedures to safeguard the public assets under their control.
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NOTE 3. Investments

The following schedule lists the total investments reported in the financial statements:

Balance at
June 30, 2019

Primary Government:
Current:
Investment in State General Fund Investment Pool
Investment in Local Government Investment Pool
Investments
WNoncurrent:
Investments
Fidueiary Funds:
Investment in State General Fund Investment Pool
Investment in Local Government Investment Pool
Investments
Component Units:

Investments

Total Investments

Reconciliation to Investments presented

Total present=d above

Lzzz - Information praented separately:
Component Unit Invest. Excluding LGIP
UNM Investments Held by Fovndation

Other

Total szparately helé investments

There are six different agencies or groups which report investments for the State, each of them with separate authority
and different objectives. They are: a) the Office of the State Treasurer; b) the State Investment Council; ¢) the Public
Employee and Educational Employee Retirement Plans; d) the State universities and colleges; ¢) Education Trust
Board; and f) State agencies with separately-held investments. In addition, the component units also report

separately-held investments.
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5,681,787
58,081
506,708
23,534 816
203,410
2,010
33,963,515

1,589 641

65,990,378

65,980,378

(1.571,486)
(228,871)
(110,353}

63,678,668
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Those agencies whose investments are held by either the State Investment Council (SIC) or the State Treasurer’s Local
Government Investment pool (LGIP) are not presented in the following investment disclosures, since those
investments are already included.

State Treasurer
The State Treasurer operates four separate investment pools. They are as follows:

General Fund Investment Pool

The General Fund is the State of New Mexico’s main operating account. All State revenues are credited to the State
General Fund. Income taxes, sales taxes, rents and royalties, and other recurring revenues are deposited into the fund.
The fund also comprises numerous State agency accounts whose assets, by statute, must be held at the State Treasury.
Expenditures are disbursed only in accordance with appropriations authorized by the State Legislature.

Consolidated Investment Pool (Tax-Exempt Bond Proceeds Investment Pool #1)

The Tax-Exempt Bond Proceeds Investment Pool is comprised of pooled assets received through the issuance of tax-
exempt State of New Mexico general obligation, severance tax, and supplemental severance tax bonds. The fund’s
objective is to preserve capital, provide liquidity, and generate returns relative to the true interest cost of all State of
New Mexico debt outstanding and in accordance with the Investment Policy of the Office of the State Treasurer.

Consolidated Investment Pool (Taxable Bond Proceeds Investment Pool #2)

The Taxable Bond Proceeds Investment Pool is comprised of pooled assets received through the issuance of State of
New Mexico severance tax bonds. The fund’s objective is to preserve capital, provide liquidity, and generate returns
relative to a benchmark and in accordance with the State Treasurer’s Investment Policy.

Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP; Short-term Investment Pool)

Cities, counties, and other agencies invest monies in the State Treasurer external investment pool (LGIP). The LGIP
investments are presented at fair value based on the valuation date in the financial statements. The individual
participant balances remain at their amortized cost. As of June 30, 2019, LGIP amortized cost approximated fair
value, with the difference deemed immaterial.

The LGIP is not SEC registered. Chapter 6-10-10.1, NMSA 1978, empowers the State Treasurer, with the advice and
consent of the State Board of Finance, to invest money held in the short-term investment fund in securities that are
issued by the United States government or by its departments or agencies, and are either direct obligations of the
United States or are backed by the full faith and credit of the United States government, or are agencies sponsored by
the United States government. The LGIP investments are monitored by the same investment committee and adhere to
the same policies and procedures that apply to all other state investments. The pool does not have unit shares. Per
Section 6-10-10.1F, NMSA 1978, at the end of each month all interest earned is distributed by the State Treasurer to
the contributing entities in amounts directly proportionate to the respective amounts deposited in the fund and the
length of time the amounts were invested. Participation in the LGIP is voluntary. As of June 30, 2019, the WAM(R)
of the LGIP was 50 days, and the WAM(F) was 100 days. The fund was rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s as of
June 30, 2019.
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Investment Guidelines and Limitations

The Investment Policy is a comprehensive guide governing the investment functions of the New Mexico State
Treasurer with respect to all financial assets of the State of New Mexico invested by the State Treasurer in the exercise
of their authority and for which the State Treasurer acts as the investing authority. These assets include, as examples
only, the State General Fund, the LGIP, bond proceeds, bond debt service funds, and those pension and permanent
funds included in Note 12 and other special funds with respect to which the State Treasurer is the investing authority.

The investment policy and the public finance investment decisions of the State Treasurer must serve and satisfy several
fiduciary, fiscal, and financial obligations. In making these decisions and in resolving any conflict or competing
considerations that may arise from time to time among these obligations, the State Treasurer will observe the following
priority:

= Preservation of Principal — to ensure the performance of basic governmental functions, the first priority must be
accorded to the preservation and protection of the principal of the funds to be invested;

= Maintenance of Liquidity — the second level of priority must be accorded to maintaining sufficient liquidity to
satisfy the reasonable anticipated, continuing operational requirements of State Government, and

= Maximum Return — the third priority must be accorded to maximizing investment return, through budgetary and
economic cycles, consistent with the higher priority accorded to the security and liquidity of principal.

State Investment Council

The State of New Mexico Investment Council (Council) is responsible for the investment activities of certain State
trust funds. The Council is composed of eleven members, and currently manages the Land Grant, Severance Tax, and
Tobacco Settlement Permanent Funds, the Water Trust Fund, and various investment pools for the benefit of state
agencies and other political entities within the State of New Mexico.

In accordance with Chapter 6-8, NMSA 1978, the Council is authorized to invest in domestic and international stocks,
debt obligations of the U.S. government, its agencies, or instrumentalities, debt obligations of any U.S. or foreign
corporation, partnerships, or trusts with an investment-grade rating from a national rating service, real estate
investments, national private equity investments, repurchase agreements secured by U.S. obligations or other
securities backed by the U.S., and hedge funds.

Pension Benefits Funds

The two pension benefits agencies are the Public Employees Retirement Association of New Mexico (PERA) and the
Educational Retirement Board (ERB). PERA operates four separate cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee
retirement systems, and ERB operates one such system for the benefit of educational employees in the State. More
information on each of these agencies can be found elsewhere in these Notes. Each is governed by a separate Board,
and each has specific investment policies and guidelines to which they must adhere.
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State Universities and Colleges

As mentioned in Note 1. B, the ten educational institutions created by the Constitution of the State of New Mexico are
included in the State reporting entity. Eight of these institutions maintain separate investment portfolios, as permitted
by statute, with some of the investments held and managed by State agencies and some managed by the institutions
themselves. Each has investment policies and guidelines which are similar.

Education Trust Board

The Education Trust Board (ETB) is responsible for the management of the two higher education savings plans:
Scholar’s Edge, and The Education Plan (Plans). The Plans are savings vehicles for higher education expenses under
Section 529 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. The funds are managed by a private company under contract
agreement.

A. Fair Value

Fair Value Measurement — The State categorizes fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established
by GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs
used to measure the fair value of the asset. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair
value of the asset.

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets in active markets, accessible at the measurement
date. Level 1 inputs include exchange markets, dealer markets, brokered markets, and principal-to-principal markets.

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for an asset, either
directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets in active markets and quoted prices for
identical or similar assets in markets that are not active.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset.

Investments that do not have a readily determinable fair value are recorded using net asset value (NAV). NAV is

generally provided by the investment managers but the State considers the reasonableness of the NAV, based on
market information, to arrive at the fair value estimates for each investment.
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State of New Mexico

Fair Value of Investments
(Expressed in Thousands)

Obszervable Inputs
Quoted Prices, Other Than TUnobzervable
Fair Value Active Markets Quoted Prices Inputs
Investment June 30, 2019 (Level 1} (Level 2} Level 3)
Investments By Fair Value Level
Equity Securities:
Domestic Commeon Stock s 3731348 8§ 5,728 410 s 12286 3§ 710
Domeastic praferred stoclk 72 72 - -
International common stock 3,62 6 3,627.57 - -
Equities 10,413 642 10,408,341 4,502 785
Diomeastic Equity Derivatives 1,345 1,345 - -
Money Markst Funds 47,710 206 -
Mutual Funds - Equity 336,680 - 3,000
Pooled Funds - Mutual Funds 202 147 -
Public MLP 284 300 - -
Public REIT 381,021 23,704 -
Exchange-traded Funds 3,914 - -
Nonrsdzembable S=curitizs 10 - 10
S=lf-dirscted Investments (Deferred Comp.) 5,138 3,138 - -
Total Equity Securities 21.053.473 21.015.076 31.878 6.519
Debt Securities:
U 8. Government Bonds 3,143,530 - 3,143,530 -
US Trzasurizs 1,877.004 258,120 1,618,884 -
US Agency Securitiss 366,854 5 566,393 -
Municipal Bonds 152,300 154 152,146 -
Corporate Bonds 2,180,163 154 2,175, 865 -
Core Fixad Income 3,454 883 683,773 2768270 2,840
Daomestic Fixed Income 508,175 0G3.17% -
Global Fixed Income 610,368 111,035 496,362 2,971
Mutual Funds - Fixed 3,218 3,218 - -
Certificates of Deposit 664,656 6359 857 4,785 -
Commercial Paper 15,648 - 15,548 -
Mortgage-backad Securitias 630,042 - 630,042 -
Asset-backed Sscuritiss 295,313 - 254,807 306
Rapurchase Asrzements 2,464 000 - 2. 464,000
Discountad Notes 445 454 - 445 454 -
Bankers' Acceptancas 11426 - 11,426 -
Bank Loans 399,331 - 390331 -
Collateralized Loan Oblig. 135,887 - 135,887 -
TIPS 501,258 501,258 - -
STIF-tvpe Instruments 74,310 - 74,810 -
Soversizn Debt 4345 4345 -
Fixad Income Derivativas 14 630 6,119 -
Spot Currency Contracts 26,581 - -
Contracts 25,076 - -
Curreney Derivatives 161 - -
Balanced Funds 111,593 - -
Szeuritizs Lending Collateral Investments 341,651 341,651 -
Cash in Banlcs 23,700 - -
Fiseal Ageny Account 63,067 - -
Total Debt Securities 15,243 938 13,762,103 6,317
Alternative Investments:
Master Limitad Partnerships 262,736 - -
Total Alternative Investments 262,786 - -
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Ohbzervable Inputs

Quoted Prices, Other Than Unohzervable
Fair Value Active Markets Quoted Prices Inputs
Investment June 30, 2019 (Level 1) (Level 2) Level 3)
Investments in Derivative Instruments:
Cradit Derivatives (1.303) - (1,303 -
Equity Derivatives 3,362 3,369 -
Interast Rate Derivativas (4,369) 7426 (11,7 -
Other Derivativas 301 - 301 -
Total Derivative Instruments (2.009) (12,304} -
Total Inveztments Meazured
At Fair Value 40,558,188 § 24 764,175 15,781,177 S 12,836
Invesimeniz Measured At Unfunded Redemption Redemption
Net Azzet Value (NAV): Commitments Fregquency Notice Period
Commingled Domestic Equitsy 3,376,021 3 - MMonthlsy 15 daws
Portable Alpha Hedge Funds 7274 - Redeeming
Comminglad International Equity 1,357,676 - Monthly 30 days
Comm. Emearging Markst Debt Fond 338,148 - Daity 10 - 12 daws
Absolute Return (Hedzs) Funds 899 399 - Quartarly 30 - 63 days
Private Equity Partnerships 2.542.975 liguid Iliquid
Private Debt Partnerships 231,745 Mot eligible WA
Feal Estatz Equity Partnerships 1,468,037 Tiliguid Tiigquid
Real Estate Debt Partnerships - - -
Open-ended Real Estate Partnerships 813,623 Quarterly 45 - 90 days
Real Asset Funds 1,317,380 $63.716 Tilliquid THiquid
Opan-sndad Raal Assat Partnarships 317,033 69,580 Quartarly 90 - 180 days
Commingled Bond Funds 104,792 -
Commingled Global Asset Allocation 1,031,488 - -
Opportunistic Credit Funds 2,377,995 579,434 - 180 days
Private Equity Funds 2,404,647 1,278,551 N/A
Private Real Estate Funds 1,667,331 939,054 N/A
Re=al Estate Funds 11,145 - - -
Hadge Fond Investments 386 - - -
MMarlcetable Alternatives 257,909 - Monthly 2 - 90 daws
Credit and Structured Finance Pool 1,530,469 668,051 liguid Iliquid
Tlliquid Funds 8,587 - - -
Mutval Fends - Fixed 15,380 - - 1-30 daws
MMutval Funds - Equity 110,795 - - 1 -2 days
Life Cycle Funds 172,687 - - -
Investments Measured at NAT 23,181,126 5

Investments Measured at Amortized Cost:
Money Markst 49,763
Investements at Amortized Cost 49,763

Investments Measured at Contract Value:
Stable Valve Options (Deferred Comp.) 133,641
Annuities (Deferrad Comp.) 1080

Investments Meazured at Contract Value

Other Investments:
Equity
Cash
Other Investments
Lasz: Invastments by UNM Foundation
Held by Others

Total Other Investments

Total Investments s 63,678,668
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B. Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that the State will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party if the counterparty fails. Investment securities are exposed to
risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered in the name of the State Treasurer, and are held by either the
counterparty or the counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the State Treasurer’s name.

The State Treasurer’s investment policy for safekeeping and custody states that all investment securities purchased by
the State, held as collateral on repurchase agreements or held as collateral on securities lending arrangements shall be
held in third-party safekeeping at a fiduciary qualified to act in this capacity. All securities held for the State account
will be held free and clear of any lien and all transactions will be conducted in compliance with Chapter 6-10-100,
NMSA 1978, which requires contemporaneous transfer and same day settlement. On a monthly basis, the custodian
will provide reports, which list all transactions that occurred during the month, and all securities held for the State at
month-end, including the book and market value of holdings. The fiscal agent and representatives of the custodian
responsible for, or in any manner involved with, the safekeeping, and custody process of the State shall be bonded in
such a fashion as to protect from losses from malfeasance and misfeasance. All investment and collateral securities
were held by the State Treasurer or its Custodian in the name of the State Treasurer.

All of the PERA’s and ERB’s securities are held by the third party custodian, independent of any counterparty;
therefore, there is minimal risk that PERA and ERB will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities held by a counterparty.

PERA’s investment policy specifically defines the custodian’s duties as it pertains to holding of the assets, collection
of income generated from the assets, and assisting PERA for the accounting of said assets.

ERB’s investment policy limits holding of securities by counterparties to those involved with securities lending. In
the event of the failure of the counterparty to deliver back the borrowed securities, ERB will sell the collateral
securities and offset any gains or losses with the counterparty. All of the investments of the Retiree Health Care
Authority were held by the State Investment Council.

C. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. U.S.
obligations or investments guaranteed by the U.S. Government are excluded from this requirement. The quality rating
of PERA’s investment policy restricts investments to specific investment ratings issued by nationally recognized
statistical rating organizations.

ERB requires that noncash, interest-paying securities in the high-yield bond portfolios may not exceed 5.0 percent of
the market value of the portfolio and that investments in cash may represent no more than 5.0 percent of each
individual fund. Credit risk is managed through diversification and by operating within defined parameters versus a
benchmark index.
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ETB invests directly in Underlying Investments. The registered Underlying Investments’ prospectuses provide greater
detail about the investment strategies and practices of the Underlying Investments, in compliance with federal
regulations and specifically, the Form N-IA of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Form N-IA discloses information
and policies about the Underlying Fund and its investment objectives, as well as information on the company structure
and operations. In addition, the Program Disclosure Statement and the Participation Agreement provide greater detail
about the credit risk, if any, by certain nonregistered Underlying Investments.

The quality ratings of investments in fixed income securities at June 30, 2019, were as follows:
State of New Mexico

Quality Ratings of Investments

(Expressed in Thousands)

Investment Rating Fair Value
Investments Subject to Credit Risk - S&P Ratings:

Govemment Bonds AAA 3 134
AA+ 4,608,817
AA 3.409
AA- 1479
A+ 3.680

A -
A- 8371
BEB+ 10,934
BEB 22341
BEB- 6.386
BB+ 3.981
BE 2,834
EE- 3.301
B+ 084
B 15,054
B- 6.966
cce+ 898
Not Rated 709,060
Foreign Government Bonds AAA 12,566
AA+ 3.733
AA 7.600
AA- 6.100
A+ 14,039
A 793
A- 1522
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State of New Mexico

Quality Ratings of Investments (Continued)
(Expressed in Theusands)

Investment Rating Fair Value
Investments Svhject to Credit Risk - $&P Ratings (Continued):

Forzign Government Bonds (Continued) BEB~ 3 7,112
BEB 2,704
EBEE- 3,188
BB 926
BEB- 840
B+ 1,792
B 4,615
B- 1,861
Mot Rated 184,064
Municipal Bonds Ads 2448

Ad- 1,22
AL 14,323
AL 10,330
A+ 5,000
A 6,348
BEE- 2317
Mot Ratad 30,150
Corporate Bonds AnN 72,223
Ad- 69,297
AL 33,623
AA 210,821
As 139,099
A 207,897
A- 310,080
BEB~ 433,596
EBEB 706,323
BEE- 387,501
BB+ 131,177

EB 161,495

BE- 214,970

B+ 142,047

B 187,506

B- 75,403

cce- 24,106

ccc 5,861

cC 76

D 3,318

Mot Ratad 381,096
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State of New Mexico
Quality Ratings of Investment: (Continued)
(Expressed in Thousands)

Inveztment Rating Fair Value
Investments Subject to Cradit Risk - 3&P Ratings (Continved):

Mortgage-backed Securitizs Adr s 14,109
Al 054,850
AL 81,435
A 16,154
Mot Rated 206,350
Commercizl Mortzaze-backad Sscurities AsL 36,883
Ad- 42,783
BEB- 1.141
BB- 1.176
Mot Rated 183,852
Assst-backed Sacuritiss Al 135,173
AL+ 10,536
AA 161,846
Ad- 4,806
A 9,637
A 88,670
A 12,756
BBEB+ 10,343
BEB 33,487
BEB- 9.165
BE~+ 6,853
EB 1,060
BB- 813
B 2,128
B- o974
ccc 9.601
cc 4,662
D 2,132
Mot Rated 228,517
Collateralized Debt/Loan Obligations Aas 44525
Al 92,974
NE 85,470
Collateralized Mortzage Obligations RENMIC Adr 1,756
Al 186,026
AL 317
Ad. 1,051
A 985
A 755
A- 63
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State of New Mexico
Quality Ratingz of Investments (Continued)
(Expressed in Theusands)

Investment Rating Fair Value
Investments Subject to Cradit Rislc - 3&P Ratings (Continpad):

Collateralizad Mortgags Oblizatione REMIC (Continuad) BEB+ 5 1,251
BEE 488
EB 831
BB- 187
B+ 41
B 1,136
BE- 1,616
cco 2,279
D 548
Mot Rated 37.664
U.S. Treasury Bills AAa 5,146
AM 122,074
A 1,133
B 18,117
NE 33375
Bank Loans BB 64,312
Cartificates of Deposit AAS 26,709
A 4451
Mot Fated 384
TIPS AL 21,355
Mot Rated 478,704
Praferrad Stock BBB 265
BB+ 619
oo+ 145
Mot Fated 31212
Derivativas Swaps) Not Fated 14,630
Commercial Paper ALl 15,548
A- 8.150
Bepurchaze Asgreements Mot Rated 150,461
Banlcers Accaptancas AA- 11426
Discounted MNotes Abd~ 305474
AL 144,021
Mot Rated 17,779
Floating Fate Notas AL 56,684
A 102,061
Mot Fated 16,843
Dafarrad Comp. Investments Not Ratad 630,988
Other Investments (not identified) AL 168,197
BBB 132
B 1,355
Mot Rated 523
Total Subject to Rizk - 3 & P Ratings 14 860,583
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State of New Mexico
Quality Ratingz of Inveztments (Continued)

(Expressed in Thousands)

Inveztment Rating

Fair Value

Investments Svhject to Cradit Rislkc - Moody's Ratings:
U. & Government Agenciss Aaa
Corporate Bonds Aaa

Bazl

Municipal Bonds Aal

Mstual Fends - Fixed Aaa
U.S. Treasury Bills Al
MMonsy Market Funds Aza
Not Rated
Total Svhject to Risk - Moody's Ratings
Investments Subject to Cradit Rislkc - Fitch Ratings:

Municipal Bonds AA.
A
Corporate Bonds A

Total Svhject to Risk - Fitch Ratinzs
Other Investments Svhject to Cradit Risk - Not Eated:

Eaquity Sscuritizs and Fzal Estate Not Rated
Repurchase Agreements Mot Rated
Cartificates of Deposit Mot Rated
Inwvestment in LGIFP Mot Rated
Unidentified Mot Rat=d

Other Investments Svhject to Credit Risk: Not Rated
‘Total Investments Subject to Cradit Risk
Investments Mot Subject to Cradit Risk
Less: LGIF Interfund Investments
Foundation Investments Held in Consel. Inv. Pool
Investments in Fiduciary Fund

Add: Edvcation Trust Board Investments (prasented elsewhera)

Total Investments
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147,510

468
286,143

78,441
6,277
408
85,126

3,167
2,464,000
23,700
785
3
2,491,639
17,723,921
43,750,506
(785)
(229,872)
(36,630}
2,471,532
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The credit ratings for the Education Trust Board are shown separately as follows:

New Mexico Education Trust Board

Quality Rating of Investments

Scholar's Edee Plan Oppen- Oppen- Oppen-
heimer heimer Oppen- American Mainstay heimer
Global Limited - heimer Century High Yield Limited
Strategic Term Int'l Diverzified Corporate Term
Income Govt Bond Bond Bond Bond
InvestmentRating Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
Investments Subject to Cradit Risk - NESRO
Ala 281 % 815 % 144 % 58.5 % 0.0 %
AL 21 03 36 6.6 0.0
A 48 36 119 12.8 0.0
BEB 16.1 33 257 185 0.0
BB and Lower 40.3 0.1 28.7 3.1 0.0
WESRO-rated Total 815 854 853 R 0.0
Mot Rated 8.5 0.6 147 0.1 0.0
Taotal 100.0 % 1000 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 0.0 %
American
Oppenheimer Oppenheimer Century
Floating Total Short
Rate Return Duration
Fund Bond Fund Fund
Invastments Subject to Cradit Risk - NESRO
Aaa 33 % 470 % 483 %
AL 0.0 50 15
A 0.0 16.8 16.0
BEE 13 274 186
BE and Lower 88.5 33 8.5
NESRO-rated Total G456 8os gos
ot Rated 54 0.3 0.3
Total 100.0 % 1000 % 100.0 %
The Fducation Plan Oppenheimer Oppenheimer Oppenheimer Vanguard Vanguard Vanguard
Limited-Term Limited-Term Senior Total Bond Short-term  Short-term
Government Bond Floating Rate larket Inde: Bond Index TIPS
InvezstmentRating Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
Investments Subject to Cradit Risk - NESRO
Aaa 815 % 200 % 33 % T0.7 % 100.0 %
AA 0.3 53 0.0 44 0.0
A 36 208 0.0 114 0.0
BEB 33 46.3 18 13.5 0.0
BB and lower 0.1 68 8535 0.0 0.0
WNESRO-rated Total 554 857 G446 100.0 100.0
Mot Rated 0.6 03 54 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total 100.0 % 1000 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %
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Custodial Credit Risk

Investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered in the name
of the State, and are held by either the counterparty or the counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the
State’s name. All of the State’s securities are held directly or by third party custodians, independent of any
counterparty, in the name of the State.

D. Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise in the event of default by a single issuer. It is the policy
of the State to diversify its investments portfolios. Assets shall be diversified to reduce the risk of loss resulting from
an over-concentration of assets in a specific maturity, a specific issuer, or a specific class of securities. At June 30,
2019, there were no holdings with a single issuer comprising five percent or more of total net investments. It should
be noted that investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government and investments in mutual funds,
external investment pools, and other pooled investments are excluded from this requirement.

E. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of the investments.
Investment managers attempt to match investments with anticipated cash requirements so as to lessen this risk.

PERA’s interest rate risk is controlled by the duration guidelines provided in the Investment Guidelines for each fixed
income manager. Duration is loosely defined as the dollar weighted average time to recover all of principal and fixed-
income investment. PERA’s fixed-income managers are typically limited to duration of plus or minus one year or 20.0
percent of the duration of the applicable portfolio benchmark. ERB does not have a policy for interest rate risk
management. However, interest rate risk is managed through duration by operating within defined risk parameters
versus a benchmark index.
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Maturities on investment at June 30, 2019, were as follows:

State of New Mexico
Maturitiez on Investments
(Expressed in Theusands)

Total
Investment Fair Value =1 year 1-5 years 6-10 years =10 Years Life Not Avail.
Investments Svhject to Interest Rate Risk:
U5, Treasvriss $ 612045 § 242388 § 163,042 S 206415 3 - 3 -
US. Government Azenciss 1,662,353 842,635 87,799 712,762 9,337 -
Corporats Bonds 3,795,891 370,762 1421635 1.860,22 147,266 -
Municipal Provincial Bonds 2,422,787 31,761 2,341,091 23,135 26,800 -
Certificates of Deposit 169,150 21,851 147,295 - - -
Repurchase Agreements 2,464 000 2,464 000 - - - -
Collateralized Dbt Oblizations 135,887 135,887 - - - -
CMO/REMIC 237,156 94,707 2,72 128,929 -
Asset-backsd Securitizs 628,712 82,525 7.87 46242 -
Commercial Mortzagz-backed 265,886 42,980 787 7 214,331 -
Commercial Paper 15,548 15,545 - - - -
Discounted Notes 451,180 443417 2,763 - - -
Govarnment Bonds 1,576,876 70,366 752,854 462,041 291,615 -
Monsy Markst 11,417 11,035 - 357 25
Mortzage-backad Secs. 1466034 12,576 209,122 26,204 1,128,132 -
Mutual Funds - Fixed 16,509 - 4,850 11,659 - -
Prafarrad Stock 32,240 - - - - 32,240
TIPS 301,258 - - 501,238 - -
Futures 7364 7364 - - - -
Options 335 33 - - - -
International Government Oblizations 354 869 - - 354 860 - -
Bankers' Accaptancas 11426 1142 - - - -
Cash Collateral 8,737 - - - 109 8,648
Swaps 2,529 252 (2,732) 5,116 (107) -
Swaptions 269 289 - - - -
Short-term Investments 86,388 - 86,388 - - -
Investment in LGIP 788 785 - - - -
Szcuritizs Lending Investments 341 651 341 651 - - - -
Invastments Subject to
Intersst Rate Risk 17327637 8§ 35253835 § 3765454 § 4274501 § 1992899 5 40,888
Investments Mot Subject to
Intersst Rate Risk 44,146,750
Lass: Interfund Investments (78%)
Foundation Investments Held
in Consolidated Pool (229.872)
Other Investments (36.630)
Add: Education Trust Board -
Presented Elsevhere 2471532
Total Investments S 63,678,66!

Calculations based on weighted-average method (WAM)
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The maturities on investments for the Education Trust Board are shown separately as follows:

New Mexico Education Trust Board
Maturitiez on Investments

Investment =1 year 1-5 vears 6-10 years
The Scholar's Edge:
Crppenheimer Total Beturn Bond Fund X
Amernican Century Diversified Bond Fund X
Oppenheimer Global Strategic Income Fund
Oppenheimer International Bond Fund
Mainztay High Vield Corporate Bond Fund
Oppenheimer Limited-Term Goverment Fund
Oppenhemer Limited Term Bond Fund
Amencan Century Shert Duration Fund
Oppenheimer Sanior Floatine Rate Fund x

MMM M MM

The Education Plan:

Vanguard Total Bond Markst Index Fumd x
Vanguard Short Tenm TIPS Fund

Vanguard Short Tenm Bond Fund =

Invesco Oppenhetmer Limited-Tarm Gov't. Fund
Invesco Oppenhemmer Intenationsal Bond Fund =
Invesco Opperheimer Semor Flozting Fate Fund x

M

F. Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
Exposure to foreign currency risk at June 30, 2019 was as follows:
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State of New Mexico

Foreign Currency Risk
International Investment Securities at Fair Value

(Expressed in Thousands)

Vent. Cap., Pref. Cash and Cash

Fixed Stk., Rts., REITs, Total Equivalents

Foreign Currency Equity Income Ptshps., Wrnts. Derivatives Iny t (Overdraft)
Australian Dollar 5 119002 5 12,061 5 - 5 13 § 131166 5 623

Bangladeshi Taka - - - 27N 27N -

Botswana Pula - - - 12 -
Bragzilian Real 25 - - 215,629 1610
British Pound Sterling 2 49,433 33424 38 380,180 2859
Canadian Dollar 251954 10,815 - (16) 262,753 7383
Chilean Peso 259,056 360 - (3) 259613 2110
Chinese Yuan Renminbi 43374 - - - 43374 396
Colombian Peso 6.463 - - (6) 6.437 69
Croatian Kuna 3 - - - 3 103

Czech Koruna 2,639 1259 - (3 3013 -
Danish Krone 37.400 34,603 - (3) 72,000 760

Dominican Peso 162 - - - 162 -
Egyptian Pound 60,149 131,385 - - 181,534 261
Euro 374,163 - 246,480 - 820,654 7083

Ghanian Cedi 139 - - - 139 -
Georgian Lari 831,013 33 - ©7 830,969 6,061
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State of New Mexico
Foreign Currency Risk (Continued)
International Investment Securities at Fair Value

(Expressed in Thousands)
Vent. Cap., Pref. Cash and
Fixed Stk., Rts., REITs, Total Cash

Foreign Currency Equity Income Ptshps., Wrnts. Derivatives Iny t Equivalents
Hong Kong Dollar 5 1341791 S 5226 5 384496 5 (375) S 1730938 S 13,082
Hungarian Forint 426,037 190 - - 426247 222
Indian Rupes 79424 - - 33 79,457 240
Indonesian Rupish 24932 1125 - 3 26,060 73
Japanese Yen 310,644 67416 - - 378,060 3,336

Kenvan Shilling 6 - - - 6 -
Malaysian Ringgit 17,903 73 - - 18.616 123
Mexican Peso 36,051 1.014 - (12) 37,053 400
New Israsli Shekel 52,770 436 - 44 53230 107
New Taiwan Dollar 124201 - - 143 124,434 1036
New Zzaland Dollar 21,379 361 - 4 22244 1204
Norwsgian Krone 30,540 247 - - 30,787 122
Peruvian Nuevo Sol 39.501 - - (28) 39473 442
Philippine Peso 8323 2477 - (31) 10,769 10
Polish Zloty 25207 526 - 3 25,736 520
Qatari Rival 588171 4326 43,025 (34) 640,468 1,886

Fomanian Leu 38

Ca
Ln
=
Ca
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State of New Mexico

Foreign Currency Risk (Continued)

International Investment Securities at Fair Value
(Expressed in Thousands)

Vent. Cap., Pref. Cash and
Fixed Stk., Rts., REITs, Total Cash
Foreign Currency Equity Income Ptshps., Wrats. Derivatives Iny t Equivalents
Russian Ruble 12007 5 5 - - 5 12,007 1712
Saudi Riyal - - - 63 63 -
Singapore Dollar 46,418 366 - - 47284 1228
South African Rand 87206 - - (34) 87122 456
South Korean Won 133,148 5.981 - (127 139,002 669
Swedish Krona 186,260 963 - ) 187221 947
Swiss Frane 282,047 1,140 - (n 283186 383
Thai Baht 396,143 1246 - (12) 397,379 839
Tunisian Dinar 2 - - 2 2,010
Turkish Lira 1334135 - - 133,413 141
UAE Ditham 30,639 - - 30,639 -
Urnguayan Peso 113 - - - 113 -
Subtotals 7333470 § 333,002 5 732434 (719 8,420,187
Total Investments and Cash and Cash
Equivalents Subject to Forsign
Currenty Risk 9.420.187 64,247
Investments Not Subject to
Forzign Currency Risk
Total Investments $
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Securities Collateral

The State’s Investment Policy states that no repurchase agreement shall be entered into unless the contract is fully
secured by deliverable obligations of the United States or other securities backed by the United States having a market
value of at least 102.0 percent of the amount of the contract. The Office of the State Treasurer reports the credit ratings
and maturities on collateral securities held by that office at June 30, 2019 as follows:

Caollateral Securities Held
{Expressed in Theusands)
Value
Investments Subject to Intersst Rate Risk:
UL Government Mortzass-backsd Sacuritizs A4+ S  1464,000

Maturitiez on Collateralized Securities
Greater Than
< 1 Year 1-35 Years G- 10 Years 11-20 Years 20 Years Total

§ 2464000 S 5 - s - s - § 2,464,000

Securities Lending

The State Public Employee Retirement Association (PERA) participates in a securities lending program as authorized
by State statute and its Board policies. Both the State Investment Council and the Educational Retirement Board have
terminated their lending programs.

The types of securities lent are U.S. Treasury Notes and Bonds, U.S. and international equity securities, and corporate
bonds and notes. Under this program, securities are transferred to an independent broker-dealer or other lending agent
in exchange for collateral in the form of cash, government securities, and/or irrevocable bank letters of credit, with a
simultaneous agreement to return the collateral for the same securities in the future. The collateral must equal at least
102.0 percent of the market value of the securities.

Per Board policy, PERA may invest the cash collateral in eligible securities or other investments as defined in the

governing securities lending agreement. The duration of investments so made does not generally match the maturities
of securities loaned. Securities received as collateral may not be pledged or sold without borrower default.
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Total securities on loan at June 30, 2019, had a carrying amount and fair value of $554.5 million. Under the agreement,
the lending agent is required to indemnify the entity if the borrower fails to return the securities, if collateral is
inadequate to replace the securities lent, or if the counterparty fails to pay the entity for income distributions by the
securities’ issuers while the securities are on loan. There were no such losses during the year ended June 30, 2019,
due to borrower default.

The fair value of investments made with cash collateral is reported as an asset; the fair value of collateral received is
recorded as a liability as PERA must return the cash collateral to the borrower upon the expiration of the loan. The
fair value of the securities lending collateral investments was $341.7 million and the securities lending obligations
were $341.6 million at June 30, 2019. Total cash and noncash collateral was $587.6 million, 105.1% of the fair value
of the securities on loan.

At June 30, 2019, there had been no losses resulting from borrower defaults and PERA had no credit risk exposure to
borrowers because the amounts PERA owed to borrowers did not exceed the amounts the borrowers owed to PERA.
Net earnings from the securities lending program totaled $2.9 million for the fiscal year.

Derivatives

Derivatives are generally defined as contracts whose value depends on, or derives from, the value of an underlying
asset, reference rate, or index. The State’s retirement funds’ investment policies allow certain portfolio managers to
trade in certain derivatives for hedging purposes.

The notional or contractual amounts of derivatives indicate the extent of the State’s involvement in the various types
and uses of derivative financial instruments and do not measure the State’s exposure to credit or market risks, and
they do not necessarily represent amounts exchanged by the parties. The amounts exchanged are determined by
reference to the notional amounts and other terms of the derivatives.

The fair value balances and notional amounts of derivative instruments outstanding at June 30, 2019, classified by

type, and the changes in fair value of such derivative instruments for the year then ended as reported in the financial
statements are as follows:
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Public Employees Retirement Association

Derivative Financial Instruments

(Expressed in TTousands)
Change in Notional
Derivative Tvpe Classification  Fair Value Fair Value Amount Unit of Value
Futures Contracts
Currency Futures Investments § 161 § 184 § 37,820 § 37,981
Equity Index Futures Investments 1,348 1,962 213,380 215,220
EBond Index Futures Inveztments 6,404 6,181 612,745 619,239
Commeodity Futures Investments 2278 2278 53,807 56,083
Options
Fixed Income Options Investments (263) (128) - (263)
Swap Contracts
Clearsd Credit Default Swaps Investments 8,741 7,701 - 361
Inflation Swaps Investments - - - -
Cleared Inflation Swaps Inveztments (206) (343) - (206)
Interest Rate Swaps Investments 43 39 - 51
Credit Default Swaps Investments (L) (1) - -
Clearsd Interest Rate Swaps Investments (1,879 (3.97%) - (1.974)
Cleared Zero Coupon Swaps Investments (473) (439) - (323)
Educational Retirement Board
Derivative Financial Instrucments
FY19
(Expressed in Theusands)

Derivative Type Notional Amount

Futures Contracts - Short 3 (400)

FX Forward Contracts, Net 122,997

Pay Interest Rate Swaps 1.333

Feceive Interest Rate Swaps 10,388

Derivative Type Classification Gain(Loss) Classification Amount

Futures Investment Income 3 (32)  Investment 35 -

Options - Purchased Investment Income (34)  Investment -

Options - Written Investment Income 18 Investment -

FXForwards Investment Income 117 Investment 460

Pay Interest Rate Swaps Investment Income (7.00)  Investment Q]

Beceive Interest Rate Swaps  Investment Income 244 Investment 207
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Educational Retirement Board

Summary of Futures, Options, and Swaps Contracts, By Currency
As of June 30, 2019
(Expressed in Thousands)

Transation Notional Unrealized
Type Currency Amount Gain/Loss
Futures US Dollar (400) 5 24)
Options Purchased  Euro Currency - 27
US Dollar - Cl
Options Written Euro Cutrency - (3)
US Dollar - 12
Swaps Brazilian Real 1,781 83
Chilean Peso 277 (1)
Columbian Peso 221 11
Czech Koruna 83¢ o
Malaysian Ringgit 619 1
Mexican Peso 2,159 4
South African Rand o079 (6)
Yuan Renminbi 4,748 27
Totals 11,343 5 216
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Risk — There are certain risks inherent in investments in derivatives. Counterparties to financial instruments expose
the State to credit risk in the event of nonperformance. The fund managers that are authorized to invest in derivatives
are given specific parameters as to the types of derivatives invested in and ratings of the counterparties they are allowed
to enter into contracts with to ensure transactions are entered into with only high quality institutions. The State is
exposed to market risk; the risk that changes in market conditions may make an investment less valuable. Exposure
to market risk is managed within risk limits set by management through buying and selling of specific instruments or
by entering into offsetting positions. Foreign currency risk for investments is the risk that changes in exchange rates
will adversely affect the investments. Managers of these assets are given discretion to hedge this risk.

Types of Derivatives Instruments

Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts. The State’s retirement funds may enter into forward contracts to purchase
and sell foreign currencies in the normal course of its investing activities to manage the currency exposure associated
with the State’s foreign equity and fixed income investments. The terms of these contracts generally do not exceed
one year. The credit risk associated with these contracts is minimal as they are entered into with a limited number of
highly rated counterparties.

Risks associated with such contracts include movement in the value of the foreign currency relative to the U.S. dollar
and the ability of the counterparty to perform. Gains and losses on foreign currency may occur to the extent that the
fair value of the contracts varies from the actual contract amount, and they are recorded as incurred in the financial
statements.
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The following table summarizes the foreign exchange contracts by currency held by the Education Retirement Board
as of June 30, 2019:
Educational Retirement Board
Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts
June 30, 2019
(Expressed in Theusands)

Unrealized Unrealized
Currency Buys Gain (Loss) Sells Gain (Loss)
Argentine Peso $ - 3 7 % 040 ¢ (15)
Australian Dollar 1.628 16 2.146 47
Brazilian Real 4,592 61 4.814 (1"
British Pound Sterling 180 20 172 (36)
Canadian Dollar 469 (15) - -
Chilean Peso 2,522 61 235 (102)
Chinese Yuan Renminbi 5,860 27 4,289 (1m
Colombian Peso 1,491 34 1464 50
Czech Koruna 969 6 3.430 (162)
Egyptian Pound 211 &) 943 93
Euro 8.638 372 3.587 (41)
Hryvmia - - 96 g
Hungarian Forint 1,008 18 2,796 (310
Indian Rupee 272 2) 4,082 (63
Indonesian Rupiah 4.144 (26) 2,445 63
Japanese Yen 365 5 840 (7
Malaysian Ringgit 142 2 1.559 5
Mexican Peso - (9 4,353 76
New Israeli Shekel 1,623 50 605 5
New Tatwan Dollar 5,031 a5 2,498 (48)
New Zealand Dollar 038 (4) 9835 15
Peruvian Sol 1.116 (14) 2,474 33
Philippine Peso 1,551 (10) 460 10
Polish Zloty 887 37 3,226 (172)
Romanian Leu - - 802 (57
Russian Ruble 568 (11) 3.002 (66)
Singapore Dollar 2,649 (28) 4,045 2
South African Rand 1.571 (59) 1.764 8
South Korean Won 604 26 1,659 7
Swiss Franc 440 62 - -
Thai Baht 4,590 (55) 4,907 50
Turkish Lira 2,286 (86) 1446 42
Uruguayan Peso - - - 1
Totals 3 56,735 8 503 8 66,262 § (793)
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Futures Contracts. The State’s retirement funds enter into futures contracts in the normal course of its investing
activities, including equity futures, fixed income futures, and commodities futures. They are utilized in order to
manage market risk associated with the equity and fixed income investments and to achieve overall investment
portfolio objectives. These contracts involve elements of market risk in excess of amounts recognized in the statements
of Net Position available for benefits. The credit risk associated with these contracts is minimal as they are traded on
organized exchanges.

During 2019 and 2018, the retirement funds were a party to futures contracts held for trading purposes for U.S.
Treasury bonds and 90-day Euro dollar fixed income futures. Upon entering into a futures contract, the Board is
required to deposit either in cash or securities an amount (“initial margin”) equal to a certain percentage of the nominal
value of the contract. Subsequent payments are then made or received by NMERB, depending on the daily fluctuation
in the value of the underlying contracts. No U.S. Treasury securities owned and included within NMERB’s
investments, were held by the Plan’s broker as performance security on futures contracts as of June 30, 2019. There
were no outstanding futures contracts as of fiscal year ending June 30, 2019.

Options. An option is a contract in which the writer of the option grants the buyer of the option the right to purchase
from (call option), or sell to (put option), the writer a designated instrument at a specified price within a specified
period. Both written and purchased options were used by the State during the fiscal year. When the State purchases or
writes an option, an amount equal to the premium paid or received by the State is recorded as an asset or liability and
is subsequently adjusted to the current market value of the option purchased or written. Gain or loss is recognized
when the option contract expires or is closed. As of June 30, 2019, there were no open written or purchased options.

Swap Contracts. Swap contracts are executed on a number of different bases. The two types employed by the State
during the fiscal year were interest rate swap contracts and credit default swap contracts. An interest rate swap contract
is an agreement between two parties to exchange periodic interest payments. One party agrees to make payments to
the other based on a fixed rate of interest in exchange for payments based on a variable rate. The State employs interest
rate swap contracts to adjust fixed income portfolio durations. A credit default swap contract is similar to an insurance
policy; with the credit risk of an individual issuer or a basket of issuers (the “reference asset”) the insured factor.
Under such a contract, two parties enter into an agreement whereby the first party pays the second party a fixed
periodic payment for the specified life of the contract (analogous to an insurance premium). The other party makes no
payment unless a credit event related to the reference asset occurs. If such an event takes place, the second party is
obligated to make a payment to the first party. The size of the payment is linked to the decline in the reference asset’s
market value following determination of the occurrence of a credit event.

Hedge Funds. The use of other derivatives is allowed under the Hedge Fund Investment Policy. These investments
are under the management of the Hedge Fund managers who are employed in the “Hedge Fund”, “Emerging Market
Debt,” and “Opportunistic Credit” classifications.

Asset-Backed Securities. The State invests in various forms of asset-backed securities, which fit the previous

definition of derivative securities. These securities are held for investment purposes. The credit risk, interest rate risk,
and foreign currency risk for these instruments have been disclosed elsewhere in these Notes.
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Discretely-Presented Component Units
Fair Value

The fair value of investments of the discretely-presented component units were as follows:

State of New Mexico
Discretely Presented Component Units
Fair Value of Investments
(Expressed in Thousends)
Obzervable Inputs
Quoted Prices, Other Than Unobservable
Fair Valie Active Markets ‘Quoted Prices Inputs
Investment June 30,2019 (Level 1) (Leval2) Level 3)
‘Equity Securities:
Domestic Common Smock 5 81l 3 81911 3 - 3
Feal Aszats 813 1,706
Fzal Estate Munial Funds 0 -
Feeal Estate and Ohenr - 4,861
REIT - 0
Murual Funds - Equity 0,340
Money Market Funds 437 .
Exquity Invesments in New Mexico Entities - -
Balancad Funds 381 -
Markestable Secarities - 5
Cash Equivalent: 4,502 -
Pooled Funds - 77431
‘Total Equity Securities 148474 TE687 0,105
Debt Securities:
U5, Government Eonds 34480 705
US Treasurias 376364 33
Municinal Bonds - 3,250
Corperats Bonds - 268
Exchange Traded Funds 1616 -
Murual Funds - Finad 5100 301
Cerificates of Deposit 1,007 205
Securitizad Monzazs Loans 065,616 -
Fixed Income 646 =
Maortzage-backed Securities 3,041 086
‘Total Debt Sacurities | 409,878 13,748
Total Invertments Aleasured
At Fair Value 1661083 5 3 03436 3 10,195
Tnvestments Measured At Unfunded Redemption Redemption
Net Asset Value (NAV): Ci Frequency Notice Period
Limited Parmerships H 10,664 Cuuartesly 5-90 days
Murual Funds - Equity 40 Variouz 30 - 90 daws
Investments Measured at NAV
Other Investments:
Hald in Investment Pools
Invesanent Information Mot Available
Total Other Investments
Total Investments,
Discretely-presented C 3 1971486
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Interest Rate Risk

The investments of the discretely-presented component units were exposed to interest rate risk as follows:

State of New Mexico
Discretely Presented Component Units
Maturities on Investments
(Expressed in Thousands)

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Less Than Greater Than Not
Investment Type Fair Value 1 year 1-5 years 6-10 years 10 Years Available
Investments Subject to Interest
Rate Risk:
U.8. Treasury Motes/Bonds 3 376,364 S 111§ 374210 8§ - 5 643 S -
Fixed Income 646 646 - - - -
Certificates of Deposit 7,203 104 - - - 7101
Mutual Funds - Fixed 10,830 3.696 - - - 3,134
Corporate Bonds 1,269 3 238 444 384 -
U.S. Government Bonds 33,192 10,034 44,500 21 347 -
Mortgage-backed Securities 4.926 - 127 - 199 -
Pooled Funds 77282 - - - 77282
Muticipal Bonds 3,250 26 334 1270 1,400 -
Money Market 323 323 - - - -
Securitized Mortzage Loans 063,616 - 31 12,662 932,903 -
Feal Aszets 2519 2519 - - - -
Balanced Funds 38 381 - - - -
Cash 4,838 4,838 - - - -
Investments Subject to
Interest Rate Risk 1510641 S 26081 5 424370 5 14397 § 936276 3§ 80,517
Investments Not Subject to
Interest Rate Risk 226,552
Held in CTFund 220872
Information Not Available 4421
Total Investments, Discretely-
Presented Components 5 1,971,486
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Credit Risk

The investments of the discretely-presented component units were subject to credit risk as follows:

State of New Mexico
Discretely Presented Component Units
Quality Ratings

(Expressed in Thonsands)

Investment Type Rating Value
Investments Subject to Credit Risk - S&P Ratings:

U.5. Government Agencies AAA 5 35,523
AA+ 643
AA 18,147
U.5. Treasuries AAA 373462
Corporate Bonds AAA 28
AA+ 360
AA- 13
A- 42
BEE+ 78
EEB 13
Not Rated 1
Certificates of Deposit AAA 104
Not Rated 7,101
Securitized Mortzage Loans AAA 796,481
AA 169,133
Mortgage-backed Securities AA+ °
Not Rated 191
Mutual Funds - Equities A+ 860
EB- 3
Not Rated 34
Mutual Funds - Fixed AA 9
A 3
A+ 3
A 6
BB+ 1
EB 2
EB- 4
Not Rated 26
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State of New Mexico
Discretely Presented Component Units
Quality Ratings
(Expressed in Theusands)

Investment Type Rating Value
Investments Subject to Credit Risk - 8&P Ratings Continued):
Exchange-traded Funds AAA s 30
A+ 77
A 21
BBE+ 15
BEB 604
BEB- 36
B 42
Mot Rated 1,682
Total Subject to Risk - 5 & P Ratings 1,403,960
Investments Subject to Credit Risk - Moody's Ratings:
Municipal Bonds Aaa 344
Aal 432
Aal 631
Aal 614
Al 335
Baal 11
Not Rated 983
Corporate Bonds Al 733
U.S. Govemnment Agencies Aaa 521
U.5. Treasuries Aga 2,259
Total Subject to Risk - Moody's Ratings 6.763
Subject to Credit Risk - Not Rated 243,637
Total Subject to Credit Risk 1,656,362
Total Not Subject to Credit Risk 31,738
Information Mot Available 283,386
Total Investments, Discretely-
Presented Components 5 1,971,486

Concentration of Credit Risk
The New Mexico Mortgage Finance Authority had the following issuers and their respective percentage of total

investments represent greater than five percent of their total investments reported as of September 30, 2019: Ginnie
Mae at 78 percent and Fannie Mae at 17 percent.
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NOTE 4. Receivables

Receivables at June 30, 2019, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows (in thousands):

Noncurrent
Current Noncurrent Receivables, Receivables,
Local Accounts Current Receivables, Noncurrent Accounts Net Net
Federal Governments Receivable Brokers Interest Taxes Loans Allowance Net Total Loans, Net Receivahle Total Total
Governmental Activities 5 802525 § 11,507 362030 S 337,30 200 5 2,262,067 20402 S (1615,114) 5 2403639 6,976 12290 8 18205 2421840
Business- Type Activities 213 - 314374 - 2657 47242 10,743 (85,107 210,899 210,899 701,221
Fiduciary Funds 1 8 146,709 1492552 18,703 332,934 12,907 (1939) ] - - 2021874
Component Units 36,007 - 7 - 164,936 - 200830 1,730,762 1,730,762 1931712
Governmental Activities:
General 793,763 11,507 484233 12513 22.800 2262067 20402 (1,612,001) 1,995,194 6976 11,229 18205 2013397
Debt Service - - 1237 120 - - - 1357 - - 1357
Capital Projects 8,762 2,106 - - - 10.868 10.868
Severance Tax Permansnt - 14379 6,709 - - 01,088 01,088
Land Grant Permanznt 49303 243,080 - - - 207383 297383
Internal Service 10,770 - - (3,023) 7747 7747
Business-type Activities:
Educational Institutions - 421,639 - - - - 421638 18227 18227 439.866
Nonmajor Enterprise 213 92,935 2657 47242 10,743 (85,107) 68,683 192,672 192,672 261335
Fiduciary Funds:
Pension Trust 138,031 1,488,483 16,160 - 12813 227 1,633,282 1,633,280
External Trust - 1,366 2850 - - - 4216 4216
Private Purpose Trust 8 3041 1217 234 - - - 1708 1709
Agency 1 3351 - - 332934 94 (1,712) 334,667 334,667
Discrete Component Units:
Finance Authority 10,709 - - 164921 1477364 1477364 1,632,994
Mortgage Finance Authority 4183 - - - 231,937 231937 236,120
Other Major Component Units 15472 - - - 1381 1381 16833
Nonmajor Component Units 5643 7 - 15 20,080 20,080 23,745
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Accounts receivable balances are an aggregation of amounts due from the federal government, customers, and others.
Receivables from customers include charges for services to local governments, fees and fines issued by the courts and
corrections, employer contributions for unemployment benefits, amounts from investment brokers, interest earnings,
general and selective income taxes, and receivables because of overpayments to individuals receiving state assistance.

Arizona Water Settlement

The State of New Mexico entered into the Arizona Water Settlement with the federal government. Under the terms of
the agreement, the federal government will pay the State of New Mexico a total of $66 million in 2004 dollars adjusted
for inflation, in 10 annual installments. The inflation adjusted amount is estimated at $90.4 million. The installment
of $9.04 million was received by the Agency during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, and the Agency recorded a
receivable of $16.5 million to account for the remaining amount due. This receivable will be reduced as payments are
received from the federal government according to the settlement agreement. In addition, the actual amounts received
may require adjustment relative to the receivable recorded, due to indexing.

The amounts expected by year, as of June 30, 2019, assuming imputed interest of approximately 6.17%, are as follows:

Arizona Water Settlement Receivable

(Expressed in Theusands)

Year-End June 30 Principal Interest Total
2020 3,020 1,020 S.040
2021 8,516 324 5.040
Total 5 16536 8 154 5 18,080

The amounts received under this settlement agreement are restricted to costs of a New Mexico Unit that would develop
all or some of the water provided to New Mexico in the Arizona Water Settlement Act, for water utilization alternatives
that meet a water supply demand, planning, environmental restoration, or mitigation.
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Discrete Component Units

The following is an analysis of the allowance for loan losses as of June 30, 2019 for the two largest discretely-
presented component units (in thousands):

NMFA & NMMFA - Loan Lozz Allowance

WM Finance WM Mortgage
Avthority Fin. Auvth.
Begzinning Balance 5 4107 8 1,391
Provision for Loan Losses 121 838
Loans Written Off, Net of Recoveries (1,447 1,070
Ending Balance 5 2,781 § 3,300

NM Finance Authority Loans have repayment terms ranging from one to 30 years. The stated interest rates are between

0.0 — 6.0 percent. NMMFA mortgage loans have repayment terms ranging from 10 to 40 years. The stated interest
rates for these programs are as follows:

NNMFA - Loan Repavment Terms

Fental Hovsing Prosrams 2.5% - 7.0%
Other Mortzazs Loans 0.0% - 8.9%
Szcond Mortzaze Down

Payment Assistance

Laoans 0.0% - 6.6%

MBSs have stated interest rates ranging from 2.8% and 7.5%.
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NOTE 5. Interfund and Interagency Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

Interfund receivables and payables balances result from the time lags between the dates that: 1) interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur; 2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system; and
3) payments between funds are made.

Transfers between funds occur when one fund collects revenue and transfers the assets to another fund for expenditure
or when one fund provides working capital for another fund. All transfers must be legally authorized by the Legislature
through statute or an Appropriation Act. Transfers during the year were made to finance the operations of the
individual departments as authorized by the Legislature and to revert (transfers out) any unspent or unencumbered
balance of the authorized appropriations. Transfers between the primary government and the fiduciary funds and
component units are reclassified as expenditures in the government-wide financial statements.

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2019, is as follows (in thousands):

Transfers Transfers
Due From Due To In Out

Governmental Activities:
General $ 29,027 $ 309,930 $ 1,082,250 § 1,625,577
Debt Service 128,120 1 9,351 246,097
Capital Projects 2,207 3,018 835,619 140,305
Severance Tax Permanent 8 - 245,455 231,157
Land Grant Permanent 153,740 - - 782,085
Internal Service 16,279 16,279 36,406 26,916
Total Governmental Activities 329,381 329,228 2,209,081 3,052,137

Business-type Activities:
Educational Institutions - - 870,661 40,600
Nonmajor Enterprise - 153 13,973 979
Total Business-type Activities $ - 153 884,634 41,579
Totals $ 329381 § 329,381 § 3,093,716 $ 3,093,716
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NOTE 6. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for Governmental Activities for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows (in thousands):

Beginning Ending

Governmental Activities: Balance Addi Deletions Reclass Transfers Balance
Capital Assets not being Depreciated:

Land and Land Improvements 3 662,079 (1679) s 15882 5 (138 s 1932 S Q76 s

Construction in Progress 363,842 (249) 336276 - (194,160) -

Mineral Rights 34179 - - - - -

Art and Other 139 - - - - -
Total Capital Assets not being Depreciated 1,110,839 (1928) 372,118 (138) (189.228) 276) 1,291,387
Capital Assets being Depreciated:

Land Improvements 34,625 - 1248 (32 147 85 36,073

Equipment and Machinery 210,782 1,581 14,042 (24,680) (3.038) 548 199,235

Building and Improvements 1,966,564 497 72613 (66.339) 13,401 128 1,936,864

Furniture and Fixtures 22,046 (1.074) 1869 3) 11 9 22,578

Data Processing Equipment and Software 416,468 (1,067) 14,562 (17,805) 5242 (41 417058

Library Books and Other 10,733 - 173 (23) - - 10,907

Vehicles 344,194 (48) 20,88 (14,623) 1,948 4 361,312

Infrastructure 13,912,757 - 2573 (326.329) 171,517 (37) 13,559,933
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated 16,938,191 (112) 136,971 (630,664) 189,228 348 16,613,961
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Land Improvements (32911) - (1659) 54 16 - (34,500)

Equipment and Machinery (136,241) (i (11,385) 24301 1,985 (420) (141,771)

Building and Improvements (992 398) 526 (56.776) 23111 67 85 (1.025.385)

Fumiture and Fistures (17,253) 025 (983) 314 (46) (182) (17.225)

Data Processing Equipment and Software (228,764) 1,467 (32937 17433 (643) 3% (243,050)

Library Books and Other (1.266) - 0] 2 - - (1268)

Vehicles (251,078) 144 (22,709) 14,432 (L377) 4 (260.344)

Infrastructure (9,198,195) - (396,389) 526,828 - 4 (2,067,751
Total Accumulated Depreciation {10,875,106) 3,031 (523.042) 506,676 - (72 (10,791,494)
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated, Net 6,060,085 2938 (386.072) {43.988) 189,228 276 5.822.467

Capital Assets, Net s 7170924 1011 8 (13,954) § (44,126) S - $ - s 7,113,854

Depreciation expense charged to functions/programs of governmental activities was as follows (in thousands):

General Control
Education

Health and Human Services

Highways and Transportation
Culture, Recreation, and Nat. Resources

Tudicial

Legislative
Public Safety
Regulation and Licensing

Total

112

33,650
681
15,185

17,038
6,036
1875

16,296
5,037
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Capital asset activity for Business-type Activities for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows (in thousands):

Business-type Activities:

Capital Assets not being Depreciated:
Land and Land Improvements
Construction in Progress
Infrastructure
Art and Other

Total Capital Assets not being Depreciated

Capital Assets being Depreciated
Land Improvements
Equipment and Machinery
Building and Improvements
Furniture and Fixtures
Data Processing Equipment and Software
Library Books and Other
Vehicles
Infrastructure
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Land Improvements
Equipment and Machinery
Building and Improvements
Fumiture and Fixtures
Data Processing Equipment and Software
Library Books and Other
Vehicles
Infrastructure
Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets being Depreciated, Net

Capital Assets, Net

Beginning Ending
Balance Restatement Add Deletions Reclass Transfers Balance
5 98937 § 3273 § E Y @ 5 118 - 5 102,414
152,334 144,999 - (132.470) - 164.863
4 - - - 4 - -

2,191 - 308 - 74 - 2372
253,386 3275 145,346 5) (132,332) - 269.850

383 - -

i1 30,816 (43214 -

3016 2.836 (6,195) -

- 11 (757 - -

- 269 (1,096) -

- 10491 (476) - -

- 577 (333) - -

- 109 - 1,308 -

3,067 63494 (32,071) 132,332 -
(114,361) B (7.66T) 1677 R B (120.551)
(707,617 an (56.329) 40,304 - - (723.659)
(1,516,594 (5.020) (89,345) 6,032 - - (L,604.927)
(1471) - 8 753 - - (724)
(19.511) - (568) 903 - - (19.174)
(287.644) - (10.933) 473 - - (298.104)
(5379) B (361) 333 R B (5.407)
(201417 - (13,586) - - - (215.003)
(2.854.193) (G.037) (175.300) 50481 N - (2.987.548)
2,300,648 30 (113,306) (1.3%0) 132,352 - 2,318,135
$ 2554234 § 3305 S 32041 8 (1595) § - $ 2,587,985
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Capital asset activity for Fiduciary Funds for the year ended June 30, 2019 was as follows (in thousands):

Beginning Ending
Fiduciary Funds: Balance R Additions Deletions Reclass Transfers Balance
Capital Assets not being Depreciated:
Land and Land Improvements $ 1.797 s - S - $ - s - $ - $ 1,797
Construction n Progress - - - - - - -
Art and Other 31 - - - - - 31
Total Capital Assets not being Depreciated 1.828 - - - - - 1.828
Capital Assets being Depreciated:
Land Improvements 19 - - - - - 19
Equipment and Machinery 239 - 5 - - - 244
Building and Improvements 16.083 - - - - - 16,083
Furniture and Fixtures 1,342 - 24 (63) - - 1,303
Data Processing Equipment and Software 26,203 - 789 - - - 26,992
Vehicles 57 - - - - - 57
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated 43.943 - 818 (63) - - 44.698
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Land Improvements (756) - (264) - - - (1.020)
Equipment and Machinery (35) - - - - - (35)
Building and Improvements (3.537) - (526) - - - (6.063)
Furniture and Fixtures (953) - (165) 60 - - (1,058)
Data Processing Equipment and Software (23.86T) - (287) - - - (24.154)
Vehicles (D) - - - - - (57)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (31.205) - (1.241) 60 - - (32.387)
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated. Net 12.738 - (423) 3 - - 12,311
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated. Net S 14566 § - S (423) 8 (3 8 - S - S 14,139
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Capital asset activity for Component Units for the year ended June 30, 2019 was as follows (in thousands):

Component Units - Capital Assets Beginning Ending
Balance Restatement Additions Deletions Reclass Transfers Balance

Capital Assets not being Depreciated.

Land and Land Improvements $ 19162 § (4.401) § 168 % - 3 - $ - $ 14,029
Construction Work in Progress 8.842 - 4,257 - (9.308) - 3,791
Art and Other 3,500 - 142 (8) - - 3.643
Total Capital Assets not being Depreciated 31,513 (4,401 4,367 (8) (9.308) - 22,363
Capital Assets being Depreciated:
Building and Improvements 83,041 (9,767) 3,106 (1,490) 9,308 - 84,198
Leasehold Improvements 23 - - - - - 23
Infrastructure 6,806 - - - - - 6,896
Aircrafts 105 - - - - - 105
Vehicles 1,744 2n 132 - - - 1,849
Machinery And Equipment 5,942 - 61 (65) 368 - 6,306
Data Processing Equipment and Software 4325 - 131 (15) (366) - 4,075
Furniture and Fixtures 9,564 (462) 1,286 (363) @ - 10,023
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated 111,640 (10,256) 4,716 (1,933) 0,308 - 113,475
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Building and Improvements (16.408) 1,511 (2,412) 884 (13) - (16,438)
Infrastructure (0) - @) - - - @
Vehicles (710) 56 (165) - - - (819)
Equipment and Machinery (1.812) - (81) 64 (355) - (2.184)
Leasehold Improvements - - - - - - -
Data Processing Equipment and Software (4.177) - (1135) 16 366 - (3.911)
Furniture and Fixtures (6.082) 102 (835) 265 2 - (6.548)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (20.189) 1,660 (3.610) 1.229 - - (29.901)
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated. Net 82451 (8.587) 1.106 (704) 0.308 - 83.574
Capital Assets, Net S 113,964 (12,988) 3.673 (7112) - - 105,937
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NOTE 7. Deferred Outflows of Resources
A. Deferred Charge on Refunding

The State issued multiple series of refunding bonds in prior years to advance-refund certain older issues. Thus, the
bonds which were advance-refunded are considered defeased in substance. The excess of the reacquisition price
(funds required to refund the old debt) over the net carrying amount of the old debt resulted in a loss, reported as a
deferred outflow of resources. For fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, the deferred outflow of resources for
governmental activities and business-type activities were as follows (in thousands):

Deferred Charge on Refunding

Governmental Business-type
Beginning Balance $ 81,590 $ 5.572
Additions - -
Deletions (10.689) (7807
Ending Balance 5 70,901 $ 4792

B. Interest Rate Swaps
In the course of bond refunding transactions, the State has entered into transactions termed interest rate swaps, which

are classified as hedges. This has resulted in items classified as a deferred outflow of resources. For more information
on these interest rate swaps, see Notes 8 G and 8 H.
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NOTE 8. Long-term Liabilities

Changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2019, are presented in the following table (in thousands).
As referenced below, certain long-term liabilities are discussed in other Notes to the Financial Statements.

Beginning Amounts
Balance, Ending Due Within Long term
Restated Additis ; Balance One Year Debt

Governmental Activities:

General Obligation Bonds § 5 -3 (60.600) 350925 % 3 312,650
Severance Tax Bonds - (129,300) B14.3T0 680,243
Fevanue Bonds and Loans Payable 476 - (120,633) 1221323 118,317 1,101,506
et Unamortizad Premiums, Discounts 301,838 8318 (33.167) 237938 43,022 208,967
Total Bonds Payable 1933.736 74573 (363.702) 2644607 335,855 2304708
Hotes Pavable - 1230 - 1250 1230 -
Insuranca Claims Pavahle 3,803 166,383 ] 75,968
Contingent I izbilitios 116 29,516 .
Compensated Absences 81330 63,785 4910
Native American Water Settlement Liability - 69,706 - 65,706
FPollution Famadiation Oblization 827 27457 621 16,836
Capital Leazses - - - -
Mhse. Liabilities (184) 431647 447286 4,361
Total Other Lizhilities (302,885) 814 064 633,183 181781
Total Governmental Long-term Liabilities § 3515787 § 610370 3% 666.38T) $ 3459371 & 73082 § 2486.485
Beginning Amounts
Balance, Ending Due Within Long term
Business-type Activities: Restated Additions Deletions Balance Debt
Fevenue Bonds 5 09046 5 17784 3 3 BE5272 % 45823 3 BLS. 445
Bond Pramium. Discount. Mat 46,147 - 41.751 4283 37.506
Total Bonds Payable 955,193 17,784 (63.914) 907,063 50,108 856,935
Compensated Absences 75,736 (74,753) 87,538 €9,526 13,063
Fesarve for Losses 6084 - 93,170 22,778 73,392
MNotas Payable - (880) 11,283 943 10,340
Insurance Claims Payahle - 7178 7175 -
Capntal Leases (428) 935 383 356
Derivatrve Instruments - Interest Rate Swaps - 7,186 - 7136
Stadent Loans (681) 15,060 - 15,060
Environmental Clearmp - . 5434 - 5434
Misc. Lizhilities 7 12.082 (31.305) 36,713 32,383 4320
Total Other Lizhilities 299231 98613 (108.287) 289,357 153,206 136,351
Total Business-type Long-term Liabilities $ 1234424 § 116397 & (174201) % L196621 & 203314 § 993,306
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Beginning Ending Due Within Long term
Fiduciary: Balance Additions Deletions Balance One Year Debt
Pension Trust Funds
Compensated Absences $ 1,080  § 1,295 § (1,607) § 768 § 733§ 35
Total Fiduciary Long-term Liabilities $ 1,080  § 1,295  § (1,607) § 768  $ 733§ 35
Beginning Amounts
Balance, Ending Due Within Long term
Restated Additions Deletions Balance One Year Debt
Compent Units: -_— e
Revenue Bonds $ 2,122,192 § 340452 § - S 2,462,644 S 138,157 $ 2,324,487
Total Bonds Payable 2,122,192 340,452 - 2,462,644 138,157 2,324,487
Compensated Absences 886 792 (763) 915 905 10
Notes Payable 40,623 4,042 (5,318) 39,347 25,299 14,048
Loans Payable 506 9 (258) 257 257 -
Misc. Liabilities 497,800 35,020 (14,503) 518,317 400,875 117,442
Total Other Liabilities 539,815 39,863 (20,842) 558,836 427,336 131,500
Total Component Unit Long-term Liabilities $ 2,662,007  $ 380,315  $ (20.842) $ 3,021,480 § 565493 8§ 2,455,987

A. Restatement Summary

A summary of the restated balances of long-term liabilities follows. Only those balances which have changed
are presented in this summary (in thousands):

Ending Beginning Change
Balance Balance Increase
FY 18 (Restated) (Decrease) Reason
Governmental Activities:
Net Unamortized Premiums § 304222 3 301,838 § (2.384)  Cotrection of reporting error.
Compensated Absences 67.663 67,568 (95)  Correction of error.
Insurance Claims Payable 172,504 172,505 1 Rounding
Native American Water Settlement 76.681 76.680 (1)  Roundng
Total Net Change (2.479)
Total Long-term Liabilies. FY 18
Total Beginning Long-term Liabilities, FY 19 3

Business-type Activities:

Compensated Absences 86611 86.646 35 Prior year computation error.
Insurance Claims Payable - 5,125 5125 New
Miscellaneous Liabilities 81.379 76,138 (5.241)  Reporting Error

Rounding 1
Total Net Change, Business-type
Total Long-term Liabilities, FY 18
Total Beginning Long-term Liabilities, FY 19 3
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B. General Obligation Bonds

The State issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition, construction, and renovation of
major capital facilities for local governments as authorized by the Legislature of the State of New Mexico.
General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the State. These bonds
generally are issued as 10-year serial bonds with equal amounts of principal maturing each year. Funding for the
payment of the debt service of the general obligation bonds is provided through the collection of property taxes
levied by the local governments receiving the funding for capital spending. General obligation bonds outstanding
at year-end are as follows:

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows:

General Obligation Bonds Payable
(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance
Maturity Interest Original June 30, Due in
Bond Issue Date Rate Issue 2019 One Year
Series 2011 2021 200-400 3 18645 & 4235 % 2,075
Series 2015 2025 5.00 141,635 93,570 13,755
Series 2017A 2027 5.00 148,520 126345 10,880
Series 2017B 2025 5.00 151,790 126,775 11,525
Total General Obligation Bonds Payable $ 350,925 8§ 38,235

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for General Obligation Bonds are as follows:

General Obligation Bonds
Debt Service Requirements to Maturity
For Fiscal Years End June 30
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2020 $ 38.235 % 17.504  § 55,739
2021 55.270 15,612 70.882
2022 56.455 12,872 69.327
2023 60.005 10.048 70.053
2024 48.435 7.048 55.483

2025 -2027 92.525 7.732 100.257
Total S 350,925 8 70,816 S 421,741
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C. Severance Tax Bonds

Severance tax bonds are used to fund the capital needs of state agencies, local governments, and public and higher
education as authorized by the Legislature of the State of New Mexico. In addition, severance tax bonds have
been issued to refund severance tax bonds. Funding for the payment of the debt service of the severance tax bonds
is provided through the collection of severance taxes levied on the mining and production of various natural
resources, such as minerals, oil, and gas. The severance tax bonds are secured by the levied taxes. This is a
permanent commitment of a portion of total severance tax revenues. As authorized by State statute, severance tax
revenues are transferred to the Severance Tax Bonding Fund and first pay the required debt service on severance
tax bonds and supplemental severance tax bonds issued by the State, with the remainder being transferred to the
Severance Tax Permanent Fund. For the year ended June 30, 2019, total severance tax revenues transferred to the
Severance Tax Bonding Fund were $672.4 million. The total principal and interest requirements were $173.7
million for long-term debt and $256.4 million for short-term debt for all severance tax and supplemental severance
tax bonds and short-term notes.

Severance tax bonds payable outstanding at year-end are as follows:

Severance Tax Bonds Payable
(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance
Date Maturity Interest Original June 30, Due in

Bond Issue Issued Date Rate Issue 2019 One Year
Series 2009 A 7/30/09 2019 200-500% § 218450 § 18600 § 18,600
Serles 20104 3/24/10 2019 3.00-500% 132,265 31570 15,400
Series 2010 B Supplemental 3/24/10 2019 4.00-500% 100,000 22110 10.865
Series 2011A-1 12/611 2022 3.00-500% 47,790 10,635 3,460
Series 2012A 6/21/12 2023 3.00-500% 57.990 29,600 6,855
Series 2014A 6/24/14 2025 2.00-500% 143,770 15,680 15,680
Series 2015A 81215 2026 5.00 % 129,185 110215 13,475
Series 2015B Supplemental 812115 2026 5.00 % 69,745 54575 7.280
Series 20164 6/23/16 2027 3.00-500% 78,750 78,750 -
Series 2016B 6/23/16 2025 4.00 % 181,395 181,393 12,225
Series 2016C 6/23/2016 2022 2.00% 41,925 27325 14.200
Series 2016D 11/15/2016 2028 5.00 % 26,725 26,725 -
Series 2016E 11/15/2016 2022 1 235% 18,090 16,685 2,500
Series 2017A 8/8/2017 2027 5.00 % 69470 67945 3,655
Series 20184 6/28/2018 2029 5.00 % 122,560 122,560 9.930
Total Severance Tax Bonds Payable S 814370 S 134,125
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for Severance Tax Bonds are as follows:

Severance Tax Bonds
Debt Service Requirements to Maturity
For Fiscal Years End June 30
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2020 $ 134,125 % 34255 % 168.380
2021 128.115 28.612 156,727
2022 108.955 23,586 132.541
2023 104.965 18.765 123.730
2024 98,025 14,063 112,088

2025 - 2029 240,185 21,166 261,351
Total s 814,370 S 140,447 § 954,817

D. Short-term Debt

Per Section 7-27-8 NMSA, the Office of State Treasurer is required to transfer any money left in the Severance
Tax Bond Fund every June 30 and December 31 to the Severance Tax Permanent Fund. The State Board of
Finance issues short-term Severance Tax Notes, which are of one to three days duration, in order to more fully
utilize the excess cash until such time as it is transferred. During the fiscal year 2019, short-term notes were sold:

Beginning Ending
Balance Issued Redeemed Balance

Sponge Bonds § - $ 256,363 $ (256363) &
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E. Revenue Bonds

The State also issues bonds where the government pledges certain revenue for the payment of debt service.
Revenue bonds payable are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Revenue Bond: and Loans Payable - Primary Government

(Exprezsed in Thousands)

Governmental Activities Balance

Original Maturity Interest June 30, Due in

Bond Izsue Izzue Date Rate 2018 One Year

2015A PPFRF - Metro Court 3 30,685 2025 4.00-500% 5 18545 8§ 2,925
2018A PPFF - General Services Dept. - 4431 28,480 2036 4.00-300% 27,445 1,085
2018C1 PPRF - Generl Services Dept. - 44174 11,510 2039 4.00-300% 11,510 -
2018C1 PPFRF - Generl Services Dept. - 44178 7.040 2038 277-40%% 7.040 30
200%A PPRF - General Services Dept. 5 2,456 2038 3.350% 1,846 80
2010A PPRF - General Services Dept. 6 1,015 2039 800 25
2016C PPEF - General Sarvices Dept. 8 37.320 2036 33,545
PPRF - 4765 - Ft. Bavard 48,633 2039 3.00% 48,265
PPRF - 4955 - GSD Enerzy Efficiency 11,500 2033 250-350% 11,500 -
Series 2009C Spaceport Public Project 35,810 2029 2350-523% 33,863 2,740
Series 2010 Spaceport Public Project 20,360 2028 047-408% 683
DL - General Services Dept. - Cultural Affairs 2,789 2023 046-142% 399
2004B PPRF - Cultural Affairs Dept. 2,350 2023 0.62-418% 143
2009A PPFRF - Cultutral Affairs Dept. 369 2020 0.75-383% 39
Series 2003 - Energy and Minsrals 7.339 2023 3.82% 457
PPRF - 4432 3,120 2028 3.00% 483
2008B PPRF - Department of Health 6 - § Rshab 11,545 2028 3.00%
2013C PPEF - Department of Health § - Las Vagas Med. Ctr 8973 2037 3.80%
Series 2010A Dbt Servies 174,623 2024 130 -5.00 %
Series 20108 Hizhway (GRIP) 461,073 2024 300-5.00% 214,765
Series 2012 Refunding 220,400 2026 1.25-5.00% 164,030
Series 2014 A Revenue 70,110 2032 3.00% 62,480
Series 2014 B Revenue 75,403 2027 3.00% 76,470
Beries 2018 A Refunding 420,090 2030 5.00% 418,825
Total Revenue Bonds: and Loans Payable § 1,211,312 s 119,517
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The annual debt service requirements to maturity for governmental activities revenue bonds and loans are as
follows:

Governmental Activities
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2020 3 119517 & 58,606 3 178,123
2021 123,615 52,801 176,416
2022 141389 46,738 188,127
2023 146,791 39.969 186,760
2024 172,379 33,133 205,512

2025 - 2029 380,326 97.308 477,634
2030 - 2034 93231 23812 117,043
2035 - 2039 44,074 5,771 49,845
2040 - 2044 - - -
2045 - 2049 - - -
Total $ 1,221,322 § 358,138 $ 1,579,460

Of the total of bonds and loans payable for Governmental Activities, $233,152 is payable to NM Finance
Authority, a discretely-presented component unit. These are summarized as follows:

Governmental Activities
Bonds & Loans Payable - Payable to Others & Payable to NMFA
(Expressed in Thousancds)

Payable to
Ext. Entities Dz to NMFA Total
Current:
Payabls to External Entities 107,110 3 - 5 107,110
D= to NNMFA - 12407 12,407
Total Corrent 107,110 12 407 119,517
Long-term:
Pawable to External Entitiss 381,060 - 881,060
D= to NMFA - 220,745 220,745
Total Long-term 881,080 220,745 1,101,805
Totals 5 588,170 3 233,152 5 1,221,322

Several of the loans reported are secured by prior agreement with tax revenue intercepted by the State Taxation
and Revenue Department and sent directly to the NMFA. This includes the General Services Department,
$159,582.

During fiscal 2019, the New Mexico Finance Authority (Authority) issued Series NMFA PPRF-4769 Refunding
Bonds, in the amount of $48.6 million, which enabled the General Services Department to acquire the Ft. Bayard
Medical Center from Grant County. The Authority also issued series PPRF-4955 Energy Efficiency Bonds in
the amount of $11.5 million for the purpose of financing efficient and/or renewable energy projects in state-
owned buildings. The Authority also issued PPRF-4432 in the amount of $5.1 million for the purpose of
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improvements at the New Mexico State Laboratory operated by the Department of Health. Each of these loans
is secured by intercepted tax revenues pledged on their behalf.

Business-type Activities
Revenue bonds related to business-type activities are as follows:

Revenue Bond: and Loans Payable - Primary Government

(Expressed in Thousands)

Business-type Activities Balance
Maturity Interest Original June 30, Due in
Inst. Bond Izssue Date Rate Izzue 2019 One Year
MCMC  MCMC 8t. Perm. Fd. Rev. Imp. & Refonding Serizs 2013 202 3.00 % 5 14,845 3 5025 % 1,030
NMSU  Refunding and Imp. Revenue Series 2010 A-D 2022 1.89-5.27 78,670 43,580 2,100
Refunding and Imp. Revenve Seriss 2013 A-C 2033 2.00-5.00 56,200 21,180 1,300
System Imp. Revenpe Series 2017 A-C 2042 1.75-3.00 73,240 3,675
NM Fin. Auth. PPF Loan 2035 0.69 - 3.69 7,000 285
ENMU  System Revenue Serizs 20118 2036 0.50-446 28,050 783
System Imp. Revenpe Series 2015 A 2045 0.34-383 12,430 300
System Revenue Refunding Series 2015 B 202 0.34-244 6,175 345
System Imp. Revenue Bonds Serizs 2017 2038 0.08-348 5,645 239
NMHU  System Refunding Series 20054 2035 3.00-6.07 13,785 80
System Refonding Serizs 20098 2035 3.00-6.07
System Refinding Revenve Series 2012 2034 0.83-426
M Tech System Revenue Series 2011 2031 3.00-5.00
NMMI  Ssries 2013A Improvement 2028 2.00 - 4.00
WHMU  System Revenue Series 2012 2038 2.00-53
System Refinding & Imp. Revenue 3eries 2013 2038 2.10-510
System Improvement Series 2014 2021
M System Ravenue Refunding Series 1592 A4 2021

=
o

Subordinate Lien System Imp. Revenue Serizs 2001

[

=
o

Subordinate Lien System Refunding Revenuve Serizs 2002 B

=
)
=]

Subordinate Lien System Refinding Revenue Series 2002 C

=
)
=]

Subordinate Lien System Imp. Revenue Serizs 2012

=
)
)

Subordinate Lien System Imp. Revenue Serizs 20144
Subordinate Lizn System Imp. Revenue Sarizs 2014 B

Subordinate Lien System Imp. Revenue Serizs 2014 C 035 1.50 - 5.00
Subordinate Lien System Imp. Revenue Serizs 20164 045 2.00-5.00

B3 b b3 B3 b3 B3 B3 b b3 k3 b3
=
[~
i

Subordinate Lien Systam Imp. Revenue Serizs 20168 024

Subordinate Lien System Imp. Revenue Series 2017 047

FHA Insurad Hospital Mortzaze Revenue Series 2015 032 0.45-333

Revenue Build America Bonds, Serizs 20104 (SEMC) 2036 43

Revenue Recovery Zone Econ. Dev. Series 20108 (SRMC) 2037 3

2016 A PPRF - UNM Health Sciencss Ctr. - Loan 2025 150 -4.80 26,200

UNM - Amortization of Defeazed Bonds - NMFA - - -

UNM ADW - UNM - Green Water Projsct - Loan 2032 0.75 399 27 2
Total Revenue Bonds and LoansPayable 5 B6s2T2 S 45,823
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The annual debt service requirements to maturity for business-type activities revenue bonds and loans are as
follows:

Business-type Activities
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2020 $ 45 823 3 36,487 b3 82310
2021 50,402 34543 85345
2022 50,659 32,904 83,563
2023 52,208 30,822 83,030
2024 52,971 28,570 81,541

2025 - 2029 260,511 107,997 368,508
2030 - 2034 208,718 57,939 266,657
2035 - 2039 99 405 19,934 119,339
2040 - 2044 31,110 7,069 38,179
2045 - 2049 13,465 1,100 14,565
Total $ 865,272 $ 357,765 § 1,223,037

Of the total of bonds and loans payable for Business-type Activities, $105,867 is payable to NM Finance
Authority, a discretely-presented component unit. These are summarized as follows:

Business-type Activities
Bonds & Loans Payable - Payable to Others & Payable to NMFA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Payable to
Ext. Entities Dueto NMFA Total

Current:
Payable to External Entities 3 39,065 3 - 3 39,065
Due to NMFA - 6,758 6,758

Total Current 39,065 6,758 45,823
Long-term:
Payable to External Entities 720,340 - 720,340
Due to NMFA - 99.109 99,109

Total Long-term 720,340 99,109 819,449
Totals 3 759,405 3 105,867 3 865272
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F. Pledged Revenue

The following listing provides more details on the types of revenue pledged for the various revenue bonds
outstanding

Governmental Activities

Agency:

Purposs of Bonds:

Total Amount of Bonds Issued:
Twvpe of Ravenves Pladzad:
Tarm of Commitment:

Total Dabt 3zrvies Remaining:

Revenue Stream for Current Year:

Deebt Service for Current Year:

Agency:

Purpose of Bonds:

Total Amount of Bonds Lssued:
Twvpe of Ravenves Pladzad:
Tarm of Commitment:

Total Debt Szrvice Remainine:

Revenue Strzam for Current Year:

Drebt Sarvice for Current Year:

Ageney:

Purposs of Bonds:

Total Amount of Bonds Lssued:
Twp= of Revenves Pladzad:

Term of Commitment:
Total Dabt S2rvice Remaining:

Revenus Stream for Current Yaar:

Dbt Service for Current Year:

Agency:

Purpose of Bonds & Loan:
Total Amount of Debt Issped:
Twpe of Ravenuves Pladzad:
Total Dabt S2rvice Remaining:
Term of Commitment:

Revenue Stream for Current Year:

Debt Service for Current Year:

Agency:

Purpose of Bonds

Total Amount of Debt Iszved:
Twvpa of Ravenues Pladgad:
Total Dabt Sarvice Remaining:
Term of Commitment:

Revenue Stream for Current Year:

Diebt Service for Current Year:

State af New Mexico - Severance Tax Bonds

Construction and acquisition of capital projects statewide

51.7 billion

Saverance tax revennves collected from mineral-extracting companizs.
Throvgh Jun= 30, 2029

3954 8 million

3672 4 million

3 166.5 million

Energy, Minerals, and Namral Resources Deparmment
Apcquisition and development of state parks and recreation arsas.
5 7.3 million

Departmant's thare of governmental gross recsipts tax revenns
Through Jen= 30, 2023

3 2.2 million

3 1.1 million

$ 536 thousand

Deparment of Transportation

Construct and improve State hishway and transportation svstem.

3 1.4 tillion

Gasoline sxcizs taxes, motor wehicle ragistration and other fzes
deposited into State Road Fund, plus Faderal Hishway Fond revenves
Through Jun= 30, 2030

3 1.2 billion

3 838 million
5

133 million

Deparmment of Cultural Affairs

Reanovate existing museum stroctures, develop permanent exhibits.
$5.8 million

Department's share of governmental gross receipts tax revenne

$ 2.4 million

‘Through Jun= 30, 2023

3 916 thovsand

3628 thousand

Spaceport Authory

Construction of the Spaceport America lavnch facility.
$76.3 million

Authority's shara of governmental gross receipts tax revenss
$ 63.8 million

‘Through June 30, 2028

5 4.2 million

3 5.6 million

126



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - NOTE 8 (CONTINUED)

Governmental Activities (Continued)

Agency:

Purpose of Bonds

Total Amount of Debt Issued:
Twp= of Revenues Pledzad:
Total Debt Sarvice Remaining:
Term of Commitment:

Revenue Stream for Current Year:

Deebt Service for Current Year:

Agency:

Purpose of Bonds
Total Amount of Debt Issued:
Trp= of Revenuves Pladz=d:

Total Debt Sarvice Remaining:
Tarm of Commitment:

Revenue Stream for Current Year:

Diebt Sarvice for Current Year:

Business-type Activities

Agency:

Purposs of Bonds:

Total Amount of Bonds Issped:
Twvpe of Revenves Pladgad:

Total Debt Barvice Remaining:

Term of Commitment:

Revenue Stream for Current Year:

Dbt Szrvice for Current Vear:

Agency:

Purpose of Bonds:
Total Amount of Bonds Issued:

Type of Ravenues Pladzed:

Total Debt Sarvice Remaining:
Tarm of Commitment:

Revenue Stream for Current Year:

Dbt Servics for Current Vear:

Bernalille County Metrepolitan Conrt
Court parking structurs

$ 30.7 million

Court facilities fees collected.

$ 23.6 million

Through June 30, 2025

$ 3.5 million

3 3.9 million

General Services Deparmment

State facilities acquisition and development.
$ 174 million

Government gross receipts tax

$ 236.6 million

Throvgh Jene 30, 2039

$ 14.2 million

5 142 million

Miners' Colfax Medical Center

Improvement and expansion of medical facilitiss

$14.6 million

Center's share of distributions from the State Land Grant and the
Charitable, Penal, and Reform Permanent Funds

$10.1 million

Through June 30, 2027

$ 3.0 million

$ 1.3 million

Educanienal Institutions (TN
NMHU, NM Tech)

Construction and impro

% 1.3 billion

Svbstantially all vnrestricted revenves, including Permanent Fund

, NMSU, ENMU, WNMU, NMMI,

of various capital facilitiss

distributions, student fess, and income from revenve-producing facilities,

bt excluding state appropriations and incoms from clinical operations.
$ 1.2 billion

Throvgh Jene 30, 2049

$ 1.1 tillion

S 76.4 million
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Other Liabilities
= Compensated Absences

Compensated absences of governmental activities are liquidated in the General Fund. Claims liabilities of
governmental activities of the Internal Services agencies are liquidated in the Internal Service Fund.
Compensated absences of business-type activities are liquidated in the respective fund of obligation.

=  Pollution Remediation Obligation

The State is responsible for environmental management to reasonably protect human health and the environment
in accordance with the Environmental Improvement Act, Chapter 74-1-1, NMSA 1978 (Act). Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation
Obligations (GASB 49) provides guidance in estimating and reporting the potential costs of pollution
remediation.

The following details the nature of the identified sites:

Leaking Petroleum Storage Tanks (LPST)

The State oversees cleanups of LPST sites and reimburses eligible parties from the PST corrective action fund,
which has paid for the vast majority of LPST cleanups. However, for Priority 1 State Lead sites, in which there
is an imminent danger to the public health or environment, the State has obligated itself to begin remediation
clean-up activities as a result of an unwilling or unable property owner in the amount of $1.6 million as of June
30, 2019.

Superfund

The Superfund Oversight Section of the State assists the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)
in characterization of inactive hazardous waste sites; identifies sites which warrant remedial or removal action
under Superfund (CERCLA); and oversees remedial activities and provides management assistance to EPA at
Superfund sites listed on the National Priorities List (NPL). There are currently 16 listed Superfund sites and 4
delisted sites in New Mexico which are in various stages of investigation and remediation. Eight of these sites (6
listed and 2 delisted) are subject to State cost-share with EPA. One of the 8 State cost-share Superfund sites was
placed on the NPL in April 2016. The site is currently in the remedial investigation phase in which no financial
obligation exists. The Department estimates it will take at least 2 or 3 years before a Record of Decision is issued
by the EPA. As of June 30, 2019, this site is excluded from the estimated pollution remediation liability. As of
June 30, 2019, this site is excluded from the estimated pollution remediation liability which for Superfund sites
totals $25.8 million.

The total pollution remediation liability for both the LPST and Superfund sites are as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2018 Additions Deletions June 30, 2019
Amount Due Within One Year $ 503 $ 207 3 89 3 621
Amount Due in More than One Year 26,976 1.619 (1.760) 26,835
Total Pollution Remediation Liabilities 3 27479 $ 1.826 $ (1.849) 3 27456
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= Indian Water Rights Liability

New Mexico currently has three Indian water rights settlements pending implementation: the Navajo Nation
Settlement in the San Juan River adjudication, the Settlement Agreement with the Pueblos of Nambe, Pojoaque,
Tesuque, and San Ildefonso in the Aamodt adjudication, and the Taos Pueblo Settlement in the Rio Pueblo de
Taos/Rio Hondo adjudication. For each of these three settlements, a settlement agreement was executed in 2005
or 2006 by the tribe or Pueblos and the State of New Mexico. The Aamodt and Taos Pueblo settlement agreements
also were executed by other water right owning parties. Subsequent to the passage of federal legislation
authorizing each of the settlements in 2009 and 2010, the Secretary of the US Department of Interior signed all
three settlement agreements on behalf of the United States. Copies of the three full-executed settlement
agreements and related documents can be found at: www.ose.state.nm.us/legal_ose_proposed_settlements.html.

Each of the agreements involves a contribution from the State of New Mexico in the form of construction of
infrastructure. The value of infrastructure and mutual benefits projects contemplated in the three settlements are
estimated at more than $1.6 billion as of June 30, 2019. The State will not own the infrastructure once completed;
the infrastructure and projects will be owned by tribal and local governments.

The State of New Mexico will receive a credit towards its cost share of about $3.18 million. A portion of the
State’s share includes $10 million on non-mandatory expenditures for ditch rehabilitation under the Navajo
Settlement. The State has met its cost share obligations under the Taos Pueblo settlement.

The State has recognized the estimated liability of $69.7 million in the financial statements as of June 30, 2019.

A summary of the funds appropriated towards the settlements follows:

Indian Water Total Appropriated Unappropriated
Rights Settlement: Cost Share Funds Balances
Aamodt S 73470 S 4000 5 31470
Taos 20,050 20.150 (100)
Navajo 34,132 322235 1.907
Total 5 120652 § 96373 5 33277

A summary of the funds disbursed and the remaining liability follows:

Indian Water Total Disbursed Balance,
Rights Settlement: Cost Share To Date June 30,2019
Aamodt 5 73470 3§ 15000 S 60470
Taos 20,050 14,541 5,500
Navajo 34132 30404 3,721
Total s 120652 8§ VM5 85 60,706

Due to the fact that the timing of the payments is subject to obtaining appropriations, the amount due for these
settlements and any related cost indexing is based on best estimates.
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H .University of New Mexico
= Standby Purchase Agreements

Standby Purchase Agreements provide liquidity support on variable rate bonds that are remarketed weekly. The
liquidity/commitment fees are based on a percentage of the outstanding bond balance, payable semiannually.
Liquidity fees for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 were $259,198 and $249,303, respectively. An
agreement with U.S. Bank was entered into on December 31, 2014 for a three year term expiring December 29,
2019. The University has entered into negotiations with U.S. Bank for a possible three year extension of the
agreement.

A schedule including maturities and fees is as follows (in thousands):

US Bank
Liguidity Series Series Series Grand
Expiration 2001 2002B 2002C Total

12/20/2019 § 21335 5 13405 5 28845 5 63,603

Liquidity Fees

2001 2002B 2002C Total

FY 19 5 @ 5 i35 § 114 5 238
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= Interest Rate Swap Agreements

On June 30, 2019, UNM had the following derivative instruments outstanding (in thousands):

Current
Ttem/ Effective Maturity Current Notional
Counter-Party Tvpe Ohjective Date Date Terms Fair Value Amount
Hedging Derivatives
A - JP Morgan Pay- Hedge against rising SIFMA rates 1W30:2002 6/1/2026  Receive SIFMA 5 (626) 5339
Fixed/Receive related to the 2001 System Improvement USD - Pay 4.2%
Variable Interest  Rewvenue Bonds (Underlying Swap) Fixed
Rate Swap
BE - JP Morgan Pay- Hedge against rising SIFMA rates related 1003072002 6/1/2030  Receive SIFMA (4,422 28,845
Fixed/Receive to the 2002C Refunding Revenue Bonds USD - Pay 3.9%:
Variable Interest (Underlying Swap) Fixed
Rate Swap
C - JP Morgan Pay- Hedge against rising SIFDNA rates related 17142003 6172026  Receive SIFMA (1307 13.405
Fined/Receive to the 2002E Refunding Revenue Bonds USD - Pay 3.8%
Variable Interest (Undetlying Swap) Fixed
Rate Swan
D - REC Roval Bank Pay- Hedge against rising SIFMA rates related 100302002  6/1/2026  Receive SIFMA (631) 5330
Fixed/Feceive to the 2001 System Improvement USD - Pay 4.2%
Variable Interest  Rewenue Bonds (Underlying Swap) Fixed
Rate Swap
Investment Derivatives
E - JP Morgan Pay- Hedge against falling SIFMNLA rates /152006 6/1/2026  Receive 63.6% of 157 10,678
VarnableReceive  related 3
Variable Interest to the 2001 System Improvement vear LIBOF.
Rate Swap Eewvenue Bonds (Overlay Swap) swap rate
+0.3% - Pay
SIFMA
F - JP Morgan Pay- Hedge against falling SIFMLA rates 8152006 6/1/2030  Receive 63.6% of 606 28.845
Variable/Feceive  related to the 2002C Refunding Revenue 5 year LIBOE.
Variable Interest  Bonds (Owerlay Swap) swap rate +
Rate Swap 0.3% - Pay
SIFMA
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= Risks

Credit Risk

Each of UNM’s derivative instruments is held with the same counterparty except for Derivative Instrument D.
Deterioration of credit ratings could indicate a potential inability of the counterparty to make the required periodic
payments. The credit ratings for each of the counterparties are as follows:

Moody's S&P Fitch
Entity LT Rating STRating LTRatinge STRating LTRating ST Rating

T Morzan Aa2 Bl A+ A1+ A Fl-

RBC Roval Bank A? Pl AA- Al+ As Fl-

Interest Rate Risk

UNM is exposed to interest rate risk on its receive-variable, pay-fixed underlying interest rate swaps. As the Securities
Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA) swap index decreases, the University's net payment on the
underlying swaps increases. Alternatively, on its pay-variable (SIFMA), receive-variable (LIBOR) overlay interest
rate swaps, as LIBOR and the SIFMA swap index increases, the University's net payment on the overlay swaps
increases.

Basis Risk

The variable-rate debt hedged by UNM’s derivative instruments are variable-rate demand obligation (VRDO) bonds
that are remarketed every seven days. The University is exposed to basis risk on its pay-variable (SIFMA), receive-
variable (USD Swap Rate) overlay interest rate swaps, because the variable-rate payments received by the University
on these derivative instruments are based on a rate USD Swap Rate other than the index (SIFMA) the University pays
on the VRDO bonds. At June 30, 2019, the interest rate on the University's variable-rate hedged debt (SIFMA) is 1.9
%, while the 63.55% of five year USD Swap Rate + 0.31% is .93 %.

Termination Risk

UNM or its counterparties may terminate a derivative instrument if the other party fails to perform under the terms of
the contract. In addition, UNM is exposed to termination risk on Derivative Instruments B and C because the contract
provides the counterparty with a knockout option to terminate the contract if the 180-day SIFMA is equal to or greater
than 7.0 percent. The 180-day SIFMA is defined as the weighted average rate taken off the USD floating SIFMA
Index Rates published within the previous 180-day period. If at the time of termination, a derivative instrument were
in a liability position, UNM would be liable to the counterparty for a payment equal to the liability, subject to netting
arrangements.

Rollover Risk

UNM is exposed to rollover risk on hedging derivative instruments that are hedges of debt that mature or may be
terminated prior to the maturity of the debt. When these derivative instruments terminate, or in the case of a termination
option, if the counterparty exercises its option, UNM will be re-exposed to the risks being hedged by the derivative
instrument. Derivative Instruments B and C expose UNM to rollover risk because the counterparty has the option to
terminate the contract by exercising a knockout option.
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Foreign Currency Risk
UNM has no exposure to foreign currency risk from its derivative instruments.

=  Commitments

All of UNM’s derivative instruments include provisions that require UNM to post collateral in the event its credit
rating falls below certain levels. UNM has entered into a two-way Credit Support Annex (CSA) with the swap counter-
parties, which is based on each party’s long-term unsecured unsubordinated debt rating. The following matrix dictates
the potential collateral postings if the swaps mark-to-market values are above the mandated thresholds (in thousands):

Swap MTM

Threshold for

Rating Party's A& B
AAAal and > UsD S 25,000
AA JAaS UsD § 20,000
A+AL usp § 13,000
AA2 UusD § 10,000
AJA3 UsD § 5,000
EEBE+/Baal and < usp § -

The collateral to be posted is to be in the form of U.S. Treasury securities in the amount of the fair value of derivative
instruments in liability positions net of the effect of applicable netting arrangements. If UNM or the counterparty does
not post collateral, the derivative instrument may be terminated. UNM’s credit rating is AA/Aa2 at June 30, 2019;
therefore, no collateral has been posted.

= Derivative Instrument Payments and Hedged Debt

As of June 30, 2019, aggregate debt service requirements of UNM’s debt (fixed-rate and variable-rate) and net
receipts/payments on associated hedging derivative instruments are presented below. These amounts assume that
current interest rates on variable-rate bonds and current reference rates of hedging derivative instruments will remain
the same for their term. As these rates vary, interest payments on variable-rate bonds and net receipts/payments on the
hedging derivative instruments will vary. The hedging derivative instruments column reflects only net
receipts/payments on derivative instruments that qualify for hedge accounting (in thousands).
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University of New Mexico

Debt Service Requirements - Hedging Derivative Instruments

Hedge Deriv.
Fizcal Year Instruments,

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Net Total
2020 5 6320 35 336 5 1303 5 8179
2021 6,580 5135 1370 8265
2022 6,855 281 1217 8333
2023 1,133 232 1,048 8,433
2024 71,463 220 873 83538
2023 1,770 183 697 8,630
2026 9.900 140 521 10,561
2027 2,900 78 301 3279
2028 3,030 60 m 3311
2029 3,160 40 141 3341
2030 2470 18 61 1,349

3 63603 3 1943 5§ 1933 5 13,301

= Fiscal Year Changes in Swap Valuations

UNM has entered into interest rate swaps as shown in the prior schedule. The swaps were put in place starting in fiscal
years 2002 and 2003. The University has recorded the swaps at their estimated fair values as of June 30, 2019. Swaps
A through D are deemed cash flow hedges, and therefore, in addition to recording the liability at fair value, the
University has recorded an offsetting deferred outflow of resources. Annually, the changes to the fair values are
recorded as an increase or decrease to the liability and the offset to the deferred outflow of resources. The fair value
change in fiscal year 2019 for the hedge instruments was a $1.4 million increase to the liability and an equal offsetting
increase to the deferred outflow of resources. Swaps E and F are not cash flow hedges, but rather are considered
investment swaps, and changes in their fair value are recorded as investment gain (loss). The fair value change for
swaps E and F as of June 30, 2019 was recorded to unrealized gain in the amount of $331.
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G. Notes Payable

The State has issued notes payable for various purposes, mainly equipment acquisition. Details of notes payable for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 follow:

Notes Payable - Business Type
Debt Service Requirements to Maturity
For Fiscal Years End June 30

(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2020 5 843 5 473 1202
2021 1,015 317 1332
2022 1,090 286 1376
2023 1.163 233 1418
2024 1240 17 1457

2025 -2028 3,830 461 6.201

Total 8 11,285 3§ 1881 8 13,166
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H. Discretely-presented Component Units

Outstanding bonds payable for the New Mexico Finance Authority are as follows:

Bonds Pavable - New Mexico Finance Authority

(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance
Interest Maturity Original June 30,
Bond Series Rate (%) Date Issue 2019
Public Project Revolving Fund - Senior Lien:
2009A-E 40-53 2020-2029 S 161,315 § 33,863
W010A-B 40-64 2020- 2039 83,173 471273
W11B-C 235-350 2020 - 2036 110,680 54,100
012 A 23-33 2020 - 2038 24340 16,210
W013A-B 30-50 2020 - 2038 60,643 34290
2014B 30-50 2020 - 2035 58,233 36,200
W13B-C 23-30 2020- 2043 20,300 18,793
016 A-F 20-30 2020 - 2046 313,540 262,005
W01TA-E 30-30 2020 - 2046 138,130 118,130
2018 A-B 235-350 2020 - 2038 200,170 187,195
2019B 40-30 2020- 2039 43,870 43,870
Subtotal 1,289 400 012,025
Public Project Revolving Fund - Subordinate Lien:
2014 A-1.2 23-30 2020- 2034 31,940 21,443
W015A, D 30-50 2020 - 2035 02,7435 71,390
2016 B 5.0 2020- 2021 8950 3,083
017B-F 21-30 2020 - 2036 128,725 93 6435
W018C-E 23-30 2020 - 2032 102,780 101,470
2019 C-2 20-50 2020 - 2039 68,333 68,303
Subtotal 433,693 339,340
Total Public Project Revolving Fund and Total Bends Outstanding 5 1,723,003 1,271,363
Add: Net Unamortized Premium 143,933
Total Bonds Payahle 5 1417300
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Outstanding bonds payable for the New Mexico Mortgage Finance Authority are as follows:

Bonds Pavable - New Mexico Mortgage Finance Authority

(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance
Interest Maturity September 30,
Bond Series Rate (%) Date 2019
Single Family Mortgage Programs:
Series 2010 A 435-46 2028 5 5,280
Series 2011 A -C 23-54 2041 37.400
Series 2012 A-B 24-43 2043 43215
Series 2013 A-C 22-43 2043 47,363
Series 2014 A -B 26-30 2044 13,449
Series 2015 A-E 1.8-40 2043 39,864
Series 2016 A - C 1.3-38 2046 114,370
Series 2017 A -B 1.3-38 2048 70,393
Series 2018 A -D 1.8-43 2049 245 833
Series 2019 A -E 1.3-43 20350 206239
Subtotal 933.628
Unaccreted Bend Premium/Thecount, MNet 21,189
Total Single Family Mortgage Programs Payable 954,817
Rental Housing Mortgage Programs:
Series 2002 A -B 54-68 2038 7,745
Series 2003 A-B 31-32 2038
Series 2004 A -D 5.0-6.0 2039
Series 2003 A-F 47-31 2040
Series 2007 A-D 51-100 2043
Series 2008 A-B 12-23% 2043
Series 2010 A -B 50 2047
Series 2012 A 50 2049
Series 2019 3.23 2020
Subtotal
Unaccreted Bond Premium/Discount, Net
Total Rental Housing Mortgage Programs Payable 00,527
Total Bonds Payable 3 1,045,344

* Determined on a weeky basis until adjusted to reset rates or fixed rates
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity
For Fiscal Years End September 30

New Mexico Finance Authority

(Expressed in Thousands)

New Mexico Mortgage Finance Authority

(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2020 5 117215 L YY) 5 174,762 5 20,942 5 36,333 5 57295
2021 113,745 52218 163,963 24,496 35,961 60,457
2022 106,440 46,848 153,288 22,035 35276 37331
2023 101,195 41,864 143,039 22,848 34573 37421
2024 87,593 36,977 124372 23,541 33,820 37.361

2023 -2029 363,920 127,501 401421 126,624 156,700 283324

2030- 2034 233,390 58,020 202,819 146,231 131,800 278,060

2033 - 2039 123,190 16,837 140,027 214,629 90,143 313,112

2040 - 2044 19,780 2315 22,005 2891711 52227 341,398

2043 - 2049 4393 195 4,390 133,034 14,033 147,060

2030 - 2034 4712 9 431

1271363 441231 1,712,596 1,024,063 629,906 1,633,969

Unacereted

Pramium 145,933 - 145,935 21,281 - 21,281
Total 5 1417300 § 412 3 1,858,531 $ L4534 3 629,906 § 81675250
Details of the Mortgage Finance Authority Notes Payable follows:
New Mexico Mortgage Finance Authority Debt Service Requirements to Maturity
Notes Pavable For Fiscal Years End September 30
(Expressed in Thousandls) (Expressed in Thousandls)
Balance
Sept. 30, Fiscal
Note 2019 Year Principal Interest Total
PRLF Cash and Loans § 1726 2020 LI T s 323 § 25399

Securities and Loans Held for Sale 35,000 2021 10,074 189 10,263

Subtotal: Debt with Pledged Collateral 36,726 2022 393 46 430

Other Direct Borrowings without Assets Pledged 1330 2023 459 38 337
Total Direct Borrowings § 38,276 2024 880 2 901

2025-2029 in 60 431
2030-2034 in 2 413
2033 - 2039 n 23 304
The borrowings were mads fo raise capital to help fund 2040 - 2044 243 5 248
the Primero Loan Program, which provides loans for 5 38276 $ 749 $ 39,025

nonpraofit, public or tibal agency sponsored affordable

The Authority also has an umsed line of credit in the amount of $1.8 million as
of Sept. 30, 2019.
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NOTE 9. Net Position and Fund Equity

A. Governmental Fund Balances

Fund balances of governmental funds are classified as:

Non-spendable — amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in a spendable form (not expected to be
converted to cash) or are legally required to be intact. Examples include inventories and permanent fund principal.
Restricted — amounts where legally enforceable constraints are imposed by an external party such as a grantor, by
the State Legislature, or by the constitution at the same time the revenue is created.

Committed — amounts where constraints are imposed by formal action of the government’s highest level of
decision-making authority, the State Legislature or the Governor, which cannot be used for any other purpose
unless the constraint is changed by similar action. These constraints are imposed separately from the creation of
the revenue.

Assigned — amounts where constraints are imposed on the use of resources through the intent made by any level
of decision-making authority in the government if the governing body has expressly delegated that authority to
the official or to a committee.

Unassigned — the residual amount after all classifications have been considered. The General Fund is the only
fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance.
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A summary of the nature and purpose of governmental fund balances, by fund type, at June 30, 2019, follows (in thousands):

Dehbt Capital
General Fund Service Projects Severance Tax Land Grant Total
Nonspendable:
Prepaid Expenses g 908§ - 3 - 5 - 5 - 3 008
Inventories 31,851 - - - - 31,851
Other 14,550 - - - - 14,350
Total Nonspendable S 47309 S - 5 - 5 - S - 5 47309
Restricted:
Capital Projects § - 5 - 5 1578346 S - 5 - 5 1578346
Culture, Recreation and Natural Resources 184175 - - - - 184,175
Debt Service - 535,184 - - - 535,184
Education 138,656 - - - - 158,636
General Control 380.026 - - 3,528,038 19,047,479 24,953,543
Health and Human Services 97,793 - - - - 97,793
Highway and Transportation 338174 - - - - 338174
TJudicial 19,345 - - - - 19,345
Legislature 3.850 - - - - 3.850
Public Safety 74,033 - - - - 74,033
Regulation and Licensing 133,466 - - - - 133 466
Total Festricted 3 13805340 3 335,184 5 1578346 0§ 3528038 § 19047479 § 28,078,386
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Deht Capital Severance Tax Land Grant
General Fund Service Projects Permanent Permanent Total
Committed:
Capital Projects S - S - - S - - 5 -
Culture, Recreation and Natural Resources (482) - - - - (482)
Debt Service - - - - - -
Education - - - - 0081
General Control - - - - 11,337
Health and Human Services - - - - 12,751
Highway and Transportation - - - - - -
Tudicial 1084 - - - - 1,084
Public Safety - - - - - -
Fegulation and Licensing 481 - - - - 481
Total Committed 5 35352 8§ - - 5 - - 3 35352
Assigned:
General Control 5 - S - - S - - 5 -
Health and Human Services 7522 - - - - 7522
Tudicial 4402 - 150 - - 4,352
Public Safety - - - - - -
Regulation and Licensing 3,548 - - - - 3,348
Total Assigned 3 15472 3§ - 150 5 - - 3 15,622
Unassigned:
Capital Projects 5 - Y - - 5 - - 5 -
Culture, Recreation and Natural Resources (232) (188) - - - (4209
Education (72.411) - - - - (72.411)
General Control 1844280 (16.016) - - - 1.828.264
Health and Human Services (9.769) 3 - - - (9.766)
Highway and Transportation (31.067) 14419 - - - (36.640)
Tudicial (5.120) 352 - - - (4.768)
Legislature 2323 - - - - 2323
Public Safety (21.892) - - - - (21.892)
Regulation and Licensing (79.041) 1,431 - - - (77.610)
Total Unassigned 5 5 - - 5 - - 5 1.607.072
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B. Deficit Net Position/ Fund Equity
Governmental Activities
There were no deficit overall fund balances to report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.
C. Net Position/Fund Balance Restatements -
1. Correction of Errors
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the State determined that several errors in accounting and reporting had
been made in the prior fiscal year. The effect of the correction of those errors together with the adoption of the new

accounting principle on beginning net position and governmental fund balances follows (in thousands):

The following schedule reconciles June 30, 2019, Net Position/fund balance previously reported to beginning Net
Position/fund balance, as reported in the accompanying financial statements(in thousands):
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Summary of Adjustments, Net Position/Fund Balance

Government-wide Statements -

Governmental Activities: Business - type Activities, Educational Institutions:
Adjus tments Correction of Errors
Agencies PPA to correct begin balances $ (25,178) UNM- PY $ 2,779
Correction of errors (77,349) NMSU - PY 280
Rounding @ NNMC - CY 3,507
(102,529) Rounding 1
Gover fund fi ial s B Total adjustments, Educ. Inst. 6,567
Business - type Activities $ 6,567
Capital Projects - Agency Prior Adjustments 302
Capital Projects - movement of fund (84,329)
Capital Projects - Correction of Errors (11,507) Agency Funds
Capital Projects - Rounding 1 Funds moving from Agency to Special Rev $ (254)
Debt Service Fund - movement of fund 84,329 Total adjustments, Agency Funds $ (254)
General Fund - Agency Prior Adjustments 13,889
General Fund - Correction of Errors CY 6,571 External Investment Trust Funds
General Fund - Correction of Errors PY (30,913) Corrections of Errors - STO $
General Fund - Rounding (3) Corrections of Errors - SIC
Total Governmental fund adjustments 21,660) Rounding
Internal Service - Correction of Errors Total adjustments, External Invest. $

Total Internal Service Fund Adjustments -
Total adjus tments, Governmental
Activities $ (124,189)

Non-Major Component Units

Change in Accounting Method, Adjustments, and Corrections of Errors:

Small Business Invest - change in accounting methods $ (6,324)
Charter Schools - Correction of Errors (155)
Charter Schools - Transfers to Districts 18,082
Northern - correction of an error (200)
Total adjus tments, Non-Major Component Units $ 11,403
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‘Governmental Activities:

Net Position/Fund Balance Restatements

Eeg. Net PositionFund Balances,

as Previously Reported
Adjustments

Eeg. Net Position/Fund Balances,

as Restated

Effect on Change in Net
PositionFund Balance
FYE June 30,2019

Business-type Activities:

Beg Net Position,
as Previously Reported
Adjustments
Eeg. Net Position,
as Restated
Effect on Change in Net
Position
FYE June 30,2019

Fiduciary and Component
Units:
Eeg. Net Position,
as Previously Feported
Adjustments
Beg Net Position,
as Restated

Effect on Change in Net
Position
FYE June 30, 2019

Total Net Total Fund
Net Position - Position - Balances -
Govemmental Internal Sve. Governmental General Debt Service Capital Projects Severance Land Grant
Activities Funds Funds Fund Fund Fund Tax Fund Fund
s 26916737 S (32.105) 26772272 § 2153101 S 423801 s 1,012,199 s 3,280,599 17,902,572
(124.189) - (21.660) (10.436) 84,320 (93,333) - -
3 26792548 8§ (32,105 26750612 0§ 2142645 3§ 508,13 3 016,666 3 3,280,599 17,902,572
3 (124.180y 3 - (21.660) § (10.436) 3§ 84320 3 (93.535) § - -
Net Position -
Business-type Educational Nonmajor
Activities Institutions Enterprise
5 1527695 S 636470 5 BO1216
7 6,567 -
5 1.534262 S 643046 5  B9L216
3 6,567 3§ 6,567 § -
Pension External Major Non-Major
Trust Invesment Component Component
Funds Trust Funds Units Units
5 20638040 S 667.177 5 1138907 § 18,044
- 33,191 - 11403
5 29638049 S 702,368 1,138,907 29,447
5 - 5 35,191  § - § 11403
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Fiduciary Funds:

Agency
Funds
Beg. Total Asssets and
Total Liabilities,
as previously reported 5 432,366
Adjustment - Correction
of Errors (254)
Beg. Total Assets and
Total Liabilities,
az Restated 5 432,612
Private Purpose
Trust
Beg. Met Position,
as Previously Reported 3,048,943
Adjustments -
Beg. Net Position, 5 3,048 943

as Restated

Effect on Change in Net
Position
FYE June 30, 2019 5 -
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NOTE 10. Leases
Operating Leases

The State leases building and office facilities and other equipment under operating leases. Although the lease terms
vary, most leases are subject to annual appropriations from the State Legislature to continue the lease obligation. If an
appropriation is reasonably assured, leases are considered non-cancellable for financial reporting purposes.

Operating leases contain various renewal options, as well as some purchase options; however, due to the nature of the
leases, they do not qualify as capital leases and the related assets and liabilities are not recorded. Operating lease
payments are recorded as expenditures or expenses when paid or incurred. Commitments under operating leases are
as follows (in thousands):

Governmental Business-type Fiduciary
2020 5 63506  § 11915 5 159
2021 63,592 1.647 72
2022 56914 6.840 1
2023 53225 5384 -
2024 40,639 4926 -
2025-2029 131,863 5.607 -
2030-2034 8,103 202 -
2033-2039 71 M -
Thereafter 97,162 1,384 -
Total 3 517,755 8 41,929 3 232

Operating lease expenditures/expenses for fiscal year 2019 for governmental activities, business-type activities, and
fiduciary activities, respectively (in thousands) were $ 81,100, $ 14,389, and $ 168.

Capital Leases

The State is obligated under lease purchase contracts. In the opinion of counsel for the State, these lease purchase
contracts comply with the State Supreme Court Montano vs. Gabaldon decision, in that payments for these will be
made from Special Revenue Funds and not from general tax revenue.

Leases, that in substance are purchases, are reported as capital lease obligations. In the government-wide financial
statements and proprietary fund financial statements, assets and liabilities resulting from capital leases are recorded at
the inception of the lease at either the lower of fair value or the present value of future minimum lease payments. The
principal portion of lease payments reduces the liability, and the interest portion is expensed. On the governmental
fund financial statements, both the principal and interest portions of capital lease payments are recorded as
expenditures of the applicable governmental function.

As of June 30, 2019, the State did not have any capital lease obligations.
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Lessor Revenue

The State is also the lessor of office space. Amounts to be received in future years are as follows (in thousands):

Governmental Business-tvpe

2020 § 3460 § 10,762
2021 3345 0614
2022 3,268 0520
2023 3211 7,742
2024 3,184 6,733
2023-2029 - 20,706
2030-2034 - 19,012
2033-2039 - 13,549
Therzafter 26256 15,673
5 41,74 § 113,331

The historical cost for the assets which are leased is $129.7 million for governmental activities (mostly for use of
hangar and runway facilities at the Spaceport) and $145.0 million for business-type activities.
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NOTE 11. Risk Management

The State of New Mexico manages its risks internally and sets aside assets for claim settlement through its Internal
Service Fund (ISF). Coverage is provided for the following:

Workers’ Compensation

Civil Rights and Foreign Jurisdiction
Aircraft

Money and Securities

Health/Life

General Liability

Automobile

Property

Employee Fidelity Bond

Short-term & Long-term Disability

The State of New Mexico manages its risks internally and sets aside assets for claim settlement through Enterprise
Funds within the Risk Management Division (RMD) of the General Services Department. The RMD services all
claims for risk of loss to which the State is exposed, including general liability, property and casualty, workers’
compensation, employee health and accident, and unemployment compensation. The Department has coverage for
general liability and civil rights claims through the Public Liability Fund administered by the State of New Mexico’s
Risk Management Division. The dollar amount “limits” of the insurance coverage are the damages caps set forth in
the Tort Claims Act, NMSA Section 41-4-19, which may be amended from time to time by the legislature. All funds,
agencies, and authorities of the State participate in Risk Management. Risk Management allocates the cost of
providing claims servicing and claims payment by charging a “premium” to each fund, agency or public authority
based on claims history and exposure of each participant. The charge considers recent trends in actual claims
experience of the State as a whole and makes provision for catastrophic losses.

ISF fund liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be
reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported. Because actual
claims liabilities depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards, the
process used in computing claims liability does not necessarily result in an exact amount. Claims liabilities are
reevaluated annually to take into consideration recently settled claims, the frequency of claims, and other economic
and social factors.

Total insurance claims payable at June 30, 2019, were $166.6 million. The amounts of the liabilities are determined
by independent actuarial consultants to the ISF. The total liability is shown in the accompanying financial statements
at the present value of the payments, computed at 2.0 percent annual rate, except for long-term disability liability,
which is computed at 2.0 percent annual rate, between June 30, 2019 and the date the claims are ultimately expected
to be paid.

Insurance claims payable presented are actuarial computed estimates of the costs of administering, defending, and

settling claims for events that had occurred as of the year-end. Since these estimates are based on historical information
and various statistical measures, actual amounts paid may vary significantly from the amount estimated by the fund
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actuaries and reported herein. The basis of estimating the liabilities for unpaid claims is found in the independent
actuarial report.

The following shows the reconciliation of changes in the unpaid claims in the ISF, which are stated at present value
(in thousands):

Incurred (Net
Balance of Actuarial Balance Current

June 30, 2018 Provisiom) Payments June 30, 2019 Amount Due

State Unemployment 5 4270 § 308 0§ (33577 5 3,950 5 3,950
Local Public Bedy 941 1,525 (1,597) 269 260
Public Property Reserve 2237 6,949 (6.208) 2,978 2,506
Public Liability 15456 19,253 (26,411) 68,208 31,041
Surety Bond 3 - - 3 2
Workers Compensation 46,783 16,440 (13.376) 49 847 11,609
Group Insurance Premium 42 8035 325,170 (327.326) 40,649 40,648
Total ] 172,504 8§ 372365 8 (378,275 § 166,594 § 00,625

Incurred (Net
Balance of Actuarial Balance Current

Jumne 30, 2017 Provision) Payments June 30, 2018 Amount Due

State Unemployment 5 4346 3§ 4731 § (4.798) S 4279 5 4279
Local Public Bedy 956 1.041 (1,056) 041 041
Public Property Reserve 2,837 2,149 (2,74 2237 1,882
Public Liability 83,145 14,069 (21,738) 75436 34,189
Surety Bond 3 3 (3 3 2
Waorkers Compensation 48,040 12,845 (14,111) 46,783 10,396
Group Insurance Premivm 40,814 344 408 (342417 42 803 42,805
Total ] 180,150 § 379248 8 (386,394) 8 172,504 8 04,004

It is possible that other claims against ISF may exist, but have not been asserted.
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NOTE 12. Pension Plans
A. Plan Descriptions

The State maintains five public employees’ retirement systems (Systems): Four separate systems are administered by
the New Mexico Public Employees’ Retirement Association (PERA) and one system is administered by the New
Mexico Educational Employees’ Retirement Board (ERB). The State elected to use June 30, 2018 as its measurement
date for both its PERA and ERB pension plans.

PERA is the administrator of the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), the Judicial Retirement System (JRS),
the Magistrate Retirement System (MRS), and the Volunteer Firefighter Retirement System (VFRS). ERB is the
administrator of the Educational Employees Retirement System (EERS). Collectively, the Systems offer an array of
retirement benefit plans to state, county, and municipal employees, police, firefighters, judges, magistrates, and
legislators. The laws governing the administration of the Systems are set forth in Chapter 10, NMSA 1978, and
applicable Replacement Pamphlets.

PERA is directed by the Public Employees Retirement Board (Board), which consists of twelve members. Ten of the
Board members are elected by PERA active and retired members under state and municipal coverage plans. Two
Board members, the Secretary of State and the State Treasurer, are ex-officio members.

PERA issues a separate, publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That rep